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PART |
Iltem 1. Business
Overview

We are a specialty finance company. Our businetsspsrchase and service retail automobile corgradginated primarily by
franchised automobile dealers and, to a lessengtig select independent dealers in the UniteteSta the sale of new and used
automobiles, light trucks and passenger vans. Tirauwr automobile contract purchases, we provid&ent financing to the customers of
dealers who have limited credit histories, low imes or past credit problems, who we refer to aspsimbe customers. We serve as an
alternative source of financing for dealers, féailng sales to customers who otherwise might eadtie to obtain financing from traditional
sources, such as commercial banks, credit unioth$hemncaptive finance companies affiliated with enagutomobile manufacturers. In
addition to purchasing installment purchase cordrdtectly from dealers, we have also acquirethliment purchase contracts in four
merger and acquisition transactions, and purchasedginated immaterial amounts of loans secureddhicles. In this report, we refer to all
of such contracts and loans as "automobile corgtfact

We were incorporated and began our operations irctvia991. We consist of Consumer Portfolio Servites and subsidiaries
(collectively, “we,” “us,” “CPS” or “the Company”}rom inception through December 31, 2014, we Ipawvehased a total of approximately
$11.3 billion of automobile contracts from dealdnsaddition, we acquired a total of approximat®822.3 million of automobile contracts in
mergers and acquisitions in 2002, 2003, 2004 adt necently in September 2011. The September @6duisition consisted of
approximately $217.8 million of automobile contsattiat we purchased from Fireside Bank of Pleasa@alifornia. In 2004 and 2009, we
were appointed as a third-party servicer for canpairtfolios of automobile contracts originated awhed by non-affiliated entities. From
2008 through 2010, our managed portfolio decreasetl year due to our strategy of limiting contagtchases to conserve our liquidity
during the financial crisis and resulting recessamdiscussed further below. However, since Octdb@9, we have gradually increased
contract purchases, which, in turn, has resulteddreases in our managed portfolio. Contract pagsehvolumes and managed portfolio levels
for the five years ended December 31, 2014 are sliothe table below:

Contract Purchases and Outstanding Managed Portfodi

$ in thousand:

Contracts Managed

Purchased in Portfolio at

Year Period Period End
2010 113,02: 756,20:
2011 284,23t 794,64¢
2012 551,74 897,57"
2013 764,08’ 1,231,42;
2014 944,94 1,643,92

Our principal executive offices are in Las Vegasyada. Most of our operational and administrativecfions take place in Irvine,
California. Credit and underwriting functions aerformed primarily in our California branch withrtan of these functions also performe:
our Florida and Nevada branches. We service oanzaltile contracts from our California, Nevada, Viig, Florida and lllinois branches.

We direct our marketing efforts primarily to dealgrather than to consumers. We establish reldtipasvith dealers through our
employee marketing representatives, who contagpeive dealers to explain our automobile confpacthase programs, and thereafter
provide dealer training and support services. Oanketing representatives represent us exclusifdlgy may be located in our Irvine branch,
in our Las Vegas branch, or in the field, in whaztse they work from their homes and support dealdtsir geographic area. Our marketing
representatives present dealers with a marketiokgae, which includes our promotional material aoring the terms offered by us for the
purchase of automobile contracts, a copy of ourdstad-form dealer agreement, and required docurtientalating to automobile contracts.
As of December 31, 2014, we had 130 marketing sgmatives and in that month we received applinatitom 8,637 dealers in 48 states
of December 31, 2014, approximately 68% of ounactiealers were franchised new car dealers tHatahl new and used vehicles, and the
remainder were independent used car dealers. Egretir ended December 31, 2014, approximately §a#e@utomobile contracts
purchased under our programs consisted of finarfoingsed cars and 16% consisted of financing &w nars, as compared to 91% financing
for used cars and 9% for new cars in the year eBdegmber 31, 2013.




We purchase automobile contracts with the intendibiinancing them on a long-term basis througtusigizations. Securitizations
are transactions in which we sell a specified mpd@ontracts to a special purpose subsidiary o$.oline subsidiary in turn issues (or
contributes to a trust that issues) asset-backadities, which are purchased by institutional stees. Since 1994, we have completed 65
term securitizations of approximately $9.4 billimncontracts. We depend upon the availability afrstterm warehouse credit facilities as
interim financing for our contract purchases ptothe time we pool those contracts for a secuatittn. From February 2011 through the date
of this report, we have maintained two $100 millfemolving warehouse credit facilities.

Sub-Prime Auto Finance Industry

Automobile financing is the second largest consufinance market in the United States. The autonediiance industry can be
considered as a continuum where participants chimogevide financing to consumers in various seggnef the spectrum of
creditworthiness depending on each participant&nass strategy. We operate in a segment of thetrapethat is frequently referred to as
sub-prime since we provide financing to less craditthy borrowers at higher rates of interest throre creditworthy borrowers are likely t
obtain.

Traditional automobile finance companies, suchaaikd, their subsidiaries, credit unions and cagihance subsidiaries of
automobile manufacturers, generally lend to thetroaslitworthy, or so-called prime, borrowers, altgh some traditional lenders are
significant participants in the sub-prime segmenthich we operate. Historically, independent conigs specializing in sub-prime
automobile financing and subsidiaries of largeaficial services companies have competed in th@soie segment which we believe
remains highly fragmented, with no single compaayihg a dominant position in the market.

Economic conditions of uncertainty have from tirnditne negatively affected our industry. Notablgdanost recently, throughout
2008 and 2009 there was reduced demand for assietdaecurities secured by consumer finance regleisgincluding sulprime automobil
receivables. Over roughly that same period, lendéis previously provided short-term warehouse faiag for subprime automobile financ
companies such as ours were reluctant to provide siort-term financing due to the uncertainty rdupg the prospects of obtaining long-
term financing through the issuance of asset-baskedrities. In addition, many capital market ggutints such as investment banks,
financial guaranty providers and institutional ist@s who previously played a role in the sub-prauto finance industry withdrew from the
industry, or in some cases, ceased to do busiRgssly, broad economic weakness and high levelmeimployment during 2008, 2009 and
thereafter caused many of the obligors under aeivables to be less willing or able to pay, résglin higher delinquencies, charge-offs and
losses. Each of these factors adversely affectedesults of operations in the period 2008 throR@hl. Since October 2009, however,
improvements in the capital markets have allowetbusbtain new short-term credit facilities, andegularly access long-term funding.

Our Operations

Our automobile financing programs are designe@teessub-prime customers, who generally have lohnitedit histories, low
incomes or past credit problems. Because we seistermers who are unable to meet certain creditiatals, we incur greater risks, and
generally receive interest rates higher than tiebseged in the prime credit market. We also sustdiigher level of credit losses because of
the higher risk customers we serve.

Originations

When a retail automobile buyer elects to obtaiariiting from a dealer, the dealer takes a creditagtipn to submit to its financing
sources. Typically, a dealer will submit the buyepplication to more than one financing sourcadarew. We believe the dealer’s decision
to choose a financing source is based primarily(iphe monthly payment made available to the elématustomer; (ii) the purchase price
offered to the dealer for the automobile contrfii};the timeliness, consistency and predictapibf response; (iv) funding turnaround time;
(v) any conditions to purchase; and (vi) the finahstability of the financing source. Dealers s@md credit applications to us by entering the
necessary data on our website or through one efrakthird-party application aggregators. For tearyended December 31, 2014, we
received approximately 78% of all applications thgh DealerTrack (the industry leading dealershipiagtion aggregator), 4% via our
website and 18% via another aggregator. Our autmhegiplication decisioning system produced ouiainitecision within minutes on
approximately 99% of those applications.




Upon receipt of information from a dealer, we imnag¢ely order two credit reports to document thedsigycredit history. If, upon
review by our proprietary automated decisioningesys or in some cases, one of our credit analy&sjetermine that the automobile cont
meets our underwriting criteria, or would meet sagteria with modification, we request and revifmther information from the dealer and,
ultimately, decide whether to approve the autongodintract for purchase.

Dealers with which we do business are under n@atitin to submit any automobile contracts to us,ane we obligated to purchase
any automobile contracts from them. During the yerated December 31, 2014, no dealer accounteddor than 0.40% of the total number
of automobile contracts we purchased. The followatge sets forth the geographical sources of tih@naobile contracts we purchased (be
on the addresses of the customers as stated secmrds) during the years ended December 31, 204 2@13.

Contracts Purchased During the Year Endec

December 31, 201 December 31, 201.
Number Percent (1) Number Percent (1)

Texas 5,92¢ 10.(% 4,91( 10.(%
California 5,16:% 8.7% 5,17¢ 10.6%
Ohio 3,37¢ 5.7% 2,33 4.8%
New Jerse 2,99¢ 5.1% 2,47¢ 5.1%
Florida 2,951 5.0% 2,23( 4.€%
Pennsylvani: 2,85t 4.8% 2,96: 6.C%
Other States 36,00¢ 60.7% 28,90: 59.(%

Total 59,27¢ 100.% 48,99t 100.(%

(1) Percentages may not total to 100.0% due to rounc

The following table sets forth the geographic canicgions of our outstanding managed portfolio alB@cember 31, 2014 and 2013.

December 31, 201. December 31, 201.
Amount Percent (1) Amount Percent (1)
State based on obligor's residenc (% in millions)

California $ 178.¢ 10.% $ 164.2 13.2%
Texas 166.¢ 10.1% 123.: 10.(%
Georgia 83.4 5.1% 65.€ 5.2%
Pennsylvani: 82.t 5.(% 73.% 6.C%
Ohio 81.¢ 5.C% 55.¢ 4.5%
All others 1,050.¢ 63.£% 749.( 60.£%

Total $ 1,643.¢ 100.% $ 1,231. 100.(%

(1) Percentages may not total to 100.0% due to rounc

We purchase automobile contracts from dealersgata generally computed as the total amount firdnmder the automobile
contracts, adjusted for an acquisition fee, whigy mither increase or decrease the automobileaxirmiurchase price we pay. The amount of
the acquisition fee, and whether it results inramméase or decrease to the automobile contrachaserice, is based on the perceived credit
risk of and, in some cases, the interest rate emtitomobile contract. The following table summesithe average net acquisition fees we
charged dealers and the weighted average annuaiage rate on our purchased contracts for thedseshown:

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Average net acquisition fee amot $ 16z $ 41€ % 83€ $ 1,158 $ 1,382
Average net acquisition fee as % of amount finar 1.C% 2. 1% 5.5% 7.4% 9.2%
Weighted average annual percentage interes 19.€% 20.1% 20.2% 20.1% 20.1%




We believe that levels of acquisition fees are mheitged partially by competition in the marketplaedich has increased over the
periods presented, and also by our pricing stratégy pricing strategy is driven by our objectifesnew contract purchase quantities and
yield.

We offer seven different financing programs to dealership customers, and price each program dogatalthe relative credit risk.
Our programs cover a wide band of the credit spactnd are labeled as follows:

First Time Buyer This program accommodates an applicant who hagell significant past credit history, such as a
previous auto loan. Since the applicant has limitediit history, the contract interest rate andetescquisition fees tend to be higt
and the loan amount, loan-to-value ratio, down paynand payment-to-income ratio requirements terigetmore restrictive
compared to our other programs.

Mercury / Delta— This program accommodates an applicant who meg had significant past non-performing credit
including recent derogatory credit. As a resuk, tlontract interest rate and dealer acquisitios feed to be higher, and the loan
amount, loan-to-value ratio, down payment, and pEyrto-income ratio requirements tend to be mos#intive compared to our
other programs.

Standard- This program accommodates an applicant who meg significant past non-performing credit, but wias also
exhibited some performing credit in their histoffjae contract interest rate and dealer acquisit@s fare comparable to the First
Time Buyer and Mercury/Delta programs, but the laamount and loan-to-value ratio requirements angeschat less restrictive.

Alpha— This program accommodates applicants who may aaliecharged bankruptcy, but who have also exdbit
performing credit. In addition, the program allofes homeowners who may have had other significantperforming credit in the
past. The contract interest rate and dealer a¢iquigees are lower than the Standard program, dmayment and payment-to-
income ratio requirements are somewhat less régéic

Alpha Plus- This program accommodates applicants with pastpesforming credit, but with a stronger historyre€ent
performing credit, including auto or mortgage rethtredit, and higher incomes than the Alpha prmg@ontract interest rates and
dealer acquisition fees are lower than the Alplogam.

Super Alpha- This program accommodates applicants with pastpeoforming credit, but with a somewhat strongetdrig
of recent performing credit, including auto or ngaige related credit, and higher incomes than tpéa\Plus program. Contract
interest rates and dealer acquisition fees arerlaave the maximum loan amount is somewhat highan the Alpha Plus program.

Preferred This program accommodates applicants with pastpeforming credit, but who demonstrate a somewhat
stronger history of recent performing credit thae Super Alpha program. Contract interest ratesdaater acquisition fees are
lower, and the maximum loan amount is somewhatdrifian the Super Alpha program.

Our upper credit tier products, which are our Rrefit Super Alpha, Alpha Plus and Alpha programspanted for approximately
74% of our new contract originations in 2014, 7492013 and 72% in 2012, measured by aggregate drfinanced.

The following table identifies the credit prograserted from highest to lowest credit quality, undéich we purchased automobile
contracts during the years ended December 31, 20148, and 2012.

Contracts Purchased During the Year Ended (1)

December 31, 201. December 31, 201. December 31, 201,
(dollars in thousands)
Amount Amount Amount
Financed Percent (1) Financed Percent (1) Financed Percent (1)
Preferrec $ 40,53¢ 43% $ 25,13t 3.3% $ 19,71t 3.6%
Super Alphe 127,99: 13.5% 116,55: 15.2% 95,30: 17.2%
Alpha Plus 137,33 14.5% 101,90 13.2% 71,17: 12.9%
Alpha 395,85¢ 41.% 320,55t 42.(% 213,37: 38.7%
Standarc 90,41: 9.6% 78,32( 10.2% 62,40¢ 11.2%
Mercury / Delts 89,07¢ 9.4% 66,65¢ 8.7% 52,071 9.4%
First Time Buyer 63,73¢ 6.7% 54,96( 7.2% 37,69¢ 6.8%
$ 944,94« 100.% $ 764,08 100.(% $ 551,74. 100.(%

(1) Percentages may not total to 100.0% due to rounc




We attempt to control misrepresentation regardiggcustomer's credit worthiness by carefully sdregthe automobile contracts
purchase, by establishing and maintaining profesgibusiness relationships with dealers, and blydtieg certain representations and
warranties by the dealer in the dealer agreememsu@nt to the dealer agreement, we may requirddhker to repurchase any automobile
contract in the event that the dealer breachesi®esentations or warranties. There can be noaws however, that any dealer will have
willingness or the financial resources to satisfyrépurchase obligations to us.

In addition to our purchases of installment contgdiom dealers, we purchased from 2006 througiB 2B0immaterial number of
vehicle purchase money loans, evidenced by promyisszies and security agreements. A non-affilidéedier originated all such loans
directly to vehicle purchasers, and sold the Idanss. We began financing vehicle purchases byihgnaoney directly to consumers in
January 2008, on terms similar to those that wereff through dealers, though without a down paymentirement and with more restrictive
loan-to-value and credit score requirements. Irofat 2008 we suspended purchases of loans fromletiders and direct lending to
consumers. There can be no assurance as to wioethetr we will recommence these programs, the ¢xtewhich we may make such loans,
or as to their future performance. In 2012, wdatéd a program to make direct loans secured mnzaahiles to consumers who own their
vehicles. As of December 31, 2014 our managed@artincludes $2.7 million of such loans.

Underwriting

To be eligible for purchase, we require that theuobile contract be originated by a dealer thatdretered into a dealer agreement
with us. The automobile contract must be secured finst priority lien on a new or used automobiight truck or passenger van and must
meet our underwriting criteria. In addition, eacticmobile contract requires the customer to mainpaiysical damage insurance covering the
financed vehicle and naming us as a loss payeendye nonetheless, suffer a loss upon theft or ghysiamage of any financed vehicle if
customer fails to maintain insurance as requirethbyautomobile contract and is unable to paydpairs to or replacement of the vehicle.

We believe that our underwriting criteria enabldaisvaluate effectively the creditworthiness di-guime customers and the
adequacy of the financed vehicle as security foawgomobile contract. The underwriting criterialie standards for price, term, amount of
down payment, installment payment and interest ratieage, age and type of vehicle; principal amairihe automobile contract in relation
to the value of the vehicle; customer income legaiployment and residence stability, credit histamyg debt service ability, as well as other
factors. Specifically, our underwriting guidelingsnerally limit the maximum principal amount of érghased automobile contract to 1159
wholesale book value in the case of used vehiglés ©15% of the manufacturer's invoice in the aafseew vehicles, plus, in each case, sales
tax, licensing and, when the customer purchasdsadditional items, a service contract or a pol@gupplement the customer’s casualty
policy in the event of a total loss of the relatethicle. We generally do not finance vehicles #iratmore than 11 model years old or have in
excess of 135,000 miles. Under most of our progrdinesmaximum term of a purchased contract is 78th® a shorter maximum term may
be applicable based on the program and mileag@andalile contracts with the maximum term of up ton7@nths may be purchased if the
customer is among the more creditworthy of ourgis and the vehicle generally has less than 5010@&. Automobile contract purchase
criteria are subject to change from time to timeiesumstances may warrant. Prior to purchasingiaomobile contract, our underwriters
verify the customer's employment, income, resideimgurance coverage, and credit information bytacting various parties noted on the
customer's application, credit information bureand other sources. In addition, we contact eactomes by telephone to confirm that the
customer understands and agrees to the terms oflttted automobile contract. During this " welcooad, " we also ask the customer a se
of open ended questions about his application laaaontract, which may uncover potential misrepregens.

Credit Scoring We use proprietary scoring models to assign aatbmobile contract several "credit scores" atitne the
application is received from the dealer and theasusr's credit information is retrieved from thedit reporting agencies. These proprietary
scores are used to help determine whether or netam to approve the application and, if so, thegpam and pricing we will offer to the
dealer. The credit scores are based on a varigigraimeters including the customer's credit histemyployment and residence stability and
income. Once a vehicle is selected by the cust@mera proposed deal structure is provided to ubdylealer, our scores will then consider
the loan-to-value ratio, payment-to-income ratioywd payment amount, the make and mileage of thieleeWe have developed the credit
scores utilizing statistical risk management teghias and historical performance data from our meshagrtfolio. We believe this improves
our allocation of credit evaluation resources, @aglka our competitiveness in the marketplace anagenthe risk inherent in the sub-prime
market.




Characteristics of Contracts.All of the automobile contracts we purchase atly amortizing and provide for level payments over
the term of the automobile contract. All automolaitatracts may be prepaid at any time without ggn&he average original principal
amount financed under the CPS programs in 2014p48941, with an average original term of 63 morathd an average down payment
amount of 12.4%. Based on information containeclistomer applications for this 12-month period, rittail purchase price of the related
automobiles averaged $16,171 (which excludes izense fees and any additional costs such as me@antract) and the average age of the
vehicle at the time the automobile contract waslpased was five years. The average age of ourrnessas approximately 41, with
approximately $55,000 in average annual houselalohne and an average of six years tenure withrigiocurrent employer.

Dealer Compliance The dealer agreement and related assignmerdingepresentations and warranties by the dead¢iath
application for state registration of each finaneeHicle, naming us as secured party with respeitte vehicle, was effected by the time of
sale of the related automobile contract to us,thatlall necessary steps have been taken to adofaénfected first priority security interest in
each financed vehicle in favor of us under the lafuhe state in which the financed vehicle is segfied. To the extent that we do not receive
such state registration within three months of pasing the automobile contract, our dealer compéagroup will work with the dealer in an
attempt to rectify the situation. If these effaate unsuccessful, we generally will require thdefeta repurchase the automobile contract.

Servicing and Collection

We currently service all automobile contracts tliatown as well as those automobile contracts tieaingluded in portfolios that we
have sold in securitizations or service for thiedtjgs. We organize our servicing activities basedhe tasks performed by our personnel.
servicing activities consist of mailing monthlylbi statements; collecting, accounting for andtipgsof all payments received; respondin
customer inquiries; taking all necessary actiom#intain the security interest granted in the foeghvehicle or other collateral; investigating
delinquencies; communicating with the customertttaim timely payments; repossessing and liquidatiegcollateral when necessary;
collecting deficiency balances; and generally naing each automobile contract and the relatechtmthl. We are typically entitled to
receive a base monthly servicing fee equal to Z20B%@nnum computed as a percentage of the declinitsgganding principal balance of the
non-charged-off automobile contracts in the seizattibn pools The servicing fee is included in interest incomethmse securitization
transactions that are treated as financings.

Collection Procedures.We believe that our ability to monitor performarand collect payments owed from sub-prime custsriser
primarily a function of our collection approach asupport systems. We believe that if payment problare identified early and our
collection staff works closely with customers talegbs these problems, it is possible to correctypaoblems before they deteriorate further.
To this end, we utilize pro-active collection prdaees, which include making early and frequent acinivith delinquent customers; educating
customers as to the importance of maintaining gwedit; and employing a consultative and custoraerise approach to assist the customer
in meeting his or her obligations, which includéempting to identify the underlying causes of deliency and cure them whenever poss
In support of our collection activities, we maimta computerized collection system specificallyigiesd to service automobile contracts with
sub-prime customers and similar consumer obligation

We attempt to make telephonic contact with delimjuweistomers from one to 15 days after their mgrpllyment due date,
depending on our proprietary behavioral scorecatush assess the customer’s likelihood of paymenind early stages of delinquency. Our
contact priorities may be based on the custombysigal location, stage of delinquency, size ohbak or other parameters. Our collectors
inquire of the customer the reason for the delingyeand when we can expect to receive the payrifi@etcollector will attempt to get the
customer to make an electronic payment over the@loo a promise for the payment for a time gengraill to exceed one week from the ¢
of the call. If the customer makes such a prontfeeaccount is routed to a promise queue and isardacted until the outcome of the
promise is known. If the payment is made by thaemse date and the account is no longer delinqale@taccount is routed out of the
collection system. If the payment is not madef theé payment is made, but the account remainsaiedint, the account is returned to the
gueue for subsequent contacts.

If a customer fails to make or keep promises fgmpents, or if the customer is uncooperative omapts to evade contact or hide the
vehicle, a supervisor will review the collectiortigity relating to the account to determine if repession of the vehicle is warranted.
Generally, such a decision will occur between b @nd 90th day past the customer's payment deelil# could occur sooner or later,
depending on the specific circumstances. At the tine vehicle is repossessed we will stop accrmitegest on this automobile contract, and
reclassify the remaining automobile contract bagatacother assets. In addition we will apply a ffeweserve to this automobile contract so
that the net balance represents the estimateddhie less costs to sell.




If we elect to repossess the vehicle, we assigtatfieto an independent local repossession seiSigeh services are licensed and/or
bonded as required by law. When the vehicle isvei, the repossession service delivers it to@eshle automobile auction, where it is
kept until sold. Financed vehicles that have bepossessed are generally resold through unaftiliattomobile auctions, which are attended
principally by car dealers. Net liquidation proceede applied to the customer's outstanding oldigainder the automobile contract. Such
proceeds usually are insufficient to pay the custsrobligation in full, resulting in a deficiendy. most cases we will continue to contact our
customers to recover all or a portion of this deficy for up to several years after charge-offnirtone to time, we sell certain charged off
accounts to unaffiliated purchasers who speci@izmllecting such accounts.

Once an automobile contract becomes greater thaa@ddelinquent, we do not recognize addition@lrést income until the
borrower makes sufficient payments to be less #tadays delinquent. Any payments received by adwar that are greater than 90 days
delinquent are first applied to accrued interest #uen to principal reduction.

We generally charge off the balance of any contogdhe earlier of the end of the month in whick #utomobile contract becomes
five scheduled installments past due or, in the cdisepossessions, the month that we receivertieepds from the liquidation of the
financed vehicle or if the vehicle has been in ssggsion inventory for more than three monthshércase of repossession, the amount of the
charge-off is the difference between the outstapgiincipal balance of the defaulted automobiletizan and the net repossession sale
proceeds.

Credit Experience

Our financial results are dependent on the perfonaa@f the automobile contracts in which we retairownership interest. Broad
economic factors such as recession and signifidzaniges in unemployment levels influence the cyesfiformance of our portfolio, as does
the weighted average age of the receivables agjiey time. Our internal credit performance datasistently show that new receivables
have lower levels of delinquency and losses earthéir lives, with delinquencies increasing thrioogt their lives and losses gradually
increasing to a peak between 36 and 42 months,vaffieh they gradually decrease. The weighted ayesasoning of our total owned
portfolio excluding contracts acquired from FiresBlank (“Fireside Portfolio”), represented in thbles below, was 14 months, 14 months
and 18 months as of December 31, 2014, Decemb@03B, and December 31, 2012, respectively. Oungoyy method of monitoring
ongoing credit quality of our portfolio is to cldgeeview monthly delinquency, default and net gjeaoff activity and the related trends. The
tables below document the delinquency, repossessidmet credit loss experience of all such autdimabntracts that we were servicing as
of the respective dates shown. The tables do ©hide the experience of third party servicing pmitis.




Delinquency Experienci
Gross servicing portfolio (1)
Period of delinquency (2)
31-60 days

61-90 days

91+ days

Total delinquencies (2)
Amount in repossession (3)

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession (2)

Delinquencies as a percentage of gr
servicing portfolia

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession as a percentage of ¢
servicing portfolic

Extension Experience

Contracts with one extension, accrui
(4)

Contracts with two or more extensiol
accruing (4)

Contracts with one extension, non-
accrual (4,

Contracts with two or more extensiol
non-accrual (4)

Total accounts with extensions

Delinquency, Repossession and Extension Experience
Delinquency and Extension Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio Excluding Fireside Portfolio

December 31, 201.

December 31, 201:

December 31, 201;

Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount
(Dollars in thousands)

123,03 $ 1,641,80 94,20t $ 1,213,79 74,12: $ 825,18t
3,571 42,82 2,657 21,887 2,54t 18,03«
1,81: 23,33¢ 2,02¢ 24,91« 1,17¢ 9,36(
1,89( 23,23¢ 1,16z 11,06( 77% 5,297
7,27¢ 89,39¢ 5,83¢ 57,86 4,497 32,69:
2,66/ 28,24¢ 2,961 25,01( 1,93: 12,50¢
9,93¢ $ 117,64! 8,79¢ $ 82,87 6,42¢ $ 45,197

5.% 5.4% 6.2% 4.8% 6.1% 4.C%

8.1% 7.2% 9.2% 6.8% 8.7% 5.5%
18,16 $ 238,26° 13,75¢ $ 176,23t 9,09« $ 73,63
7,537 93,22( 5,44¢ 43,86¢ 7,79¢ 37,76
25,70: 331,48’ 19,20: 220,10! 16,88¢ 111,39
1,26¢ 14,70: 1,03( 9,34¢ 632 4,401
594 6,46¢ 622 3,267 1,04« 4,344
1,862 21,16¢ 1,65: 12,61¢ 1,67¢ 8,74°F
2756: $ 352,65¢ 20,85 $ 232,72( 18,56 $ 120,13t




Delinquency Experienci

Gross servicing portfolio (1

Period of delinquency (¢

31-60 days

61-90 days

91+ days

Total delinquencies (Z

Amount in repossession (

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession (:

Delinquencies as a percentage of gr
servicing portfolia

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession as a percentage of ¢
servicing portfolia

Extension Experience

Contracts with one extension, accrui
(4)

Contracts with two or more extensiot
accruing (4,

Contracts with one extension, non-
accrual (4,

Contracts with two or more extensiot
nor-accrual (4,

Total accounts with extensions

Delinquency and Extension Experience (1)
Fireside Portfolio

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount
(Dollars in thousands)
911 $ 1,664 4,89: 14,78¢ 15,03¢ 60,80
11z 262 36¢€ 87¢ 621 2,20¢
53 74 12¢E 25¢ 204 71C
45 62 10¢€ 234 114 332
211 39¢€ 59¢ 1,36¢ 93¢ 3,24¢
1 1 3C 12C 17¢E 703
21z $ 39¢ 62¢ 1,48¢ 1,11< 3,951
23.2% 23.%% 12.2% 9.2% 6.2% 5.G
23.5% 24.(% 12.% 10.(% 7.4% 6.5
21z $ 37¢ 1,20¢ 3,94t 3,117 15,26:
30¢< 81F 68t 2,92¢ 134 717
51t 1,191 1,88¢ 6,86¢ 3,251 15,97¢
17 22 6C 15¢& 16C 72¢
18 30 35 11¢€ 6 2C
35 52 95 27% 16€ 74€
55C $ 1,24: 1,98: 7,142 3,417 16,72¢




Delinquency Experienci

Gross servicing portfolio (1)

Period of delinquency (2)

31-60 days

61-90 days

91+ days

Total delinquencies (-

Amount in repossession (3)

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession (2)

Delinquencies as a percentage of gr
servicing portfolio

Total delinquencies and amount in
repossession as a percentage of ¢
servicing portfolia

Extension Experience

Contracts with one extension, accrui
(4)

Contracts with two or more extensiol
accruing (4)

Contracts with one extension, non-
accrual (4,

Contracts with two or more extensiol
non-accrual (4)

Total accounts with extensions

Delinquency and Extension Experience (1)

Total Owned Portfolio

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount
(Dollars in thousands)

123,94 $ 1,643,47. 99,09¢ $ 1,228,57 89,16: $ 885,99(
3,68¢ 43,08t 3,01¢ 22,76¢ 3,16¢ 20,24(
1,86¢ 23,407 2,14¢ 25,167 1,38:¢ 10,07(
1,93¢ 23,30! 1,27( 11,29¢ 887 5,62¢
7,48k 89,79: 6,43’ 59,22¢ 5,43¢ 35,93¢
2,66¢ 28,25( 2,991 25,13( 2,107 13,20¢

10,15( $ 118,04 9,42¢ $ 84,35¢ 754: $ 49,147
6.C% 5.5% 6.5% 4.8% 6.1% 4.1%
8.2% 7.2% 9.5% 6.€% 8.5% 5.5%

18,377 $ 238,64 14957 $ 180,18: 12,21:  $ 88,89

7,84( 94,03t 6,13¢ 46,79: 7,92¢ 38,47¢
26,21" 332,67¢ 21,09: 226,97 20,14( 127,37:
1,28¢ 14,72: 1,09( 9,50: 792 5,127
61z 6,49¢ 657 3,38t 1,05( 4,36¢
1,897 21,22 1,747 12,88¢ 1,84 9,491
28,11 $% 353,90( 22,83¢ $ 239,86: 2198 $ 136,86

(1) Allamounts and percentages are based on the amtearining to be repaid on each automobile contramtiuding, for pr«
computed automobile contracts, any unearned intefide information in the table represents the grnpsncipal amount of all
automobile contracts we purchased, including autoileacontracts we subsequently sold in securitimatransactions that we
continue to service. The table does not includéageicontracts we have serviced for third-partieswehich we earn servicing fees

only, and have no credit ris

(2) We consider an automobile contract delinqueménvan obligor fails to make at least 90% of a cactually due payment by the
following due date, which date may have been ertkmdthin limits specified in the servicing agreese The period of delinquency
based on the number of days payments are contifcpest due. Automobile contracts less than 31sdislinquent are not included.

The delinquency aging categories shown in the tatdflect the effect of extensio

(3) Amount in repossession represents the contrachicalan financed vehicles that have been repossbssenbt yet liquidatec
(4)  Accounts past due more than 90 days are or-accrual.
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Net Credit Loss Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio Excluding Fireside

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Average servicing portfolio outstandil $ 1,41566 @ $ 1,044,68 % 699,03(
Net charg-offs as a percentage of average servicing port{@l 5.6% 4.7% 3.5%

Net Credit Loss Experience (1)
Fireside Portfolio (3)

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Average servicing portfolio outstandil $ 591¢ % 31,29 % 103,54t
Net charg-offs as a percentage of average servicing port{@l 0.6% 5.5% 4.5%

Net Credit Loss Experience (1)
Total Owned Portfolio (3)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Average servicing portfolio outstandil $ 1,421,58 $ 1,075,97 $ 802,57¢
Net charg-offs as a percentage of average servicing port{@l 5.8% 4.7% 3.€%

(1)  Allamounts and percentages are based on the pa@heimount scheduled to be paid on each automabitéract, net of unearne
income on pre-computed automobile contracts. Tfanmation in the table represents all automobilatracts we service, excluding
certain contracts we have serviced for tl-parties on which we earn servicing fees only, aadeno credit risk

(2) Net charg-offs include the remaining principal balance, aftiee application of the net proceeds from theitigtion of the vehicle
(excluding accrued and unpaid interest) and amouotected subsequent to the date of charge-affuding some recoveries which
have been classified as other income in the accagipg financial statement

(3) Amounts and percentages associated with the Fiedaitfolio reflect only the period after the acsjtion of the portfolio ir
September 201

Extensions

In certain circumstances we will grant obligors -eanenth payment extensions to assist them with teerga@ash flow problems. In
general, an obligor would not be entitled to mdwnttwo such extensions in any 12-month periodrenchore than six over the life of the
contract. The only modification of terms is to adea the obligor's next due date by one month aneineikthe maturity date of the receivable
by one month. In some cases, a two-month extemsanbe granted. There are no other concessionsasugheduction in interest rate,
forgiveness of principal or of accrued interestcéwlingly, we consider such extensions to be inBaamt delays in payments rather than
troubled debt restructurings.
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The basic question in deciding to grant an extensiavhether or not we will (a) be delaying an iitevle repossession and
liquidation or (b) risk losing the vehicle as aukt®f not being able to locate the obligor andigkh In both of those situations, the loss wc
likely be higher than if the vehicle had been rejessed without the extension. The benefits of grgm@in extension include minimizing
current losses and delinquencies, minimizing lifetilosses, getting the obligeraccount current (or close to it) and building dywil with the
obligor so that he might prioritize us over othegditors on future payments. Our servicing stadftaained to identify when a past due obligor
is facing a temporary problem that may be resoWith an extension. In most cases, the extensiorb&igranted in conjunction with our
receiving a past due payment (and where allowddwya nominal fee) from the obligor, thereby irating an additional monetary and
psychological commitment to the contract on theéguaisls part. Fees collected in conjunction withextension are credited to obligors’
outstanding accrued interest.

The credit assessment for granting an extensiunitially made by our collector, who bases the raotendation on the collector’s
discussions with the obligor. In such assessméstsdllector will consider, among other things, filllowing factors: (1) the reason the
obligor has fallen behind in payments; (2) whethvenot the reason for the delinquency is temporang, if it is, have conditions changed s
that the obligor can begin making regular monttdyrpents again after the extension; (3) the obbgma'st payment history, including past
extensions if applicable; and (4) the obligor'sliwngness to communicate and cooperate on resothiaglelinquency. If the collector believes
the obligor is a good candidate for an extensiemmlust obtain approval from his supervisor, wha reiew the same factors stated above
prior to offering the extension to the obligor. éftreceiving an extension, an account remains sutgj@ur normal policies and procedures
interest accrual, reporting delinquency and recggicharge-offs.

We believe that a prudent extension program isiw@giral component to mitigating losses in our mdidfof sub-prime automobile
receivables. The table below summarizes the statusf December 31, 2014, for accounts that redesxéensions from 2008 through 2013:

%
Charged Avg
Active or Paic % Active or Charged Off % Charged Charged Ofk  Off <6 Months

Off at Paid Off at > 6 Months Ooff >6 6 Months Months  to Chargt

Period ol  # Extensions December 37 December 3! After Months After After After Off Post
Extensiol Granted 2014 2014 Extensior Extension Extensior Extensior Extensiol
2008 35,58¢ 10,87: 30.5% 19,89¢ 55.% 4,81¢ 13.5% 18
2009 32,00« 10,27: 32.1% 15,95( 49.6% 5,78: 18.1% 1€
2010 26,16 12,48¢ 47.1% 11,67¢ 44.¢% 1,99¢ 7.6% 18
2011 18,78¢ 11,38: 60.6% 6,472 34.5% 932 5.0% 17
2012 18,78: 12,43¢ 66.2% 5,54¢ 29.5% 79€ 4.2% 14
2013 23,39¢ 17,75¢ 75.€% 4,66: 19.% 97¢€ 4.2% 11

Table excludes extensions on portfolios servicethfad parties

We view these results as a confirmation of thec#iffeness of our extension program. For the aceorgteiving extensions in 2008,
2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013, 30.5%, 32.1%9%4,76D.6%, 66.2% and 75.9%, respectively, were efta@ in full or are active and
performing at December 31, 2014. With each of tleemeessful extensions we received continued patgadinterest and principal
(including payment in full in many cases). Withsol#e extension, however, we would have likely inedra substantial loss and no additional
interest revenue.

For extension accounts that ultimately chargedwedfconsider accounts that charged off more thamsenths after the extension to
be at least partially successful. For the 2008922010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 extensions that ctafiethe charge off was incurred, on
average, 19, 16, 18, 17, 14 and 11 months, respégtiafter the extension, This indicates that einethe cases of an ultimate loss, we
received additional payments of principal and ieséthat otherwise we would not have received.
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Additional information about our extensions is pd®d in the tables below:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2014 2013 2012
Average number of extensions granted per m 2,14¢ 1,95( 1,56¢
Average number of outstanding accot 110,35¢ 93,24° 93,02:
Average monthly extensions as % of average outstga 1.% 2.1% 1.7%
Table excludes extensions on portfolios servicethfcd parties
December 31, 201 December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Number of Number of Number of
Contracts Amount Contracts Amount Contracts Amount

(Dollars in thousands

Contracts with one extensit 19,66: $ 253,36¢ 16,047 $ 189,68 13,00 $ 94,02
Contracts with two extensiol 6,37¢ 79,77¢ 4,397 38,49¢ 4,801 23,21
Contracts with three extensio 1,60: 17,45: 1,48¢ 7,79( 2,822 13,09¢
Contracts with four extensiol 36& 2,71C 634 2,51¢ 1,13¢ 5,371
Contracts with five extensior 74 442 224 1,05¢ 19¢ 1,03¢
Contracts with six extensiot 32 157 50 30¢ 26 124

28,11: % 353,90( 22,83t % 239,86( 21,98: $ 136,86
Gross servicing portfoli 123,94: $ 1,643,47. 99,09¢ $ 1,228,57 89,16! $ 885,99(

Table excludes extensions on portfolios servicethfcd parties
Nor-Accrual Receivables

It is not uncommon for our obligors to fall behimdtheir payments. However, with the diligent effoof our servicing staff and
systems for managing our collection efforts, weutady work with our customers to resolve delingcies. Our staff is trained to employ a
counseling approach to assist our customers win tiash flow management skills and help them iwritize their payment obligations in
order to avoid losing their vehicle to repossessidnmough our experience, we have learned that ara®tract becomes greater than 90 days
past due, it is more likely than not that the dgliency will not be resolved and will ultimately u#isin a charge-off. As a result, we do not
recognize any interest income or retain on ourrizaasheet any accrued interest for contracts teagraater than 90 days past due.

If an obligor exceeds the 90 days past due thrdsitahe end of one period, and then makes thessagepayments such that it
becomes equal to or below 90 days delinquent anldeof a subsequent period, the related contraatdibe restored to full accrual status for
our financial reporting purposes. At the time atcact is restored to full accrual in this mannkere can be no assurance that full repayment
of interest and principal will ultimately be mad#owever, we monitor each obligor's payment perfanoeand are aware of the severity of
his delinquency at any time. The fact that therdplency has been reduced below the 90-day threghalgositive indicator. Should the
contract again exceed the 90-day delinquency kvitle end of any reporting period, it would ada@reflected as a non-accrual account.

Our policy for placing a contract on non-accrualss is independent of our policy to grant an esitem In practice, it would be an
uncommon circumstance where an extension was gramnig the account remained in a non-accrual stsituse the goal of the extension is to
bring the contract current (or nearly current).

Securitization of Automobile Contracts

Throughout the period for which information is preted in this report, we have purchased automabitéracts with the intention of
financing them on a long-term basis through seizatibns, and on an interim basis through wareheousdit facilities. All such financings
have involved identification of specific automobdentracts, sale of those automobile contracts éssdciated rights) to one of our special-
purpose subsidiaries, and issuance of asset-baekeudities to be purchased by institutional invesstbepending on the structure, these
transactions may be accounted for under generedlgpied accounting principles as sales of the aatddencontracts or as secured financings.
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When structured to be treated as a secured fingficiraccounting purposes, the subsidiary is caatedd with us. Accordingly, the
sold automobile contracts and the related debtapeassets and liabilities, respectively, onumaudited condensed consolidated balance
sheet. We then periodically (i) recognize intesgsl fee income on the contracts, (ii) recognizerast expense on the securities issued in the
transaction and (iii) record as expense a provifdowredit losses on the contracts.

Since 1994 we have conducted 65 term securitizafjgenerally quarterly) of automobile contractd thea purchased from dealers
under our regular programs. As of December 31, 2084f those securitizations are active and alldme are structured as secured
financings. Our September 2010 transaction is aly active securitization that is structured asie f the related contracts. From 1994
through April 2008 we generally utilized financ@glarantees for the senior asset-backed notes igstigel securitization. Since September
2010 we have utilized senior subordinated strustwi¢hout any financial guarantees.

Our history of term securitizations, over the mestent ten years, is summarized in the table below:

Recent Asset-Backed Term Securitizations

$ in thousand:

Number of
Term Amount of
Period Securitizations Receivables
2005 4 3 698,35
2006 4 957,68:
2007 3 1,118,09
2008 2 509,02:
2009 0 -
2010 1 103,77:
2011 3 335,59
2012 4 603,50(
2013 4 778,00(
2014 4 923,00(

Our 2012 securitizations included $58.2 milliorcomtracts that were repurchased in 2012 from siations closed in 2006 and
2007. Our 2013 securitizations included $7.4 millio contracts that were repurchased from a sézatiiin closed in 2008. Our 2010
securitization was, in substance, a re-securitinadi the receivables from our second securitizatib2008 which allowed us to take
advantage of a lower interest rate environmertiattime.

From time to time we have also completed financiofgsur residual interests in other securitizatitreg we and our affiliates
previously sponsored. As of December 31, 2014 we loae such residual interest financing outstanding

Since December 2011, our securitizations have detlwa pre-funding feature in which a portion of theeivables to be sold to the
securitization trust were not delivered until aftee initial closing. As a result, our restricteabh balance at December 31, 2014 included
$85.3 million from the proceeds of the sale ofdlkeet-backed notes that were held by a trusteengeddlivery of the remaining receivables.
In January 2015, the requisite additional receisiere delivered to the securitization trust ardeceived the related restricted cash, most
of which was used to repay amounts owed under auelouse credit facilities.

Generally, prior to a securitization transactionfured our automobile contract purchases primarity\wroceeds from warehouse
credit facilities. Our current short-term fundingpacity is $200 million, comprising two credit fidés. The first $100 million credit facility
was established in December 2010. This facility vesewed in March 2013, extending the revolvingqueto March 2015, and adding an
amortization period through March 2017. Our sec®h@0 million credit facility was established in M2912. This facility was renewed in
August 2014, extending the revolving period to Asig2016, and adding an amortization period throighust 2017.
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In a securitization and in our warehouse credilifas, we are required to make certain repregenria and warranties, which are
generally similar to the representations and waiamade by dealers in connection with our pureltdghe automobile contracts. If we
breach any of our representations or warrantiesyilde obligated to repurchase the automobileticamt at a price equal to the principal
balance plus accrued and unpaid interest. We neaylib entitled under the terms of our dealer agee¢to require the selling dealer to
repurchase the contract at a price equal to owh@aise price, less any principal payments madeéyguktomer. Subject to any recourse
against dealers, we will bear the risk of lossepossession and resale of vehicles under autonabiteacts that we repurchase.

Whether a securitization is treated as a secuneshding or as a sale for financial accounting psegothe related special purpose
subsidiary may be unable to release excess cashitahe credit performance of the securitizededbile contracts falls short of pre-
determined standards. Such releases representaahportion of the cash that we use to fund querations. An unexpected deterioration in
the performance of securitized automobile contrectsd therefore have a material adverse effediath our liquidity and results of
operations, regardless of whether such automobiiéracts are treated as having been sold or aadhéeien financed.

Certain of our securitization transactions andwarehouse credit facilities contain various finahciovenants requiring certain
minimum financial ratios and results. Such covesamtlude maintaining minimum levels of liquiditpénet worth and not exceeding
maximum leverage levels. In addition, certain siization and non-securitization related debt contaoss-default provisions that would
allow certain creditors to declare a default ifediadilt occurred under a different facility. As oé€mber 31, 2014 we were in compliance
all such covenants.

Competition

The automobile financing business is highly contjweti We compete with a number of national, regi@mal local finance
companies with operations similar to ours. In additcompetitors or potential competitors includieen types of financial services compar
such as banks, leasing companies, credit uniongding retail loan financing and lease financing fiew and used vehicles, and captive
finance companies affiliated with major automolilenufacturers. Many of our competitors and poténtienpetitors possess substantially
greater financial, marketing, technical, persoramal other resources than we do. Moreover, ourdytufitability will be directly related to
the availability and cost of our capital in relatito the availability and cost of capital to oungmetitors. Our competitors and potential
competitors include far larger, more establishedganies that have access to capital markets f@ounsd commercial paper and investment
grade-rated debt instruments and to other fundigces that may be unavailable to us. Many of tikesgpanies also have long-standing
relationships with dealers and may provide othaairiting to dealers, including floor plan financfiogthe dealers' purchase of automobiles
from manufacturers, which we do not offer.

We believe that the principal competitive factdifeeting a dealer's decision to offer automobilatcacts for sale to a particular
financing source are the monthly payment amountengagilable to the dealer’s customer, the purchase offered for the automobile
contracts, the timeliness of the response to taéedeipon submission of the initial applicatiore tmount of required documentation, the
consistency and timeliness of purchases and thedial stability of the funding source. While wdibee that we can obtain from dealers
sufficient automobile contracts for purchase ahative prices by consistently applying reasonaipléerwriting criteria and making timely
purchases of qualifying automobile contracts, tloare be no assurance that we will do so.

Regulation

Several federal and state consumer protection laeisiding the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, thedéral Equal Credit Opportunity
Act, the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Antl the Federal Trade Commission Act, regulatswoer credit transactions. These laws
mandate certain disclosures with respect to finahegges on automobile contracts and impose cesthar restrictions. In most states, a
license is required to engage in the business mhaising automobile contracts from dealers. Intaatdilaws in a number of states impose
limitations on the amount of finance charges thay e charged by dealers on credit sales. Thelk®daemon Laws enacted by various
states provide certain rights to purchasers witpeet to automobiles that fail to satisfy expreasranties. The application of Lemon Laws or
violation of such other federal and state laws migg rise to a claim or defense of a customer agaealer and its assignees, including us
and those who purchase automobile contracts fromhesdealer agreement contains representatiottsebyealer that, as of the date of
assignment of automobile contracts, no such claindefenses have been asserted or threatenedesjibat to the automobile contracts and
that all requirements of such federal and stats laawve been complied with in all material respe&ithough a dealer would be obligated to
repurchase automobile contracts that involve adbreéd such warranty, there can be no assurancéhatealer will have the financial
resources to satisfy its repurchase obligationgta@®eof these laws also regulate our servicingvaigs, including our methods of collection.
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In July 2010 the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform @whsumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) beealaw. The Dodd~rank
Act restructured the regulation and supervisiotheffinancial services industry and created thes@orer Financial Protection Bureau (the
“CFPB”). The CFPB has rulemaking and enforcemett@ity over “non-banks,” including us. Many of theovisions of the Dodérank Ac
have extended implementation periods and delayedtafe dates and will require extensive rulemakifsg a result, the ultimate effect of the
Dodd-Frank Act on our business cannot be determamdhis time. We believe that we are currentlyniaterial compliance with applicable
statutes and regulations; however, there can l@ssuarance that we are correct, nor that we widllide to maintain such compliance. The past
or future failure to comply with applicable statsignd regulations could have a material advergeteh us. Furthermore, the adoption of
additional statutes and regulations, changes imtleepretation and enforcement of current statatesregulations or the expansion of our
business into jurisdictions that have adopted rstiiegent regulatory requirements than those irctviare currently conduct business could
have a material adverse effect on us. In additioe, to the consumer-oriented nature of our industythe application of certain laws and
regulations, industry participants are regularlyned as defendants in litigation involving allegéalations of federal and state laws and
regulations and consumer law torts, including fraddny of these actions involve alleged violati@figonsumer protection laws. A
significant judgment against us or within the intén connection with any such litigation couldviesa material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or lidity.

Employee:!

As of December 31, 2014, we had 869 employeesbidakdown of the employees is as follows: 11 wergés management
personnel; 445 were servicing personnel; 210 wet@naobile contract origination personnel; 155 waarketing personnel (130 of whom
were marketing representatives); 26 were operatiodssystems personnel; and 22 were administrpéxsonnel. We believe that our
relations with our employees are good. We are matrey to any collective bargaining agreement.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, operating results and financial ¢cardcould be adversely affected by any of theolwlihg specific risks. The trading
price of our common stock could decline due to aefithese risks and other industry risks. Thishigtof risks by its nature cannot be
exhaustive, and the order in which the risks apfgeaot intended as an indication of their relatiweght or importance. In addition to the
risks described below, we may encounter riskswheatlo not currently recognize or that we curredégm immaterial, which may also impair
our business operations and the value of our constomk.

Risks Related to Our Business
We Require a Substantial Amount of Cash to Servic®ur Substantial Debt.
To service our existing substantial indebtednessreguire a significant amount of cash. Our abtlitgenerate cash depends on

many factors, including our successful financial aperating performance. Our financial and openatiperformance depends upon a nur
of factors, many of which are beyond our contrdle3e factors include, without limitation:

. the economic and competitive conditions in the talsaeked securities market;

. the performance of our current and future autoneotzintracts;

. the performance of our residual interests fromsmauritizations and warehouse credit facilities;
. any operating difficulties or pricing pressuresmway experience;

. our ability to obtain credit enhancement for owrséizations;

. our ability to establish and maintain dealer relaships;

. the passage of laws or regulations that affectiversely;

. our ability to compete with our competitors; and

. our ability to acquire and finance automobile caats.
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Depending upon the outcome of one or more of tfeers, we may not be able to generate suffiatash flow from operations or
obtain sufficient funding to satisfy all of our @mtions. Such factors may result in our being Um&i pay our debts timely or as agreed. If
were unable to pay our debts, we would be requaogmirsue one or more alternative strategies, as@elling assets, refinancing or
restructuring our indebtedness or selling additi@gaity capital. These alternative strategies rigit be feasible at the time, might prove
inadequate, or could require the prior consentoflenders. If executed, these strategies couldoethe earnings available to our
shareholders.

We Need Substantial Liquidity to Operate Our Busineas.

We have historically funded our operations printtyptinrough internally generated cash flows, saledebt and equity securities,
including through securitizations and warehouselitfacilities, borrowings under senior securedtdeireements and sales of subordinated
notes. However, we may not be able to obtain seffifunding for our future operations from suchises. During 2008, 2009 and much of
2010, our access to the capital markets was inmgbairéh respect to both short-term and long-terndfang. While our access to such funding
has improved since then, our results of operatifimsncial condition and cash flows have been aagl nontinue to be materially and
adversely affected. We require a substantial amoucash liquidity to operate our business. Amotiweothings, we use such cash liquidity
to:

. acquire automobile contracts;

. fund overcollateralization in warehouse credit liies and securitizations;
. pay securitization fees and expenses;

. fund spread accounts in connection with securitnat

. satisfy working capital requirements and pay opega¢xpenses;

. pay taxes; and

. pay interest expense.

Historically we have matched our liquidity need®to available sources of funding by reducing auguésition of new automobile contracts,
at times to merely nominal levels. There can bassurance that we will continue to be successtill thiat strategy.

Periods of Significant Losses.

From time to time throughout our history we haveumed net losses, most recently over the perigihbéng with the quarter ended
September 30, 2008 and ending with the quarterceBdptember 30, 2011. We were adversely affectatidogconomic recession affecting
the United States as a whole, until recently byaased financing costs and decreased availabflitgmital to fund our purchases of
automobile contracts, and by a decrease in theabiVevel of sales of automobiles and light trucsnilar periods of losses began in the
quarter ended March 31, 1999 through the quargecdDecember 31, 2000 and also from the quartexceS8dptember 30, 2003 through the
quarter ended March 31, 2005.

We expect to earn quarterly profits during 2015y&weer, there can be no assurance as to that exipact@ur expectation of
profitability is a forward-looking statement. Wesduss the assumptions underlying that expectatidenthe caption “Forward-Looking
Statements” in this report. We identify importaattors that could cause actual results to diffenegally in the “Risk Factors” section of this
report, and also under the caption “Forward-Lookitgtements.” One reason for our expectation isviieehave had positive net income
throughout the three years ended December 31, 2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, our pretaxria was $52.2 million, compared to pretax incof®3@.2 million and $9.2
million for the years 2013 and 2012, respectivalyd a pretax loss of $14.5 million for the year R0OQur net income for 2014 was $29.5
million, or $0.92 per diluted share, compared tbineome of $21.0 million, or $.67 per diluted shand $69.4 million, or $2.72 per diluted
share for the years 2013 and 2012 respectivelyaaret loss of $14.5 million, or $0.76 per dilustthre, for 2011. Net income for 2012
includes an income tax benefit of $60.2 million$@r36 per diluted share, related to reversalalaation allowance against our deferred tax
asset. Such tax benefit cannot be expected to.recur

Our Results of Operations Will Depend on Our Ability to Secure and Maintain Adequate Credit and Warehase Financing on
Favorable Terms.

Our business strategy requires that warehouset ¢egilities be available in order to purchase #gigant volumes of receivables.
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Historically, our primary sources of day-to-dayidity have been our warehouse credit facilitiasyhich we sold and contributed
automobile contracts, as often as twice a weegpézial-purpose subsidiaries, where they were '"hoarged” until they were financed on a
long-term basis through the issuance of asset-banétes. Upon issuance of the notes, funds advamu#er one or more warehouse credit
facilities were repaid from the proceeds. Our aurshort-term funding capacity is $200 million, qamsing two credit facilities. The first
$100 million credit facility was established in [2ecber 2010. This facility was renewed in March 2@28ending the revolving period to
March 2015, and adding an amortization period thhoMarch 2017. Our second $100 million credit facivas established in May 2012.
This facility was renewed in August 2014, extending revolving period to August 2016, and addingarortization period through August
2017. See “Management’s Discussion and AnalyskEmdncial Condition and Results of Operations -uidify and Capital Resources —
Liquidity”.

If we are unable to maintain warehouse financingoreptable terms, we might curtail or cease owhases of new automobile
contracts, which could lead to a material adveffeeon our results of operations, financial caiwai and cash flows.

Our Results of Operations Will Depend on Our Ability to Securitize Our Portfolio of Automobile Contrads.

Historically we have depended upon our ability btain permanent financing for pools of automobdatcacts by conducting term
securitization transactions. By "permanent finagtwe mean financing that extends to cover thetérth during which the underlying
automobile contracts are outstanding and requéagayment as the underlying automobile contractsegraid or charged off. By contrast, our
warehouse credit facilities permit us to borrowiagithe value of such receivables only for limiptiods of time. Our past practice and
future plan has been and is to repay loans mads tmder our warehouse credit facilities with thecpeds of securitizations. There can be no
assurance that any securitization transactionbgilhvailable on terms acceptable to us, or athé#.timing of any securitization transaction is
affected by a number of factors beyond our con&may, of which could cause substantial delays, gholy, without limitation:

. market conditions;
. the approval by all parties of the terms of theusiéization;
. our ability to acquire a sufficient number of autusile contracts for securitization.

As stated elsewhere in this report, during 2008201@P we observed adverse changes in the markséforritized pools of
automobile contracts, which made permanent finanicirthe form of securitization transactions difficto obtain and more costly than in
prior periods. These changes included reduceddityuand reduced demand for asset-backed secugescularly for securities carrying a
financial guaranty or for securities backed by puime automobile receivables. Although we have $egmovements in the capital markets
from 2010 through 2013, as compared to 2008 an@,20the trend of improvement in the markets feset-backed securities should reverse,
we could expect a material adverse effect on aulit® of operations.

Our Results of Operations Will Depend on Cash Flowfom Our Residual Interests in Our Securitization Program and Our
Warehouse Credit Facilities.

When we finance our automobile contracts througlusizations and warehouse credit facilities, wesaive cash and a residual
interest in the assets financed. Those financeztsaase owned by the special-purpose subsidiatysiiarmed for the related securitization.
This residual interest represents the right toivecthe future cash flows to be generated by thieraabile contracts in excess of (i) the inte
and principal paid to investors or lenders on titeebtedness issued in connection with the finangindhe costs of servicing the automobile
contracts and (iii) certain other costs incurreddnnection with completing and maintaining theusgization or warehouse credit facility. \
sometimes refer to these future cash flows as 'ssxspread cash flows."

Under the financial structures we have used to idabeir securitizations and warehouse credit féedj excess spread cash flows that
would otherwise be paid to the holder of the reaslidinterest are first used to increase overcoldditeation or are retained in a spread account
within the securitization trusts or the warehousslity to provide liquidity and credit enhancemémt the related securities.

While the specific terms and mechanics vary amaagsictions, our securitization and warehousingeagents generally provide
that we will receive excess spread cash flows drihe amount of overcollateralization and spreadoant balances have reached specified
levels and/or the delinquency, defaults or netdesslated to the automobile contracts in the aabile contract pools are below certain
predetermined levels. In the event delinquenciefaudts or net losses on automobile contracts ekttesse levels, the terms of the
securitization or warehouse credit facility:
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. may require increased credit enhancement, incluainipcrease in the amount required to be on dejposie spread
account to be accumulated for the particular paoff

. in certain circumstances, may permit affected partd require the transfer of servicing on somallasf the securitized or
warehoused contracts from us to an unaffiliatediser.

We typically retain residual interests or use ttentollateral to borrow cash. In any case, theréudxcess spread cash flow received
in respect of the residual interests is integrahtofinancing of our operations. The amount ohaagseived from residual interests depends in
large part on how well our portfolio of securitizadd warehoused automobile contracts performsurlportfolio of securitized and
warehoused automobile contracts has higher delmgyuand loss ratios than expected, then the anafunbney realized from our retained
residual interests, or the amount of money we cobtdin from the sale or other financing of ouiidaal interests, would be reduced. Such
higher than expected losses occurred in 2008 tir@0d0, which had an adverse effect on our operstiinancial condition and cash flows.
While losses have not occurred since the thirdtquaf 2011, should significant losses reoccur veeild expect this to result in material
adverse effects on our future results of operatifinancial condition and cash flows.

If We Are Unable to Obtain Credit Enhancement for Qur Securitizations Upon Favorable Terms, Our Resul of Operations Would
Be Impaired.

In our securitizations from 1994 through 2008, witzed credit enhancement in the form of one orenfinancial guaranty insuran
policies issued by financial guaranty insurance ganies. Each of these policies unconditionally iamevocably guarantees timely interest
and ultimate principal payments on the senior elsasd the securities issued in those securitizatibhese guarantees enabled these securitie
to achieve the highest credit rating available sThirm of credit enhancement reduced the costsio$ecuritizations relative to alternative
forms of credit enhancement available to us atithe. Due to significantly reduced investor deméardsecurities carrying such a financial
guaranty, this form of credit enhancement may moé@onomical for us in the future. The 16 secwiitin transactions we executed from
2010 through 2014 did not utilize financial guagaimsurance policies, and none of the securitissdd in those transactions received the
highest possible credit ratings. As we pursue &usiacuritizations, we may not be able to obtain:

. credit enhancement in any form on terms acceptahls, or at all; or
. similar highest available credit ratings for serglasses of securities to be issued in future #&ations.

We expect to pay a greater credit spread than we $@en in the past between our securitization dieist and risk-free investments.
As of the date of this report, interest rates sk-free debt are close to historical lows, whicliehaffset much of the adverse effect on us of
greater credit spreads. When interest rates orfnégkdebt increase, we would expect increaseddst@xpense, which could adversely affect
our results of operations.

If We Are Unable to Compete Successfully with our @mpetitors, Our Results of Operations May Be Impaied.

The automobile financing business is highly contppeti We compete with a number of national, regi@mal local finance
companies. In addition, competitors or potentiahpetitors include other types of financial servicempanies, such as commercial banks,
savings and loan associations, leasing comparriggit cnions providing retail loan financing andde financing for new and used vehicles
and captive finance companies affiliated with maotomobile manufacturers, such as Ford Motor €@diiporation. Many of our
competitors and potential competitors possess antigly greater financial, marketing, technicaygonnel and other resources than we do,
including greater access to capital markets foeomed commercial paper and investment grade datietinstruments, and to other funding
sources which may be unavailable to us. Moreowvarfuture profitability will be directly related tine availability and cost of our capital
relative to that of our competitors. Many of thesenpanies also have long-standing relationshipls atitomobile dealers and may provide
other financing to dealers, including floor planancing for the dealers' purchases of automohites manufacturers, which we do not offer.
There can be no assurance that we will be ablerttirzie to compete successfully and, as a resaltpay not be able to purchase automobile
contracts from dealers at a price acceptable tahigh could result in reductions in our revenuethe cash flows available to us.
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If Our Dealers Do Not Submit a Sufficient Number ofSuitable Automobile Contracts to Us for PurchaseQur Results of Operations
May Be Impaired.

We are dependent upon establishing and maintameiagionships with a large number of unaffiliatadanobile dealers to supply us
with automobile contracts. During the years endeddbnber 31, 2014 and 2013, no single dealer aceddiot more than 0.4% and 0.9%,
respectively, of the automobile contracts we puselda The agreements we have with dealers to puwehaemobile contracts do not require
dealers to submit a minimum number of automobiletiaets for purchase. The failure of dealers tovgubutomobile contracts that meet our
underwriting criteria could result in reductionsaar revenues or the cash flows available to ud, #rerefore, could have an adverse effect on
our results of operations.

If a Significant Number of Our Automobile Contracts Experience Defaults, Our Results of Operations Mae Impaired.

We specialize in the purchase and servicing ofraagtile contracts to finance automobile purchasesutyyprime customers, those
who have limited credit history, low income, or pasedit problems. Such automobile contracts eathigher risk of nomperformance, hight
delinquencies and higher losses than automobilgacs with more creditworthy customers. While vedidwve that our pricing of the
automobile contracts and the underwriting critaria collection methods we employ enable us to obritr a degree, the higher risks inhel
in automobile contracts with sub-prime customeosassurance can be given that such pricing, aiterd methods will afford adequate
protection against such risks. During the 2008-20d@od we experienced increases in the delinquefignd credit losses on, our
automobile contracts.

If automobile contracts that we purchase and hefgegence defaults to a greater extent than we hatieipated, this could
materially and adversely affect our results of afiens, financial condition, cash flows and liqiydiOur results of operations, financial
condition, cash flows and liquidity, depend, to atemial extent, on the performance of automobilgexts that we purchase, warehouse and
securitize. A portion of the automobile contrattattwe acquire will default or prepay. In the eveihpayment default, the collateral value of
the vehicle securing an automobile contract redltzgus in a repossession will generally not cdkeroutstanding principal balance on that
automobile contract and the related costs of regoW¥e maintain an allowance for credit losses ato@obile contracts held on our balance
sheet, which reflects our estimates of probabldithesses that can be reasonably estimated farrisizations that are accounted for as
financings and warehoused automobile contracthelfllowance is inadequate, then we would recegthie losses in excess of the allowance
as an expense and our results of operations ceutdlbersely affected. In addition, under the teofrsur warehouse credit facilities, we are
not able to borrow against defaulted automobilerearts, including automobile contracts that arehattime of default, funded under our
warehouse credit facilities, which will reduce theercollateralization of those warehouse creditlifees and possibly reduce the amount of
cash flows available to us.

If We Lose Servicing Rights on Our Portfolio of Aubmobile Contracts, Our Results of Operations WouldBe Impaired.
We are entitled to receive servicing fees only ehik act as servicer under the applicable salesamicing agreements governing

our warehouse credit facilities and securitizatidtsder such agreements, we may be terminatedéseseupon the occurrence of certain
events, including:

. our failure generally to observe and perform ogpomsibilities and other covenants;
. certain bankruptcy events; or
. the occurrence of certain events of default unikemdiocuments governing the facilities.

The loss of our servicing rights could materialhdadversely affect our results of operations,rfaial condition and cash flows. O
results of operations, financial condition and cisiv, would be materially and adversely affectbd/é were to be terminated as servicer \
respect to a material portion of our managed pliotfo

If We Lose Key Personnel, Our Results of Operationsay Be Impaired.

Our senior management team averages over 18 yesesvice with us. Charles E. Bradley, Jr., oursRient and CEO, has been our
President since our formation in 1991. Our futyserating results depend in significant part upaabntinued service of our key senior
management personnel, none of whom is bound bymhogment agreement. Our future operating reslsts @epend in part upon our ability
to attract and retain qualified management, te@insales and support personnel for our operati@ospetition for such personnel is intense.
We cannot assure you that we will be successfattiacting or retaining such personnel. Layoff€siB008 may have reduced employee
loyalty, which may in turn result in decreased emgpke performance. Conversely, adverse general atoromnditions may have had a
countervailing effect. The loss of any key emplgytke failure of any key employee to perform in diser current position or our inability to
attract and retain skilled employees, as neededd coaterially and adversely affect our result®pérations, financial condition and cash
flow.
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If We Fail to Comply with Regulations, Our Resultsof Operations May Be Impaired.

Failure to materially comply with all laws and rdagions applicable to us could materially and adebr affect our ability to operate
our business. Our business is subject to numesmesdl and state consumer protection laws andatgus$, which, among other things:

. require us to obtain and maintain certain licerssesqualifications;

. limit the interest rates, fees and other chargeaneallowed to charge;

. limit or prescribe certain other terms of our autdnife contracts;

. require specific disclosures to our customers;

. define our rights to repossess and sell collaterad,

. maintain safeguards designed to protect the sgani confidentiality of customer information.

Our industry is also at times investigated by ratprs and offices of state attorneys general, wbaehid lead to enforcement actions,
fines and penalties, or the assertion of priveagmd and law suits against us. The Federal Traden@ssion (“FTC”) has the authority to
investigate consumer complaints against us, towcinidquiries at its own instance, and to recommamfdrcement actions and seek mone
penalties. The FTC has conducted an inquiry intopoactices, and proposed remedial action agasst 8014, to which we have consented.
See Legal Proceedings — FTC Action. The Consummri€ial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”) has proposedili&gns that will, if adopted as
proposed, place us and other companies similas tder the supervision of the CFPB. Our industigi$o under investigation by the United
States Department of Justice, which is conductmm@uiry that appears to be focused on securitizgiractices. In that inquiry, we received
a subpoena in January 2015, which requires thgtra@uce specified documents. We are cooperatirty thét inquiry. Such inquiry could in
the future result in the imposition of damagesgdir civil or criminal claims and/or penalties. Assurance can be given as to the ultimate
outcome of the inquiry or any resulting proceedsig{vhich might materially and adversely affect us.

If we fail to comply with applicable laws and regtibns, such failure could result in penaltieggéition losses and expenses, damage
to our reputation, or the suspension or terminatibour licenses to conduct business, which wouddemally adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition and stock priceatidition, new federal and state laws or regulatimnchanges in the ways that existing rules
or laws are interpreted or enforced could limit aativities in the future or significantly increathe cost of compliance. Furthermore, judges
or regulatory bodies could interpret current rdetaws differently than the way we do, leadingtich adverse consequences as described
above. The resolution of such matters may requirsiderable time and expense, and if not resolwvedif favor, may result in fines or
damages, and possibly an adverse effect on ourdialacondition.

We believe that we are in compliance in all mategapects with all such laws and regulations, thiatl such laws and regulations
have had no material adverse effect on our altdityperate our business. However, we may be miyesiiad adversely affected if we fail to
comply with:

. applicable laws and regulations;

. changes in existing laws or regulations;

. changes in the interpretation of existing lawsegulations; or

. any additional laws or regulations that may be tthin the future.

Recent Legislation and Proposed Regulations May Havan Adverse Effect on Our Business.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetimn Act ("Dodd-Frank™) mandates the most widegiag overhaul of
financial industry regulation in decades. Dodd-krasas signed into law on July 21, 2010, and is imotihe implementation stage. The law
provides a regulatory framework and requires tegulators, some of which are new regulatory bodieated by Dodd-Frank, draft, review
and approve more than 200 implementing regulatiorsconduct numerous studies that are likely td tesstill more regulations.

The Dodd-Frank Act includes risk retention requiesnts. Six federal agencies recently approved ampéementing these
requirements. The rule, which is set to becomecttfe in October 2015, generally requires sponsbessetsacked securities (ABS), such
us, to retain not less than five percent of thelitmésk of the assets collateralizing the ABS &sce. The rule also sets forth prohibitions on
transferring or hedging the credit risk that thersgor is required to retain. The final rule alseslaot require any retention for securitizations
of commercial loans, commercial mortgages, or aotuila loans if they meet specific standards fohhggality underwriting. If we do not
meet this exception, our future securitizationdtites may be adversely affected by the risk retemequirement.
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In addition, the Commission is considering amendmémnregulations first adopted in 2005 known agukation AB. The
amendments to Regulation AB have yet to be adoguteldare expected to be significantly modified friva form initially proposed, however,
the final form of the amendments to Regulation ABew adopted are expected to affect adversely alitydb complete securitization
transactions without increased expense.

Compliance with these new laws and regulations beagr likely will be costly and can affect operatiesults. Compliance requires
forms, processes, procedures, controls and thasinfrcture to support these requirements. Commiamay create operational constraints and
place limits on pricing. Laws in the financial siees industry are designed primarily for the pratecof consumers. The failure to comply
could result in significant statutory civil andminal penalties, monetary damages, attorneys’dedscosts, possible revocation of licenses
and damage to reputation, brand and valued custaiadionships.

At this time, it is difficult to predict the extetd which the Dodd-Frank Act or the resulting regdigins or the Regulation AB
amendments will affect our business. However, caanpk with these new laws and regulations may résaldditional cost and expenses,
which may adversely affect our results of operatjdimancial condition or liquidity.

If We Experience Unfavorable Litigation Results, Ou Results of Operations May Be Impaired.

We operate in a litigious society and currently, ared may in the future be, named as defendaitggation, including individual
and class action lawsuits under consumer credilswmer protection, theft, privacy, data securitgpmated dialing equipment, debt
collections and other laws. Many of these casesemtenovel issues on which there is no clear lpgadedent, which increases the difficulty
predicting both the potential outcomes and costiefénding these cases. We are subject to regylexaminations, investigations, inquiries,
litigation, and other actions by licensing authiest state attorneys general, the Federal Traden@igsion, the Consumer Financial Protection
Bureau and other governmental bodies relating taotivities. The litigation and regulatory acticswhich we are or may become subject
involve or may involve potential compensatory onjpive damage claims, fines, sanctions or injuretiglief that, if granted, could require us
to pay damages or make other expenditures in arsolat could have a material adverse effect orfinancial position and our results of
operations. We have recorded loss contingenciearitinancial statements only for matters on wHadses are probable and can be
reasonably estimated. Our assessments of thesersiattolve significant judgments, and may chamgmftime to time. Actual losses
incurred by us in connection with judgments orleetents of these matters may be more than ouriassdceserves. Furthermore, defending
lawsuits and responding to governmental inquirieisieestigations, regardless of their merit, cooddcostly and divert management’s
attention from the operation of our business. Uafatsle outcomes in any such current or future grditeys could materially and adversely
affect our results of operations, financial coratis and cash flows. As a consumer finance compa@yare subject to various consumer
claims and litigation seeking damages and statyienalties based upon, among other things, disdaraccuracies and wrongful
repossession, which could take the form of a pfiitlass action complaint. We, as the assigridmance contracts originated by dealers,
may also be named as a co-defendant in lawswats iy consumers principally against dealers. Webse subject to other litigation common
to the automobile industry and to businesses iriggnThe damages and penalties claimed by consuemelrothers in these types of matters
can be substantial. The relief requested by thatfffa varies but includes requests for compensatstatutory and punitive damages.

While we intend to vigorously defend ourselves agasuch proceedings, there is a chance that sultsef operations, financial
condition and cash flows could be materially andessely affected by unfavorable outcomes.

Negative publicity associated with litigation, govexmental investigations, regulatory actions, and dier public statements could
damage our reputation.

From time to time there are negative news stotiesiathe “sub-prime” credit industry. Such stonesay follow the announcements

of litigation or regulatory actions involving us others in our industry. Negative publicity about alleged or actual practices or about our
industry generally could adversely affect our stpdke and our ability to retain and attract empley.
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If We Experience Problems with Our Originations, Acounting or Collection Systems, Our Results of Opations May Be Impaired.

We are dependent on our receivables originatiaatmumnting and collection systems to service outfpliw of automobile contracts.
Such systems are vulnerable to damage or inteomufitom natural disasters, power loss, telecomnatiuio failures, terrorist attacks,
computer viruses and other events. A significambiner of our systems are not redundant, and oustgiseecovery planning is not sufficient
for every eventuality. Our systems are also sultfebreak-ins, sabotage and intentional acts oflaism by internal employees and
contractors as well as third parties. Despite aeggutions we may take, such problems could ré@sidterruptions in our services, which
could harm our reputation and financial conditidfe do not carry business interruption insurancécent to compensate us for losses that
may result from interruptions in our service agsuit of system failures. Such systems problemkiqoaterially and adversely affect our
results of operations, financial conditions anchdé®ws.

We Have Substantial Indebtedness.

We currently have and will continue to have a saisal amount of indebtedness. At December 31, 2@&had approximately
$1,684.1 million of debt outstanding. Such debtsisted primarily of $1,598.5 million of securitiza trust debt, and also included $1.3
million of debt used for the acquisition of thedside portfolio, $56.8 million of warehouse lindsedit, $12.3 million of residual interest
financing and $15.2 million in subordinated renelgaintes. We are also currently offering the sulmaigd renewable notes to the public on
a continuous basis, and such notes have matutitdésange from three months to 10 years.

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affiecfinancial condition by, among other things:

. increasing our vulnerability to general adversenecoic and industry conditions;

. requiring us to dedicate a substantial portionwfaash flows from operations to payments on odelmedness, thereby
reducing amounts available for working capital,itd@xpenditures and other general corporate Be§

. limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industmhinh we operate;

. placing us at a competitive disadvantage comparedit competitors that have less debt; and

. limiting our ability to borrow additional funds.

Although we believe we are able to service andyepah debt, there is no assurance that we wiidbe to do so. If we do not
generate sufficient operating profits, our abititymake required payments on our debt would be imgaFailure to pay our indebtedness
when due would give rise to various remedies imfaf any unpaid creditors, and creditors’ exercitsuch remedies could have a material
adverse effect on our earnings.

Because We Are Subject to Many Restrictions in OuExisting Credit Facilities and Securitization Transactions, Our Ability to Pay
Dividends or Engage in Specified Transactions May &Impaired.

The terms of our existing credit facilities, teretaritizations and our other outstanding debt irepsignificant operating and
financial restrictions on us and our subsidiaried @equire us to meet certain financial tests. &hrestrictions may have an adverse effect on
our business activities, results of operationsfarahcial condition. These restrictions may algmsicantly limit or prohibit us from engagir
in certain transactions, including the following:

. incurring or guaranteeing additional indebtedness;

. making capital expenditures in excess of agreed @poounts;

. paying dividends or other distributions to our geiders or redeeming, repurchasing or retiringoaypital stock or
subordinated obligation

. making investments;

. creating or permitting liens on our assets or $sets of our subsidiaries;

. issuing or selling capital stock of our subsidiarie

. transferring or selling our assets;

. engaging in mergers or consolidations;

. permitting a change of control of our company;

. liquidating, winding up or dissolving our company;

. changing our name or the nature of our businegtieonames or nature of the business of our sarsdi and

. engaging in transactions with our affiliates outsile normal course of business.
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These restrictions may limit our ability to obtadditional sources of capital, which may limit @lnility to generate earnings. In
addition, the failure to comply with any of the emants of one or more of our debt agreements @aulde a default under other debt
agreements that may be outstanding from time te.téndefault, if not waived, could result in acecakon of the related indebtedness, in
which case such debt would become immediately ddepayable. A continuing default or acceleratiomié or more of our credit facilities
or any other debt agreement, would likely causefaudt under other debt agreements that otherwiggdanot be in default, in which case all
such related indebtedness could be acceleratdds lbccurs, we may not be able to repay our debboow sufficient funds to refinance our
indebtedness. Even if any new financing is avatlaiblmay not be on terms that are acceptable tw itanay not be sufficient to refinance all
of our indebtedness as it becomes due.

In addition, the transaction documents for our gézations restrict our securitization subsidiarfeom declaring or making payment
to us of (i) any dividend or other distribution onin respect of any shares of their capital stockji) any payment on account of the
purchase, redemption, retirement or acquisitioaryf option, warrant or other right to acquire skarktheir capital stock unless (in each ¢
at the time of such declaration or payment (aner afiving effect thereto) no amount payable unagrteansaction document with respect to
the related securitization is then due and owing umpaid. These restrictions may limit our abitityreceive distributions in respect of the
residual interests from our securitization fa@kti which may limit our ability to generate earrsing

Risks Related to General Factors
If The Economy of All or Certain Regions of the Unied States Falls into Recession, Our Results of O¢ions May Be Impaired.

Our business is directly related to sales of netviged automobiles, which are sensitive to employmeges, prevailing interest ra
and other domestic economic conditions. Delinques)aiepossessions and losses generally increasg éaonomic slowdowns or recessit
Because of our focus on sub-prime customers, thmb@tes of delinquencies, repossessions anddassour automobile contracts could be
higher under adverse economic conditions than tegperienced in the automobile finance industrgeneral, particularly in the states of
California, Texas, Georgia, Pennsylvania and Ostates in which our automobile contracts are ggagcally concentrated. Any sustained
period of economic slowdown or recession could eblg affect our ability to acquire suitable autdrit® contracts, or to securitize pools of
such automobile contracts. The timing of any ecanahanges is uncertain, and weakness in the ecpronid have an adverse effect on
business and that of the dealers from which welmse automobile contracts and result in reduciioosir revenues or the cash flows
available to us.

Our Results of Operations May Be Impaired as a Reduof Natural Disasters.

Our automobile contracts are geographically comaged in the states of California and Texas. States may be particularly
susceptible to natural disasters: earthquake icdbe of California, and hurricanes and floodingéxas. Natural disasters, in those states or
others, could cause a material number of our velalchasers to lose their jobs, or could damagestroy vehicles that secure our
automobile contracts. In either case, such eventklaesult in our receiving reduced collectionsoam automobile contracts, and could thus
result in reductions in our revenues or the cashdlavailable to us.

If an Increase in Interest Rates Results in a Decase in Our Cash Flows from Excess Spread, Our Ressilof Operations May Be
Impaired.

Our profitability is largely determined by the difence, or "spread,” between the effective intaestwe receive on the automobile
contracts that we acquire and the interest ratgahpa under warehouse credit facilities and orebset-backed securities issued in our
securitizations. In the past, disruptions in thekatfor asset-backed securities resulted in areas® in the interest rates we paid on asset-
backed securities. Should similar disruptions talleee in the future, we may pay higher interegtgain asset-backed securities issued in the
future. Although we have the ability to partiallffset increases in our cost of funds by increas#sg we charge to dealers when purchasing
automobile contracts, or by demanding higher ister@tes on automobile contracts we purchase, ther@ assurance that such actions will
materially offset increases in interest we payinarice our managed portfolio. As a result, an iasedn prevailing interest rates could cause
us to receive less excess spread cash flows omabtke contracts, and thus could adversely affectearnings and cash flows. See
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About KetrRisk - Interest Rate Risk.”
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Our Common Stock Is Thinly-Traded.

Our stock is thinly-traded, which means investoils vave limited opportunities to sell their shafscommon stock in the open
market. Limited trading of our common stock alsatcibutes to more volatile price fluctuations. Besa there historically has been low
trading volume in our common stock, there can bassurance that our stock price will not declina@ditional shares are sold in the public
market. As of December 31, 2014, our directorsexetutive officers collectively owned 4,234,994 rslseof our common stock, or
approximately 17%.

We Do Not Intend to Pay Dividends on Our Common Sik.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock. We currently intend to retaig future earnings and do |
expect to pay any dividends in the foreseeabladutbee " Dividend Policy ".

Forward-Looking Statements

Discussions of certain matters contained in thi®remay constitute forward-looking statements witihe meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (thecuBges Act ") and Section 21E of the Exchangé, Aad as such, may involve risks and
uncertainties. These forward-looking statementtedio, among other things, expectations of thenbas environment in which we operate,
projections of future performance, perceived oppaties in the market and statements regardingrossion and vision. You can generally
identify forward-looking statements as statementgaining the words " will, " " would, " " believ&," may, " " could, " " expect,
anticipate, " " intend, " " estimate, " " assumer 'bther similar expressions. Our actual resuksfqggmance and achievements may differ
materially from the results, performance and adcmesnts expressed or implied in such forward-lookitagements. The discussion under "
Risk Factors " identifies some of the factors thaght cause such a difference, including the foltayy

. changes in general economic conditions;

. changes in performance of our automobile contracts;

. increases in interest rates;

. our ability to generate sufficient operating anthficing cash flows;
. competition;

. level of losses incurred on contracts in our madag®tfolio; and

. adverse decisions by courts or regulators

Forward-looking statements are not guaranteesrédqmeance. They involve risks, uncertainties arglagptions. Actual results may
differ from expectations due to many factors beyoudability to control or predict, including thodescribed herein, and in documents
incorporated by reference in this report. For thetatements, we claim the protection of the safbdrdor forward-looking statements
contained in the Private Securities Litigation RafdAct of 1995.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update amyard-looking information. You are advised to agdbhsny additional disclosure
we make in our periodic reports filed with the SEBee " Where You Can Find More Information " aridldtuments Incorporated by
Reference. "

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

Our principal executive offices are located in Megas, Nevada. Our operating headquarters areslb@atrvine, California, where
we lease approximately 60,000 square feet of genéfiee space from an unaffiliated lessor. The @alrbase rent is approximately $1.77
million, increasing to approximately $1.80 millitirough 2016.

In March 1997, we established a branch collectamilify in Chesapeake, Virginia. We lease approxetyal6,500 square feet of
general office space in Chesapeake, Virginia,latse rent that is approximately $280,000 per ypareasing to approximately $325,000
through 2018.

The remaining three regional servicing centers pgautotal of approximately 68,000 square feeeakkd space in Las Vegas,

Nevada; Maitland, Florida; and Lombard, lllinoidiéltermination dates of such leases range from 202819. The annual base rent for tt
facilities total approximately $1.43 million increiag to approximately $1.64 million through 2019.

25




Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Consumer LitigationWe are routinely involved in various legal proceeg resulting from our consumer finance activitied
practices, both continuing and discontinued. Coresrman and do initiate lawsuits against us altggiolations of law applicable to
collection of receivables, and such lawsuits somesi allege that resolution as a class action ieogpipte. We are currently defending two
such purported class actions, one of which has bettled by agreement with the plaintiffs (suchleetent remains subject to approval by the
court). For the most part, we have legal and fdateBenses to such claims, which we routinely csinte settle (for immaterial amounts)
depending on the particular circumstances of eash.dNe have recorded a liability as of DecembefB14 with respect to such matters, in
the aggregate.

FTC Action. In July 2013, the staff of the U.S. Federal Tr&denmission (“FTC") advised us that they were preddo recommend
that the FTC initiate a lawsuit against us relatmgllegedly unfair trade practices, and simultarsty advised that settlement of such issues
by consent decree might be achieved. On May 2%,20& FTC announced its agreement to settle theniay filing a lawsuit against us,
and requesting, with our consent, that the coudrean agreed judgment against us. The lawsuieavasof the FTC's inquiry into our
business practices. Under the agreed settlemenasde approximately $1.9 million of restitutiong@gyments and $1.6 million of account
adjustments to our customers in September 201d,5p&2 million penalty to the federal governmeniume 2014, and implemented
procedural changes, all pursuant to a consent el¢lcat was entered by the court in June 2014.

Department of Justice SubpoefaJanuary 2015, we were served with a subpoerhebly).S. Department of Justice directing us to
produce certain documents relating to our and obsigiaries’ and affiliates’ origination and set¢ization of sub-prime automobile contracts
since 2005 in connection with an investigation iy t).S. Department of Justice in contemplation cif/& proceeding for potential violations
of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, &rdorcement Act of 1989. Among other matters,dhilepoena requests information rela
to the underwriting criteria used to originate gasitomobile contracts and the representationsvannties relating to those underwriting
criteria that were made in connection with the siéization of the automobile contracts. We are agieeveral other securitizers of sub-prime
automobile receivables who have received such poara in 2015. We are investigating these mattéesnally and are cooperating with the
request. Such investigation could in the futureiltas the imposition of damages, fines or civilaiminal claims and/or penalties. No
assurance can be given as to the ultimate outcothe investigation or any resulting proceeding¢g)ich might materially and adversely
affect us.

In General. There can be no assurance as to the outcomey of the matters referenced above. We have redadiability as of
December 31, 2014, which represents our best dstinfigrobable incurred losses for legal contingegidncluding all of the matters
described or referenced above. The amount of Idksésnay ultimately be incurred cannot be estichatih certainty. However, based on
such information as is available to us, we beligad the range of reasonably possible losses &lethal proceedings and contingencies
described or referenced above, as of December034, 2nd in excess of the liability we have recdrde from $0 to $1.5 million.

Accordingly, we believe that the ultimate resoluataf such legal proceedings and contingencies:, tfking into account our current
litigation reserves, should not have a materiakast effect on our consolidated financial conditMfe note, however, that in light of the
uncertainties inherent in contested proceedingsetban be no assurance that the ultimate resolatithese matters will not significantly
exceed the reserves we have accrued; as a résuttutcome of a particular matter may be matesialr operating results for a particular
period, depending on, among other factors, thedfitiee loss or liability imposed and the leveloofr income for that period.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Charles E. Bradley, Jr, 55, has been our President and a director simcéormation in March 1991, and was elected Chairrof
the Board of Directors in July 2001. In January2,99r. Bradley was appointed Chief Executive Offiderom April 1989 to November
1990, he served as Chief Operating Officer of Batrmad Company, a private investment firm. Fromt&aper 1987 to March 1989, Mr.
Bradley, Jr. was an associate of The Harding Graypivate investment banking firm. Mr. Bradley domt currently serve on the board of
directors of any other publicly-traded companies.
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Jeffrey P. Fritz55, has been Executive Vice President and Chief Fimdu@fficer since March 2014. Prior to that, he \@&nior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer sinceaifp006. He was Senior Vice President of Accoogtirom August 2004 through March
2006 and served as a consultant to us from May gd@digust 2004. He also served as our Chief Fild@fficer from our inception throug
May 1999. He is a licensed Certified Public Accaumtand has previously practiced public accounting.

Robert E. Ried51, has been Executive Vice President and Chiefddipg Officer since March 2014. Mr. Ried| joine®§& in 2003
and has held a number of different senior positisitisin the company since then, including Chiefdatment Officer, Chief Financial Officer
and Senior Vice President, Risk Management. Poi@RS, Mr. Riedl was a Principal at Northwest Gapippreciation ("NCA"), a middle
market private equity firm, from 1999 to 2002. Mied| was an investment banker for ContiFinanceies, Jefferies & Company and
PaineWebber from 1986 until 1999.

Michael T. Lavin42, has been Executive Vice President - Chief L&ffiter since March 2014. Prior to that, he was $enior
Vice President — General Counsel since March 28&8jor Vice President and Corporate Counsel sinag 2009 and our Vice President-
Legal since joining the Company in November of 2004r. Lavin was previously engaged as a law cherll an associate with the San Diego
based large law firm (now defunct) of Edwards, S&dgyron from 1996 through 2000 and then as ancas®with the Orange County ba:
firm of Trachtman & Trachtman from 2000 through 20Mr. Lavin also clerked for the San Diego Didtédtorney’s office and Orange
County Public Defender’s office.

Mark A. Creatura55, has been Senior Vice President — General Cbsinee October 1996. From October 1993 througto st
1996, he was Vice President and General Counséiedlhane Technologies, Inc., a polyurethane chdmfoamulator. Mr. Creatura was
previously engaged in the private practice of laihwhe Los Angeles law firm of Troy & Gould Pro&snal Corporation, from October 19
through October 1993.

Christopher Terry47, has been Senior Vice President — Asset Receuecg August 2013. Prior to that was our Seni@eVi
President of Servicing since May 2005, and priched was Senior Vice President - Asset Recoveryesdanuary 2003. He joined us in
January 1995 as a loan officer, held a seriesafessively more responsible positions, and was ptednto Vice President - Asset Recovery
in June 1999. Mr. Terry was previously a branch agan with Norwest Financial from 1990 to Octobe®4.9

Teri L. Robinson52, has been Senior Vice President of Originatgnee April 2007. Prior to that, she held the poribf Vice
President of Originations since August 1998. Sireephthe Company in June 1991 as an Operationsdisgand held a series of
successively more responsible positions. Previohdty Robinson held an administrative position e2® & Associates.

Curtis K. Powell57, has been Senior Vice President — Project Dpugdmt since May 2010. Previously he was our Seviice
President -Marketing from March 2007 to May 2010. Prior tottHae was our Senior Vice President of Originatifsosn June 2001 to Marc¢
2007. Prior to that, he was our Senior Vice PragideMarketing, from April 1995 to June 2001. Hagd us in January 1993 as an
independent marketing representative until beimqgpayped Regional Vice President of Marketing fouern California in November 1994.
From June 1985 through January 1993, Mr. Powelliwése retail automobile sales and leasing busines

Laurie A. Straten46, has been Senior Vice President of Servicing sineguat 2013. Prior to that, she was our Senior Piesider
of Asset Recovery since April 2013, and before #hegt held the position of Vice President of Assetd¥ery starting in April 2005. She
started with the Company in March 1996 as a barkysgpecialist and took on more responsibility witAsset Recovery over time. Prior to
joining CPS she worked for the FDIC and servedvenWnited States Marine Corj

Richard B. Haskell48, has been Senior Vice President of Systems andNRaslagement since April 2013. Prior to that, he &l
positions of Vice President of Systems and Risk &fgment since January 2007, and Vice Presidenskf\anagement since January 2(
He joined the Company in March 1994 as a data etérk in the Originations Department and held rgeseof successively more responsible
positions. Previously, Mr. Haskell held a positamloan officer at Trust One Mortgage.

John P. Harton 50, has been Senior Vice President - MarketingesMarch 2014. Prior to that, he held the pasitibVice
President — Marketing since April 2010. He joinbd Company in April 1996 as a loan officer, hekkaes of successively more responsible
positions, and was promoted to Vice President gi@ations in June 2007. Mr. Harton was previousbyanch manager with American
General Finance from 1990 to March 1996.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Rity Securities

The Company’s Common Stock is traded on the Na&laljal Market, under the symbol " CPSS.He following table sets forth tt
high and low sale prices as reported by NasdagdioCommon Stock for the periods shown.

High Low
January - March 31, 201: 11.94 5.37
April 1 - June 30, 201 12.79 6.82
July 1- September 30, 201 7.62 5.61
October 1- December 31, 201 9.45 5.86
January - March 31, 201 9.64 6.63
April 1 - June 30, 201 7.99 6.33
July 1- September 30, 201 8.22 6.41
October 1- December 31, 201 8.00 6.36

As of January 1, 2015, there were 43 holders afrceof the Company’s Common Stock. To date, we mtedeclared or paid any
dividends on our Common Stock. The payment of gitlividends, if any, on our Common Stock is witthia discretion of the Board of
Directors and will depend upon our income, capiguirements and financial condition, and othezvaht factors. The instruments goverr
our outstanding debt place certain restrictionshenpayment of dividends. We do not intend to deciy dividends on our Common Stock
in the foreseeable future, but instead intend taimeany cash flow for use in our operations.

The table below presents information regardingtantding options to purchase our Common Stock &ecember 31, 2014:

Number of
Number of securities
securities to be remaining
issued upon Weighted average available for
exercise of exercise price of future issuance
outstanding outstanding under equity
options, warrants options, warrants compensation
Plan category and rights and rights plans
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs $ 10,828,24 $ 4.08 2,108,38:
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechutgers - - -
Total $ 10,828,24 $ 4.0¢ 2,108,38.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities in the FourtiQuarter

Approximate

Total Number of Dollar Value of

Total Shares Purchase( Shares that May
Number of Average as Part of Publicly Yet be Purchased

Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Under the Plans

Period(1) Purchased per Share or Programs(2) or Programs

October 201« - $ - - $ 986,19:
November 201- - - - 986,19:
December 2014 - - — 986,19:

Total -  $ - -

(1) Each monthly period is the calendar mor

(2) Through December 31, 2014, our board of directad huthorized the purchase of up to $34.5 millibour outstanding securities, whi
program was first announced in our annual reporttfte year 2002, filed on March 26, 2003. All puaisks described in the table abs
were under the plan announced in March 2003, whih no fixed expiration date. As of December 3142@e have purchased $5.0
million in principal amount of debt securities a®#8.4 million of our common stock representing 9,820 shares

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our selected constdididinancial data and operating data as of anthiodates indicated. The data
under the captions " Statement of Operations Dated™ Balance Sheet Data " have been derived fnanmaudited consolidated financial
statements. The remainder is derived from othearoscof ours. You should read the selected core@itifinancial data together with "
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operations " and our addited unaudited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto that ateded in this report, and in our quarterly and peig filings.
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As of and
For the Year Ended December 31

(in thousands, except per share date 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Statement of Operations Date
Revenues

Interest incom $ 286,73:  $ 231,33 $ 175,31:  $ 127,85t % 137,09(

Servicing fee 1,37¢ 3,09z 2,30¢ 4,34¢ 7,651

Other incom 12,14¢ 10,40t 9,58¢ 10,927 10,43¢

Gain on cancellation of debt - 10,947 — — —

Total revenues 300,25¢ 255,77! 187,20t 143,13; 155,18!

Expenses

Employee cosi 50,12¢ 42,96( 35,57 32,27( 33,81«

General and administrati 39,26: 32,75: 29,53 26,75¢ 26,06¢

Interest expens 50,39t 58,17¢ 79,42 83,05¢ 81,57

Provision for credit loss¢ 108,22¢ 76,86¢ 33,49t 15,50¢ 29,92:

Provision for contingent liabilities — 7,841 — — —

Total expenses 248,01 218,60: 178,02: 157,59 171,38(

Income (loss) before income tax expense (bel 52,24: 37,17: 9,18 (14,460 (16,195
Income tax expense (benefit) 22,72¢ 16,16¢ (60,227 — 16,98
Net income (loss $ 2951¢ $ 21,000 $ 69,40¢ $ (14,460 $  (33,17)
Earnings (loss) per shi-basic $ 1.1 $ 0.9¢ $ 356 $ (0.7¢) $ (1.90
Earnings (loss) per shediluted $ 09z $ 067 $ 272 $ (0.7¢) $ (1.90
Pre-tax income (loss) per shi-basic (1) $ 20¢ % 172 % 047 $ (0.7¢) $ (0.99)
Pre-tax income (loss) per shi-diluted (2) $ 162 % 118 % 03¢ $ (0.7¢) $ (0.99)
Weighted average shares outstan-basic 25,04( 21,53¢ 19,47: 19,01z 17,471
Weighted average shares outstan-diluted 32,03: 31,574 25,47¢ 19,01 17,471
Balance Sheet Dat:
Total asset $ 183305 $ 1,39,36 $ 1,037,620 $ 890,05( $ 742,39(
Cash and cash equivalel 17,85¢ 22,11: 12,96¢ 10,09¢ 16,25:
Restricted cash and equivale 175,38. 132,28 104,44! 159,22¢ 123,95¢
Finance receivables, n 1,534,49 1,115,43 744,74¢ 506,27¢ 552,45:
Finance receivables measured at fair vi 1,664 14,47¢ 59,66¢ 160,25: -
Residual interest in securitizatio 68 854 4,82¢ 4,414 3,841
Warehouse lines of crec 56,83¢ 9,45 21,73 25,39! 45,56¢
Residual interest financir 12,32] 19,09¢ 13,77 21,88 39,44(
Debt secured by receivables measured at fair
value 1,25( 13,117 57,107 166,82¢ -
Securitization trust del 1,598,49 1,177,55! 792,49° 583,06! 567,72.
Long-term debi 15,23: 57,70 73,41¢ 79,09 65,21(
Shareholders' equit 127,25: 94,60: 61,31: (14,207 2,421

(1) Income (loss) before income tax benefit dividedbighted average shares outstan«-basic. Included for illustrative purposes because
some of the periods presented include significaeine tax benefits while other periods have neitmyme tax benefit nor expen

(2) Income (loss) before income tax benefit divided/bighted average shares outstanc-diluted. Included for illustrative purposes bece
some of the periods presented include significacine tax benefits while other periods have neitimyme tax benefit nor expen
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As of and
For the Year Ended December 31

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Contract Purchases/Securitizations
Automobile contract purchas $ 944.94:  $ 764,080 $ 551,74. $ 284,23t $ 113,02:
Automobile contracts securitized - structured i

sales - - - - 103,77:
Automobile contracts securitized - structured i

secured financing 924,00( 778,00( 603,50( 335,59¢ -
Managed Portfolio Data
Contracts held by consolidated subsidia $ 164053 $ 1,207,690 $ 807,88t $ 546,01t $  597,14.
Fireside portfolic 1,66¢ 14,78¢ 60,80« 172,16° -
Contracts held by nconsolidated subsidiarit 39C 4,07¢ 17,29¢ 42,97 83,96¢
Third party portfolios (1) 1,33( 4,86¢ 11,58¢ 33,49: 75,09;
Total managed portfoli $ 1643920 $ 1,231,42; $ 89757 $ 794,64¢ % 756,20:
Average managed portfol 1,422,87! 1,081,933 822,57: 711,72¢ 928,97
Weighted average fixed effective interest rate

(total managed portfolio) (2 19.8% 20.0% 19.6% 18.5% 16.2%
Core operating expense (% of average manag

portfolio) (3) 6.3% 7.0% 7.9% 8.3% 6.4%
Allowance for finance credit loss: $ 61,46( $ 39,62¢ $ 19,59 3 10,35 % 13,16¢
Allowance for finance credit losses (% of total

contracts held by consolidated subsidiari 3.7% 3.3% 2.4% 1.9% 2.2%
Aggregate allowance for finance credit losses

repossessions in inventc $ 79,28¢ % 54,408  $ 2597¢  $ 15,11¢  $ 29,44¢

Aggregate allowance for finance credit losses
of total repossessions in inventory and

contracts held by consolidated subsidiari 4.8% 4.5% 3.2% 2.8% 4.9%
Total delinquencies (2) ( 5.5% 4.8% 4.0% 4.4% 5.7%
Total delinquencies and repossessions (2 7.2% 6.8% 5.5% 6.2% 9.2%
Net charg-offs (2) (5) 5.8% 4.7% 3.6% 4.8% 9.0%

(1) Receivables related to the third party portfolios,which we earn only a servicing fi

(2) Excludes receivables related to the third partytfmios.

(3) Total expenses excluding provision for credfisies, provision for contingent liabilities, intsr&xpense, loss on sale of receivables and
impairment loss on residual asse

(4) For further information regarding delinquencies atiet managed portfolio, see the table captic" Delinquency Experiencé,in ltem 1
Part | of this report and the notes to that tat

(5) Net charg-offs include the remaining principal balance, aftee application of the net proceeds from theiligtion of the vehicle
(excluding accrued and unpaid interest) and amouotected subsequent to the date of the chargenatfiding some recoveries which
have been classified as other income in the accagipg consolidated financial statements. For furtinlformation regarding charge-
offs, see the table caption" Net Charg-Off Experience” in Item |, Part | of this report and the notes kat table.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion And Analysis Of Rancial Condition And Results Of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with our consolidated financiatstments and notes thereto and
other information included or incorporated by refere herein.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company. Our businesspsrchase and service retail automobile corgradginated primarily by
franchised automobile dealers and, to a lessengtig select independent dealers in the UniteteSta the sale of new and used
automobiles, light trucks and passenger vans. Tirauwr automobile contract purchases, we provid&ent financing to the customers of
dealers who have limited credit histories, low imes or past credit problems, who we refer to aspsimbe customers. We serve as an
alternative source of financing for dealers, féailng sales to customers who otherwise might eadltie to obtain financing from traditional
sources, such as commercial banks, credit unioth$hemncaptive finance companies affiliated with enagutomobile manufacturers. In
addition to purchasing installment purchase cotdrdzectly from dealers, we have also (i) acquiredallment purchase contracts in four
merger and acquisition transactions, (ii) purchasedaterial amounts of vehicle purchase money |daom non-affiliated lenders, and (jii)
directly originated an immaterial amount of vehiplachase money loans by lending money directlyottsumers. In this report, we refer to
all of such contracts and loans as "automobilerects."

We were incorporated and began our operations irciMa991. From inception through December 31, 20&thave purchased a
total of approximately $11.3 billion of automobdentracts from dealers. In addition, we acquireatal of approximately $822.3 million of
automobile contracts in mergers and acquisitiorZ0B2, 2003, 2004 and, most recently in Septembgt.2The September 2011 acquisition
consisted of approximately $217.8 million of autdrite contracts that we purchased from Fireside Ba#rRleasanton, California. In 2004
and 2009, we were appointed as a third-party serdar certain portfolios of automobile contractgymated and owned by non-affiliated
entities. From 2008 through 2010, our managed @latflecreased each year due to our strategy dfrigncontract purchases to conserve
liquidity during the financial crisis and resultingcession, as discussed further below. HoweuwsredDctober 2009, we have gradually
increased contract purchase which, in turn, hadtezbin recent increases in our managed portf®acent contract purchase volumes and
managed portfolio levels are shown in the tablewel

Contract Purchases and Outstanding Managed Portfodi
$ in thousand:

Contracts

Purchased in Managed Portfolio
Year Period at Period End
2008 $ 296,81 % 1,664,12;
2009 8,59¢ 1,194,72;
2010 113,02: 756,20
2011 284,23t 794,64¢
2012 551,74 897,57!
2013 764,08 1,231,42;
2014 944,94 1,643,92

Our principal executive offices are in Las Vegasydda. Most of our operational and administrativecfions take place in Irvir
California. Credit and underwriting functions amrformed primarily in our California branch withrtan of these functions also performe
our Florida and Nevada branches. We service ownzaltile contracts from our California, Nevada, Viig, Florida and lllinois branches.

We purchase contracts in our own name (“CPS”) antl July 2008, also in the name of our wholly-ednsubsidiary, TFC.
Programs marketed under the CPS name are inteadetivte a wide range of sub-prime customers, piliyrtarough franchised new car
dealers. Our TFC program served vehicle purchasdisted in the U.S. Armed Forces, primarily thrbugdependent used car dealers. In
2008, we suspended contract purchases under oupiidgfam. We purchase automobile contracts withrttention of financing them on a
long-term basis through securitizations. Secutitre are transactions in which we sell a specifiedl of contracts to a special purpose
subsidiary of ours, which in turn issues asset-eddecurities to fund the purchase of the poobatracts from us.
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Securitization and Warehouse Credit Facilities

Throughout the period for which information is preted in this report, we have purchased automabitéracts with the intention of
financing them on a long-term basis through seieatibns, and on an interim basis through wareheousdit facilities. All such financings
have involved identification of specific automobdentracts, sale of those automobile contracts éssdciated rights) to one of our special-
purpose subsidiaries, and issuance of asset-baekeudiities to be purchased by institutional invesstbepending on the structure, these
transactions may be accounted for under generedlgpied accounting principles as sales of the aatdlencontracts or as secured financings.

When structured to be treated as a secured fingficiraccounting purposes, the subsidiary is caatedd with us. Accordingly, the
sold automobile contracts and the related debtapmeassets and liabilities, respectively, onumaudited condensed consolidated balance
sheet. We then periodically (i) recognize intesgsl fee income on the contracts, (ii) recognizerast expense on the securities issued in the
transaction and (iii) record as expense a provifowredit losses on the contracts.

Since 1994 we have conducted 65 term securitizafjgenerally quarterly) of automobile contractd thea purchased from dealers
under our regular programs. As of December 31, 2084f those securitizations are active and alldme are structured as secured
financings. Our September 2010 transaction is aly active securitization that is structured asie f the related contracts. From 1994
through April 2008 we generally utilized financ@glarantees for the senior asset-backed notes igstigel securitization. Since September
2010 we have utilized senior subordinated strustwi¢hout any financial guarantees.

Our history of term securitizations, over the nmestent ten years, is summarized in the table below:

Recent Asse-Backed Term Securitizations
$ in thousand:

Number of Term Amount of
Period Securitizations Receivables
2005 4 $ 698,35
2006 4 957,68:
2007 3 1,118,09
2008 2 509,02.
2009 0 -
2010 1 103,77:
2011 3 335,59:
2012 4 603,50(
2013 4 778,00(
2014 4 923,00(

Our 2012 securitizations included $58.2 milliorcontracts that were repurchased in 2012 from stations closed in 2006 and
2007. Our 2013 securitizations included $7.4 millio contracts that were repurchased from a sézatiiin closed in 2008. Our 2010
securitization was, in substance, a re-securitinadf the receivables from our second securitizatib2008 which allowed us to take
advantage of a lower interest rate environmertattttme.

From time to time we have also completed financiofgsur residual interests in other securitizatitreg we and our affiliates
previously sponsored. As of December 31, 2014 we loae such residual interest financing outstanding

Since December 2011, our securitizations have detdia pre-funding feature in which a portion of theeivables to be sold to the
trust were not delivered until after the initiabsing. As a result, our restricted cash balané@eaember 31, 2014 included $85.3 million from
the proceeds of the sale of the asset-backed ti@ewere held by the trustee pending delivershefremaining receivables. In January 2015,
the requisite additional receivables were delivacetthe trust and we received the related resttictesh, most of which was used to repay
amounts owed under our warehouse credit facilities.
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Generally, prior to a securitization transactionfured our automobile contract purchases primarityywroceeds from warehouse
credit facilities. Our current short-term fundingpacity is $200 million, comprising two credit fidés. The first $100 million credit facility
was established in December 2010. This facility veaewed in March 2013, extending the revolvingqueto March 2015, and adding an
amortization period through March 2017. Our sec®h@0 million credit facility was established in M2912. This facility was renewed in
August 2014, extending the revolving period to Asig2016, and adding an amortization period throfighust 2017.

In a securitization and in our warehouse creditifess, we are required to make certain repregerta and warranties, which are
generally similar to the representations and waigamade by dealers in connection with our pureltdshe automobile contracts. If we
breach any of our representations or warrantiesyilde obligated to repurchase the automobileticat at a price equal to the principal
balance plus accrued and unpaid interest. We neayltb entitled under the terms of our dealer agee¢to require the selling dealer to
repurchase the contract at a price equal to owhgise price, less any principal payments madeéyguktomer. Subject to any recourse
against dealers, we will bear the risk of loss epossession and resale of vehicles under autoneabiteacts that we repurchase.

Whether a securitization is treated as a secuneshding or as a sale for financial accounting psegothe related special purpose
subsidiary may be unable to release excess cashitehe credit performance of the securitizedengbile contracts falls short of pre-
determined standards. Such releases represenesaahportion of the cash that we use to fund querations. An unexpected deterioration in
the performance of securitized automobile contrectsd therefore have a material adverse effediath our liquidity and results of
operations, regardless of whether such automobiléracts are treated as having been sold or aadhéeien financed.

Credit Risk Retained

Whether a sale of automobile contracts in connaatiith a securitization or warehouse credit fagilét treated as a secured financ
or as a sale for financial accounting purposestdlsed special-purpose subsidiary may be unalleléase excess cash to us if the credit
performance of the related automobile contracts &ilort of pre-determined standards. Such releagessent a material portion of the cash
that we use to fund our operations. An unexpecetdribration in the performance of such automotmletracts could therefore have a
material adverse effect on both our liquidity amdl esults of operations, regardless of whetheh sutomobile contracts are treated for
financial accounting purposes as having been sods tlaving been financed. For estimation of thgmitade of such risk, it may be
appropriate to look to the size of our " managexfplio, " which represents both financed and samldomobile contracts as to which such
credit risk is retained. Our managed portfolio BBecember 31, 2014 was approximately $1,643.9anillwhich includes a third party
servicing portfolio of $1.3 million on which we e@eonly servicing fees and have no credit risk.

Critical Accounting Policies

We believe that our accounting policies relatea)oAllowance for Finance Credit Losses, (b) Angation of Deferred Originations
Costs and Acquisition Fees, (¢) Term Securitizatjgd) Finance Receivables and Related Debt Medsur€air Value (e) Accrual for
Contingent Liabilities and (f) Income Taxes are thest critical to understanding and evaluatingreported financial results. Such policies
are described below.

Allowance for Finance Credit Loss

In order to estimate an appropriate allowancedssés incurred on finance receivables, we usesallisvance methodology
commonly referred to as " static pooling, " whit¢tasfies our finance receivable portfolio into seately identified pools based on the period
of origination. Using analytical and formula drivegthniques, we estimate an allowance for finameditlosses, which we believe is
adequate for probable incurred credit losses tate reasonably estimated in our portfolio of engtbile contracts. For each monthly poo
contracts that we purchase, we begin establishia@tlowance in the month of acquisition and insesidover the subsequent 11 months,
through a provision for credit losses charged toommsolidated statement of operations, with thel gbestablishing an allowance that
approximates the next 12 months of expected nsefos\et losses incurred on finance receivablestaneged to the allowance. We evaluate
the adequacy of the allowance by examining cumetfibquencies, the characteristics of the portfg@imspective liquidation values of the
underlying collateral and general economic and etacknditions. As circumstances change, our lelvptavisioning and/or allowance may
change as well.
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Broad economic factors such as recession and gignifchanges in unemployment levels influencectiedit performance of our
portfolio, as does the weighted average age ofdgbeivables at any given time. Our internal crpdiformance data consistently show that
new receivables have lower levels of delinquenaylasses early in their lives, with delinquenciesréasing throughout their lives and losses
gradually increasing to a peak between 36 and 4&mspafter which they gradually decrease. Thelhsl weighted average seasoning of
our total owned portfolio excluding Fireside, isranarized in the table below:

Weighted
Average Age in
Months of
December 31 Owned Portfolio
2009 33
2010 37
2011 27
2012 18
2013 14
2014 14

The credit performance of our portfolio is alsorsfigantly influenced by our underwriting guidelmand credit criteria we use when
evaluating contracts for purchase from dealersré&gealarly evaluate our portfolio credit performamael modify our purchase criteria to
maximize the credit performance of our portfolidile maintaining competitive programs and levels@ivice for our dealers.

Amortization of Deferred Originations Costs and Aisition Fees

Upon purchase of a contract from a dealer, we gdlgagither charge or advance the dealer an adauidee. In addition, we incur
certain direct costs associated with originatiohsus contracts. All such acquisition fees and cligosts are applied to the carrying value of
finance receivables and are accreted into ear@ia@s adjustment to the yield over the estimafedfithe contract using the interest method.

Term Securitizations
Our term securitization structure has generallynkeefollows:

We sell automobile contracts we acquire to a whoWsned special purpose subsidiary, which has bstblkshed for the limited
purpose of buying and reselling our automobile @uois. The special-purpose subsidiary then tramsfier same automobile contracts to
another entity, typically a statutory trust. Thestrissues interest-bearing adsetked securities, in a principal amount equaktess than th
aggregate principal balance of the automobile eatdr We typically sell these automobile contréathe trust at face value and without
recourse, except that representations and warsagitiglar to those provided by the dealer to ugpaogided by us to the trust. One or more
investors purchase the asset-backed securitiesddsuthe trust; the proceeds from the sale oafiset-backed securities are then used to
purchase the automobile contracts from us. We rajrr or sell subordinated asset-backed secuisegd by the trust or by a related entity.
Through 2008, we generally purchased external cemiancement for most of our term securitizatiarthe form of a financial guaranty
insurance policy, guaranteeing timely payment ténest and ultimate payment of principal on theaessset-backed securities, from an
insurance company. However, in our 16 most reaeturitizations since 2010, we have not purchaswhéial guaranty insurance policies
and do not expect to do so in the near future.

We structure our securitizations to include intéaradit enhancement for the benefit the invesfris the form of an initial cash
deposit to an account (" spread account ") helthb trust, (ii) in the form of overcollateraliza of the senior asséiacked securities, whe
the principal balance of the senior asset-backedriies issued is less than the principal balasfdee automobile contracts, (iii) in the form
of subordinated asset-backed securities, or (iwjescombination of such internal credit enhancemdiits agreements governing the
securitization transactions require that the ihigael of internal credit enhancement be supple@by a portion of collections from the
automobile contracts until the level of internadit enhancement reaches specified levels, whiglthan maintained. The specified levels are
generally computed as a percentage of the prinaipalunt remaining unpaid under the related autol@abintracts. The specified levels at
which the internal credit enhancement is to be taaied will vary depending on the performance efportfolios of automobile contracts
held by the trusts and on other conditions, and atsy be varied by agreement among us, our spaaipbse subsidiary, the insurance
company, if any, and the trustee. Such levels areased and decreased from time to time bas@eéidormance of the various portfolios,
and have also varied from one transaction to anoftee agreements governing the securitizationgigdly grant us the option to repurchase
the sold automobile contracts from the trust whenaggregate outstanding balance of the automofigracts has amortized to a specified
percentage of the initial aggregate balance.
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Our September 2008 securitization and the subségeesecuritization of the remaining receivablesrfrsuch transaction in
September 2010 were each in substance sales oftleglying receivables, and have been treatedles &a financial accounting purposes.
They differ from those treated as secured finarginghat the trust to which our special-purpodesaliaries sold the automobile contracts
met the definition of a "qualified special-purpasgity” under Statement of Financial Accountingrigi@ds No. 140 (ASC 860 10 65-2). As a
result, assets and liabilities of those trustsnateconsolidated into our consolidated balancetshee

Historically, our warehouse credit facility strusts were similar to the above, except that (i)special-purpose subsidiaries that
purchased the automobile contracts pledged theranltibe contracts to secure promissory notes thet issued, (ii) no increase in the
required amount of internal credit enhancementeeasemplated, and (iii) we did not purchase finahguaranty insurance. Our current
maximum revolving warehouse financing capacity28@million.

Upon each transfer of automobile contracts in astation structured as a secured financing fonfii@ accounting purposes,
whether a term securitization or a warehouse fimapave retain on our consolidated balance sheetdlated automobile contracts as assets
and record the asset-backed notes or loans issubd transaction as indebtedness.

Under the September 2008 and September 2010 seatioits, and other term securitizations complgtear to July 2003 that were
structured as sales for financial accounting pueppae removed from our consolidated balance sheetutomobile contracts sold and added
to our consolidated balance sheet (i) the cashvwedef any, and (ii) the estimated fair valuetioé ownership interest that we retained in the
automobile contracts sold in the transaction. Tegtined or residual interest consisted of (a)ctsh held in the spread account, if any, (b)
overcollateralization, if any, (c) asset-backedusigies retained, if any, and (d) receivables fritna trust, which include the net interest
receivables. Net interest receivables represerggtimated discounted cash flows to be received ftee trust in the future, net of principal
and interest payable with respect to the assetduboktes, the premium paid to the insurance compbagy, and certain other expenses. The
excess of the cash received and the assets wea@taver the carrying value of the automobile @it sold, less transaction costs, equaled
the net gain on sale of automobile contracts werdkd.

We receive periodic base servicing fees for theisieig and collection of the automobile contraéisader our securitization
structures treated as secured financings for fiahaccounting purposes, such servicing fees aleded in interest income from the
automobile contracts. In addition, we are entit@the cash flows from the trusts that represel¢ciions on the automobile contracts in
excess of the amounts required to pay principaliatedest on the asset-backed securities, basiisgrees, and certain other fees and
expenses (such as trustee and custodial fees)irBequincipal payments on the asset-backed notegenerally defined as the payments
sufficient to keep the principal balance of suckesa@qual to the aggregate principal balance ofdladed automobile contracts (excluding
those automobile contracts that have been charffledoa pre-determined percentage of such balawteere that percentage is less than
100%, the related securitization agreements re@uicelerated payment of principal until the priatipalance of the assk&cked securities
reduced to the specified percentage. Such acoetepaincipal payment is said to create overcolddization of the asset-backed notes.

If the amount of cash required for payment of feapenses, interest and principal on the seni@tdmscked notes exceeds the
amount collected during the collection period, shertfall is withdrawn from the spread accounarif. If the cash collected during the period
exceeds the amount necessary for the above atbosgpius required principal payments on the subatdd asset-backed notes, and there is
no shortfall in the related spread account or #ugliired overcollateralization level, the excesgisased to us. If the spread account and
overcollateralization is not at the required lewleén the excess cash collected is retained itrtiseuntil the specified level is achieved.
Although spread account balances are held by tis¢éston behalf of our special-purpose subsidiasethe owner of the residual interests (in
the case of securitization transactions structasesiales for financial accounting purposes) otrtras (in the case of securitization
transactions structured as secured financingsrfan€ial accounting purposes), we are restrictagsaof the cash in the spread accounts.
Cash held in the various spread accounts is ingdésthigh quality, liquid investment securities,specified in the securitization agreements.
The interest rate payable on the automobile cotstiacsignificantly greater than the interest @tehe asset-backed notes. As a result, the
residual interests described above historicallyehaeen a significant asset of ours.
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In all of our term securitizations and warehousaitrfacilities, whether treated as secured finageior as sales, we have sold the
automobile contracts (through a subsidiary) tostheuritization entity. The difference between thie structures is that in securitizations that
are treated as secured financings we report thedsagsd liabilities of the securitization trustaur consolidated balance sheet. Under both
structures, recourse to us by holders of the dsselted securities and by the trust, for failuréhef automobile contract obligors to make
payments on a timely basis, is limited to the awtbite contracts included in the securitizationsvarehouse credit facilities, the spread
accounts and our retained interests in the resfgettists.

Since the third quarter of 2003, we have condudteterm securitizations. Of these 40, 34 were péifgenerally quarterly)
securitizations of automobile contracts that wechased from automobile dealers under our regutagrams. In addition, in March 2004 and
November 2005, we completed securitizations ofretained interests in other securitizations thatwe our affiliates previously sponsor:

The debt from the March 2004 transaction was rejpafligust 2005, and the debt from the Novembei52@&nsaction was repaid in May
2007. Also, in June 2004, we completed a secutibizaf automobile contracts purchased under o pFogram and acquired in a bulk
purchase. Further, in December 2005 and May 200@ongleted securitizations that included automotiletracts purchased under the TFC
programs, automobile contracts purchased undeCite programs and automobile contracts we repurdhgsan termination of prior
securitizations. Since July 2003 all such secuatiitins have been structured as secured finanangept our September 2008 and September
2010 securitizations that were in substance sdl#seainderlying receivables, and were treatedalesdor financial accounting purposes.

Since December 2011, our securitizations have dedlua predunding feature in which a portion of the receiveabto be sold to tl
trust were not delivered until after the initiabsing. As a result, our restricted cash baland@eaember 31, 2014 included $85.3 million fi
the proceeds of the sale of the assmtked notes that were held by the trustee perdéiigery of the remaining receivables. In Janudiy%
the requisite additional receivables were delivaethe trust and we received the related restticegesh, most of which was used to re
amounts owed under our warehouse credit facilities.

Finance Receivables and Related Debt Measured iat\fedue

In September 2011 we purchased finance receivtolesFireside Bank. These receivables are pledgambbateral for debt that wi
structured specifically for the acquisition of tipisrtfolio. Since the Fireside receivables wergiogted by another entity with its own
underwriting guidelines and procedures, we haveteteto account for the Fireside receivables andélated debt secured by those
receivables at their estimated fair values so¢hanges in fair value will be reflected in our désof operations as they occur. There are
limited observable inputs available to us for measient of such receivables, or for the related.dafet use our own assumptions about the
factors that we believe market participants wotdd im pricing similar receivables and debt, andoased on the best information available in
the circumstances. The valuation method used imats fair value may produce a fair value measurgntat may not be indicative of
ultimate realizable value. Furthermore, while wédwe our valuation methods are appropriate angistent with those used by other market
participants, the use of different methods or aggions to estimate the fair value of certain finahmstruments could result in different
estimates of fair value. Those estimated values difésr significantly from the values that wouldueabeen used had a readily available
market for such receivables or debt existed, orshath receivables or debt been liquidated, andetddferences could be material to the
financial statements.

Accrual for Contingent Liabilitie

We are routinely involved in various legal proceegdi resulting from our consumer finance activiiad practices, both continuing
and discontinued. Our legal counsel has advisemhissich matters where, based on information aveiktthe time of this report, there is an
indication that it is both probable that a lialyilitas been incurred and the amount of the los®earasonably determined.

We have recorded a liability as of December 31428hich represents our best estimate of probalsieried losses for legal
contingencies. The amount of losses that may uléiimde incurred cannot be estimated with certaiHgywever, based on such information
as is available to us, we believe that the rangeadonably possible losses for the legal procgedind contingencies described or referencec
above, as of December 31, 2014, and in exces® diathility we have recorded, is from $0 to $1.5lion.

37




Accordingly, we believe that the ultimate resoluataf such legal proceedings and contingencies:, tfking into account our current
litigation reserves, should not have a materiakask effect on our consolidated financial conditMe note, however, that in light of the
uncertainties inherent in contested proceedingsetban be no assurance that the ultimate resolatithese matters will not significantly
exceed the reserves we have accrued; as a résultutcome of a particular matter may be matesialur operating results for a particular
period, depending on, among other factors, thedfitiee loss or liability imposed and the leveloofr income for that period.

Income Taxe

We account for income taxes under the asset abititfamethod, which requires the recognition ofeteed tax assets and liabilities
for the expected future tax consequences of evkatdave been included in the financial stateméirtgler this method, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on the diffees between the financial statements and tax bhassets and liabilities using enacted tax
rates in effect for the year in which the differea@re expected to reverse. The effect of a chartga rates on deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized in income in the periddt includes the enactment date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to neamagts judgment that realization is more likely than.ovaluation allowance |
recognized for a deferred tax asset if, based enviight of the available evidence, it is moreliikhan not that some portion of the deferred
tax asset will not be realized. In making such grdgnts, significant weight is given to evidencd tza be objectively verified. As a result of
the unprecedented adverse changes in the markstdaritizations, the recession and the resultigh levels of unemployment that occurred
in 2008 and 2009, we incurred substantial operdtiages from 2009 through 2011 which led us tobdistaa valuation allowance against a
substantial portion of our deferred tax assets. ¢l@#, since the fourth quarter of 2011, we haventeg 13 consecutive quarters of increa
profitability. Furthermore, we have demonstratedhitity to increase our volumes of contract puss® grow our managed portfolio and
obtain cost effective short- and long-term finagdiar our finance receivables.

As a result of these and other factors, we detexchat December 31, 2012 that, based on the weighé @vailable objective
evidence, it was more likely than not that we woggdherate sufficient future taxable income to zailour net deferred tax assets. Accordir
we reversed the related valuation allowance of&#6illion in the fourth quarter of 2012.

Our net deferred tax asset of $42.8 million, aBe€ember 31, 2014, consists of approximately $8#llfon of net U.S. federal
deferred tax assets and $10.1 million of net staferred tax assets. The major components of theerdd tax asset are $18.6 million in net
operating loss carryforwards and built in losses $24.2 million in net deductions which have natlyeen taken on a tax return.

As of December 31, 2014, we had net operatingdasyforwards for federal and state income tax pseg of $3.5 million and
$108.5 million, respectively. The federal net opiaglosses begin to expire in 2022. The stateopetating losses begin to expire in 2015.

In determining the possible future realization efatred tax assets, we have considered future lkatmme from the following
sources: (a) reversal of taxable temporary diffeesnand (b) forecasted future net earnings froemaijwns. Based upon those considerations,
we have concluded that it is more likely than matttthe U.S. and state net operating loss carrgahperiods provide enough time to utilize
the deferred tax assets pertaining to the existeigperating loss carryforwards and any net ojpperébss that would be created by the
reversal of the future net deductions which haveyabbeen taken on a tax return. Our estimatéaxafble income are forward-looking
statements, and there can be no assurance thastimates of such taxable income will be correattérs discussed under "Risk Factors,"
in particular under the subheading "Risk Factoisorward-Looking Statements" may affect whethehsumjections prove to be correct.

We recognize interest and penalties related toaogrézed tax benefits within the income tax expdimgein the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations. Accrueddsteand penalties are included within the reléadiability line in the consolidated
balance sheets.
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Uncertainty of Capital Markets and General EconomicConditions

We depend upon the availability of warehouse cifeditities and access to long-term financing thlylothe issuance of asset-backed
securities collateralized by our automobile cortgaSince 1994, we have completed 65 term secatiitizs of approximately $9.4 billion in
contracts. From the fourth quarter of 2007 throtighend of 2009, we observed unprecedented adekeasges in the market for securitized
pools of automobile contracts. These changes iedudduced liquidity, and reduced demand for dsaelted securities, particularly for
securities carrying a financial guaranty and fausiies backed by sub-prime automobile receivalesreover, during that period many of
the firms that previously provided financial guarses, which were an integral part of our secutitize, suspended offering such guarantees.
These adverse changes caused us to conservetliduydiignificantly reducing our purchases of auddite contracts. However, since
September 2009 we have established new fundinlitieciand gradually increased our contract purebasd the frequency and amount of
our term securitizations.

Financial Covenants

Certain of our securitization transactions andwarehouse credit facilities contain various finahciovenants requiring certain
minimum financial ratios and results. Such covesamtlude maintaining minimum levels of liquiditpénet worth and not exceeding
maximum leverage levels. In addition, certain sid@ation and non-securitization related debt contamoss-default provisions that would
allow certain creditors to declare a default ifediadilt occurred under a different facility. As oé€mber 31, 2014 we were in compliance
all such financial covenants.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Operating Results for the year eridedember 31, 2014 with the year ended Decemb&2@1

Revenue. In April 2013, we repurchased the outstandings€ID notes from our first 2008 securitizationdarash payment and a new note.
We subsequently exercised our “clean-up call” optiad repurchased the remaining collateral fronréketed securitization trust. The
aggregate value of our consideration for the Classtes was $10.9 million less than our carryinlyeaf the Class D notes at the time of the
repurchase. As a result of the repurchase of thesd notes and the termination of the securitinatiust, we realized a gain of $10.9 milli

or 4.3% of our total revenues of $255.8 million year ended December 31, 2013. The discussion etoludes the gain of $10.9 million
2013 for comparative purposes.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, our resemere $300.3 million, an increase of $55.4 nmillior 22.6%, from the prior year
revenue of $244.8 million. The primary reason f@ increase in revenues is an increase in interesne. Interest income for the year ended
December 31, 2014 increased $55.4 million, or 24 1@7$286.7 million from $231.3 million in the prigear. The primary reason for the
increase in interest income is the increase imfirareceivables held by consolidated subsidianbh increased from $1,222.5 million at
December 31, 2013 to $1,642.2 million at Decemide2814. The table below shows the average balafaas portfolio held by
consolidated subsidiaries for the year ended Deee®ib, 2014 and 2013:

Average Balances for the Year Ende

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
Amount Amount
Finance Receivables Owned b (% in millions)
Consolidated Subsidiaries
CPS Originated Receivabl $ 1,414  $ 1,044."
Fireside 5.9 31.2
Total $ 1,420.: $ 1,076.(
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Servicing fees totaling $1.4 in the year ended bemmr 31, 2014 decreased $1.7 million, or 55.5%mf#3.1 million in the prior
year. We earn base servicing fees on three partfttiat are decreasing in size as we receive cestpayments and, consequently, k
servicing fees are decreasing also. As of Dece®ibe2014 and 2013, our managed portfolio owneddmgalidated vs. non-consolidated
subsidiaries and other third parties was as follows

December 31, 201 December 31, 201.
Amount (1) %(2) Amount (1) %(2)
Total Managed Portfolio (% in millions)

Owned by Consolidated Subsidiar
CPS Originated Receivabl $ 1,640.t 99.8% % 1,207." 98.1%
Fireside 1.7 0.1% 14.¢ 1.2%
Owned by No-Consolidated Subsidiari 0.4 0.0% 4.C 0.3%
Third-Party Servicing Portfolios 1.3 0.1% 4.9 0.4%
Total $ 1,643.¢ 100.0% $ 1,231.¢ 100.0%

At December 31, 2014, we were generating incomefe@slon a managed portfolio with an outstandirgcpral balance of $1,643
million (this amount includes $390,000 of automelzbntracts on which we earn servicing fees andavesidual interest and also includes
another $1.3 million of automobile contracts onatihive earn base and incentive servicing fees), aoatto a managed portfolio with an
outstanding principal balance of $1,231.4 milliencd December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2014 ad8,20e managed portfolio
composition was as follows:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201.
Amount (1) %(2) Amount (1) %(2)
Originating Entity ($ in millions)
CPS $ 1,640.¢ 99.8% $ 1,211.¢ 98.4%
Fireside 1.7 0.1% 14.¢ 1.2%
Third Party Portfolio 1.3 0.1% 4.8 0.4%
Total $ 1,643.¢ 100.0% $ 1,231.¢ 100.0%

(1) Contractual balance:
(2) Percentages may not add up to 100% due to riogn

Other income increased by $1.7 million, or 16.78¢12.1 million in the year ended December 31, Z@drh $10.4 million during
the prior year. The increase consists of a neeas® of $150,000 in the fair value of the recerslaind debt associated with the Fireside
portfolio acquisition, an increase of $971,000ard associated with direct mail and other relatedyzts and services that we offer to our
dealers, an increase of $303,000 in sales taxdsfand an increase of $335,000 in payments from-fiarty payment processors.

Expense. Our operating expenses consist largely of prorifor credit losses, interest expense, employpstsand general and
administrative expenses. Provision for credit lesmed interest expense are significantly affectethb volume of automobile contracts we
purchased during the trailing 12-month period apdhie outstanding balance of finance receivabléd iye consolidated subsidiaries.
Employee costs and general and administrative esqeeare incurred as applications and automobileais are received, processed and
serviced. Factors that affect margins and net ircorolude changes in the automobile and automdéib#gece market environments, and
macroeconomic factors such as interest rates ambyels in the unemployment level.
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Employee costs include base salaries, commissimh®anuses paid to employees, and certain expegisésd to the accounting
treatment of outstanding stock options, and areoboeir most significant operating expenses. Thests (other than those relating to stock
options) generally fluctuate with the level of dapations and automobile contracts processed anitedr

Other operating expenses consist largely of fasliexpenses, telephone and other communicatioitasy credit services, computer
services, marketing and advertising expenses, apcediation and amortization.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we rezedr$#7.8 million in contingent liability expensesstither record or increase the
amounts we believe we may incur related to varprrading litigation. The amount was allocated int paa long running case we refer to as
the Stanwich litigation, and also to more recenttena including two California class action suitsere we are the defendant, and a
governmental inquiry, in which the United Statesléral Trade Commission (“FTC”) has informally prepd that the we refrain from certain
allegedly unfair trade practices, and make regtibatry payments into a consumer relief fund. Theewssion below omits the $7.8 million
contingent liability expense from the year endedddaber 31, 2013 for comparative purposes.

Total operating expenses were $248.0 million feryhar ended December 31, 2014, compared to $21ilié for the prior year,
an increase of $37.3 million, or 17.7%. The incesiasprimarily due to the increase in the amoumiex contracts we purchased, the resulting
increase in our consolidated portfolio and assediakrvicing costs, and the related increase ipmvision for credit losses. Increases in «
operating expenses and provision for credit logseae partially offset by decreases in interest agpe

Employee costs increased by $7.2 million or 16.16/450.1 million during the year ended December2Bil4, representing 20.2%
total operating expenses, from $43.0 million fa frior year, or 20.4% of total operating expenSasce 2010, we have added employees in
our Originations and Marketing departments to acooaate the increase in contract purchases. Moentlgc we have also added Servicing
staff to accommodate the increase in the numbeacodunts in our managed portfolio. The table bedammarizes our employees by categ
as well as contract purchases and units in our geghportfolio as of, and for the years ended, Ddxer31, 2014 and 2013:

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
Amount Amount
($ in millions)
Contracts purchased (dolla $ 944.¢ % 764.]
Contracts purchased (uni 59,27¢ 48,99¢
Managed portfolio outstanding (dollal $ 1,643.¢ % 1,231.
Managed portfolio outstanding (uni 124,07- 99,84:
Number of Originations sta 21C 172
Number of Marketing sta 15E 11¢
Number of Servicing sta 44E 34¢
Number of other sta: 59 66
Total number of employees 86¢ 70E

General and administrative expenses include csstcated with purchasing and servicing our paddfof finance receivables,
including expenses for facilities, credit servicasd telecommunications. General and administrapenses were $19.3 million, an increase
of $2.9 million, or 17.8%, compared to the previgesr and represented 7.8% of total operating esgzen

Interest expense for the year ended December 34, @€creased by $7.8 million to $50.4 million, 8r46, compared to $58.2
million in the previous year.
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Interest expense on the Fireside portfolio creatitlity decreased by $3.1 million compared to themyear as the Fireside portfolio
and the related debt have paid down to signifigaother levels over the last year.

Interest on securitization trust debt increase@®y million, or 10.9%, for the year ended Decen8ier2014 compared to the prior
year. Although the average balance of securitindtiost debt increased 37.9% to $1,298.0 milliartfie year ended December 31, 2014 f
$941.6 million for the year ended December 31, 28 blended interest rates on new term secuidiza since 2013 have been significantly
lower than in previous years. As a result, durif@4, portions of our securitization trust debt tate outstanding at December 31, 2013 at
higher blended interest rates were repaid as wedaddw securitization trust debt at significantiwér blended interest rates.

Interest expense on senior secured debt and sabatedirenewable notes decreased by $7.4 millio&5®%. This was due
primarily to the repayment in full of $39.2 millian senior secured debt in the first quarter of20& addition, we reduced the balance of our
outstanding subordinated renewable notes by $3l@mirom $19.1 million at December 31, 2013 tdb$A million at December 31, 2014.
The reduction in interest expense was also a refolir decreasing the average interest rate oswsrdinated renewable notes from 14.5%
for the year ended December 31, 2013 to 12.9%htoyear ended December 31, 2014.

Interest expense on residual interest financingedesed $1.3 million in the year ended Decembe2314 compared to the prior
year. The decrease is due to the repayments ofattilitty of $6.8 million during the yea

Interest expense on warehouse lines of credit &serd by $214,000, or 4.3% for the year ended DegeeB1h 2014 compared to the
prior year. Although we increased our contract pases by $180.9 million, or 23.7%, to $944.9 millfor the year ended December 31, 2
compared to the prior year, we attempt to minintieuse of our warehouse credit facilities and metyre on unrestricted cash balances to
fund our contract purchases prior to securitization

The following table presents the components of@geincome and interest expense and a net intgeddtanalysis for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013
(Dollars in thousands)
Annualized Annualized
Average Average Average Average
Balance (1) Interest Yield/Rate Balance (1) Interest Yield/Rate

Interest Earning Assets
Finance receivables gross $ 1,383,190 $ 285,16¢ 20.6% $ 1,01540 $ 225,26¢ 22.2%
Finance receivables measurt

at fair value 5,91¢ 1,56¢ 26.4% 31,29 6,06 19.4%

$ 1,389,11 286,73: 20.6% $ 1,046,69 231,33( 22.1%
Interest Bearing Liabilities

Warehouse lines of credit $ 52,59¢ 5,217 9.9% $ 40,28t 5,00: 12.4%
Residual interest financing 14,22¢ 1,98¢ 14.0% 24,10: 3,33( 13.8%
Debt secured by receivables

measured at fair value 5,561 772 13.9% 27,50¢ 3,87 14.1%
Securitization trust debt 1,298,03: 38,55¢ 3.0% 941,59: 34,74¢ 3.7%
Senior secured debt, related

party 9,471 1,651 17.4% 41,90¢ 8,06¢ 19.2%
Subordinated renewable nott 17,07« 2,20¢ 12.9% 21,76 3,161 14.5%

$ 1,396,96 50,39t 3.6% $ 1,097,15 58,17¢ 5.3%

Net interest income/sprei $ 236,33 $ 173,15:
Net interest margin (< 17.0% 16.5%
Ratio of average interest

earning assets to average

interest bearing liabilities 99% 95%

(1) Average balances are based on month enddesaxcept for warehouse lines of credit, whichbaiged on daily balance
(2) Net of deferred fees and direct co
(3) Annualized net interest income divided byrage interest earning asse
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Year Ended December 31, 2014
Compared to December 31, 201

Total Change Due Change Due
Change to Volume to Rate
Interest Earning Assets (In thousands)
Finance receivables gra $ 59,90: $ 81,59/ $ (21,699
Finance receivables measured at fair
value (4,497) (4,915 41¢
55,40« 76,67¢ (21,27Y
Interest Bearing Liabilities
Warehouse lines of crec 214 1,52¢ (1,319
Residual interest financir (1,34)) (1,36%) 24
Debt secured by receivables measure
fair value (3,109 (3,099 (12
Securitization trust del 3,81¢ 13,15: (9,339
Senior secured debt, related pe (6,417 (6,247) (172)
Subordinated renewable notes (959 (687 (272)
(7,789 3,301 (12,08Y
Net interest income/spre: $ 63,18¢ $ 73,37¢ $ (10,190

Provision for credit losses was $108.2 million tioe year ended December 31, 2014, an increaselot &dllion, or 40.8%
compared to the prior year and represented 43.6%talfoperating expenses. The provision for criedises maintains the allowance for
finance credit losses at levels that we feel asgjadte for probable incurred credit losses thateareasonably estimated. Our approach for
establishing the allowance requires greater amafrsovision for credit losses early in the terofi®ur finance receivables. Consequently,
the increase in provision expense is the resuh®increase in contract purchases during theyé&stand the larger portfolio owned by our
consolidated subsidiaries compared to the prior.yea

Marketing expenses consist primarily of commisdiased compensation paid to our employee marketimgsentatives. Our
marketing representatives earn a salary plus cosionis based on volume of contract purchases aad sihncillary products and services
that we offer our dealers, such as training progranternet lead sales, and direct mail productrkigting expenses increased by $2.8
million, or 20.6%, to $16.1 million during the yeemded December 31, 2014, compared to $13.4 miltidne prior year, and represented
6.5% of total operating expenses. For the yearc&eBdember 31, 2014, we purchased 59,276 contgmtssenting $944.9 million in
receivables compared to 48,995 contracts repregefifi64.1 million in receivables in the prior year.

Occupancy expenses increased by $856,000 or 32888,5 million compared to $2.6 million in the pi@us year and represented
1.4% of total operating expenses. In April 2014 ,established our fifth servicing center locatedl@és Vegas, Nevada.
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Depreciation and amortization expenses decreas&8,0690 or 2.1%, to $428,000 compared to $437,0@06 previous year and
represented 0.2% of total operating expenses.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we recorednie tax expense of $22.7 million, representid8.8% effective income tax
rate. In the prior year, we recorded $16.2 milladincome tax expense, also representing a 43.56tafe income tax rate.

Comparison of Operating Results for the year erfdedember 31, 2013 with the year ended Decemb&t@D,

Revenue. In April 2013, we repurchased the outstandings€ID notes from our first 2008 securitizationgarash payment and a new note.
We subsequently exercised our “clean-up call” optiad repurchased the remaining collateral fronréketed securitization trust. The
aggregate value of our consideration for the Classtes was $10.9 million less than our carryinlyeaf the Class D notes at the time of the
repurchase. As a result of the repurchase of thesd notes and the termination of the securitinatiust, we realized a gain of $10.9 milli

or 4.3% of our total revenues of $255.8 million year ended December 31, 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, excluiiegjain on cancellation of debt of $10.9 milliony revenues were $244.8 million, an
increase of $57.6 million, or 30.8%, from the piyear revenue of $187.2 million. The primary reaforthe increase in revenues is an
increase in interest income. Interest income fenythar ended December 31, 2013 increased $56i0midir 32.0%, to $231.3 million from
$175.3 million in the prior year. The primary reador the increase in interest income is the ineeda finance receivables held by
consolidated subsidiaries, which increased fron8$Bnillion at December 31, 2012 to $1,222.5 millat December 31, 2013. The table
below shows the average balances of our portfald hy consolidated subsidiaries for the year erdieckmber 31, 2013 and 2012:

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
Amount Amount
Finance Receivables Owned b (% in millions)
Consolidated Subsidiaries
CPS Originated Receivabl $ 1,044 % 699.(
Fireside 31.c 103.t
Total $ 1,076.( $ 802.t

Servicing fees totaling $3.1 million in the yeaded December 31, 2013 increased $788,000, or 34r886,$2.3 million in the prio
year. We earn base servicing fees on three partfotiat are decreasing in size as we receive cestpayments and, consequently, k
servicing fees are decreasing also. On one of thog®lios, however, we recently began earningnaentive servicing fee. Such incentive
servicing fee was $1.6 million for the year endezt@mber 31, 2013 and more than offset the decod&&00,000 in base servicing fees. We
did not earn any incentive servicing fee in th@pyiear. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, our gesh@ortfolio owned by consolidated
non-consolidated subsidiaries and other third @astias as follows:

44




December 31, 201. December 31, 201;

Amount (1) %(2) Amount (1) %(2)

Total Managed Portfolio ($ in millions)
Owned by Consolidated Subsidiar

CPS Originated Receivabl $ 1,207. 98.1% $ 807.¢ 90.0%

Fireside 14.¢ 1.2% 60.¢ 6.8%
Owned by No-Consolidated Subsidiari 4.C 0.3% 17.5 1.9%
Third-Party Servicing Portfolios 4.9 0.4% 11.€ 1.3%
Total $ 1,231.¢ 100.0% $ 897.¢ 100.0%

(1) Contractual balance:
(2) Percentages may not add up to 100% due to riogn

At December 31, 2013, we were generating incomefe@slon a managed portfolio with an outstandirgcpral balance of $1,231
million (this amount includes $4.0 million of autobile contracts on which we earn servicing fees@md a residual interest and also
includes another $4.9 million of automobile contsaan which we earn base and incentive servicieg)fecompared to a managed portfolio
with an outstanding principal balance of $897.diorlas of December 31, 2012. At December 31, 20482012, the managed portfolio
composition was as follows:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201.
Amount (1) % (2) Amount (1) % (2)

Originating Entity ($ in millions)

CPS $ 1,211.¢ 98.4% $ 825.( 91.9%
Fireside 14.¢ 1.2% 60.¢ 6.8%
TFC - 0.0% 0.2 0.0%
Third Party Portfolio 4.8 0.4% 11.€ 1.3%
Total $ 1,231. 100.0% $ 897.€ 100.0%

(1) Contractual balances.
(2) Percentages may not add up to 100% due to riognd

Other income increased by $816,000, or 8.5%, to4dfllion in the year ended December 31, 2013 &6 million during the
prior year. The increase is comprised of a neease of $415,000 in the fair value of the recerslaind debt associated with the Fireside
portfolio acquisition, an increase of $588,000ard associated with direct mail and other relatedyzts and services that we offer to our
dealers, and an increase of $58,000 in payments thiod-party providers of convenience fees paidby customers for web based and other
electronic payments. These increases were partfiet by a decrease of $215,000 in recoveriegogivables from the 2002 acquisition of
MFN Financial Corporation and a decrease in sabesdafunds of $30,000.
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Expense. Our operating expenses consist largely of pronifor credit losses, interest expense, emplogsésand general and
administrative expenses. Provision for credit lesmed interest expense are significantly affectethb volume of automobile contracts we
purchased during the trailing 12-month period apdhie outstanding balance of finance receivabléd iwe consolidated subsidiaries.
Employee costs and general and administrative esqeeare incurred as applications and automobileais are received, processed and
serviced. Factors that affect margins and net ircorolude changes in the automobile and automdéib#ece market environments, and
macroeconomic factors such as interest rates ambyels in the unemployment level.

Employee costs include base salaries, commissimh®anuses paid to employees, and certain expegls¢sd to the accounting
treatment of outstanding stock options, and areobo@ir most significant operating expenses. Thests (other than those relating to stock
options) generally fluctuate with the level of dapations and automobile contracts processed anitedr

Other operating expenses consist largely of faesliexpenses, telephone and other communicatigitesy credit services, computer
services, marketing and advertising expenses, apcediation and amortization.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we rezedr$#7.8 million in contingent liability expensesstither record or increase the
amounts we believe we may incur related to varpmreding litigation. The amount was allocated int paa long running case we refer to as
the Stanwich litigation, and also to more recenttena including two California class action suitsere we are the defendant, and a
governmental inquiry, in which the United Statesléral Trade Commission (“FTC”) has informally prepd that the we refrain from certain
allegedly unfair trade practices, and make regtibatry payments into a consumer relief fund.

The following comparison of our expenses for tharyended December 31, 2013 and 2012 excludes thectrof the $7.8 million
contingent liability expense incurred in the yeaded December 31, 2013.

Total operating expenses were $210.8 million feryhar ended December 31, 2013, compared to $irvillién for the prior year,
an increase of $32.7 million, or 18.4%. The incesiagprimarily due to the increase in the amounte contracts we purchased, the resulting
increase in our consolidated portfolio and assediaervicing costs, and the related increase ipmvision for credit losses. Increases in «
operating expenses and provision for credit logsae partially offset by decreases in interest agpe

Employee costs increased by $7.4 million or 20.8/$43.0 million during the year ended December2B1L3, representing 20.4%
total operating expenses, from $35.6 million fa frior year, or 20.0% of total operating expenSasce 2010, we have added employees in
our Originations and Marketing departments to acooaate the increase in contract purchases. Moeatlgc we have also added Servicing
staff to accommodate the increase in the numbacodunts in our managed portfolio. The table bedammarizes our employees by categ
as well as contract purchases and units in our gehportfolio as of, and for the years ended, Déear31, 2013 and 2012:

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
Amount Amount
($ in millions)
Contracts purchased (dolla $ 764.1 % 551.%
Contracts purchased (uni 48,99t 36,03(
Managed portfolio outstanding (dollal $ 1,231 % 897.¢
Managed portfolio outstanding (uni 99,84: 91,54¢
Number of Originations sta 172 14€
Number of Marketing sta 11¢ 89
Number of Servicing sta 34¢ 27¢
Number of other sta: 66 60
Total number of employees 70E 574
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General and administrative expenses include cgstscated with purchasing and servicing our padfof finance receivables,
including expenses for facilities, credit servicasd telecommunications. General and administrapenses were $16.3 million, an increase
of $916,000, or 5.9%, compared to the previous gedrrepresented 7.8% of total operating expenses.

Interest expense for the year ended December 3B, @€creased by $21.2 million to $58.2 million26r7%, compared to $79.4
million in the previous year.

Interest expense on the Fireside portfolio creatitlity decreased by $12.0 million compared tofher year as the Fireside portfolio
and the related debt have paid down to signifigdother levels over the last year.

Interest on securitization trust debt decrease#i3¥ million for the year ended December 31, 20dr8ared to the prior year.
Although the average balance of securitizationt ebt increased to $941.6 million for the yearesh®ecember 31, 2013 compared to
$630.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2612 blended interest rates on new term secuidizasince 2012 have been significantly
lower than in previous years. As a result, durif@2, portions of our securitization trust debt twate outstanding at December 31, 2012 at
higher blended interest rates were repaid as wedaddw securitization trust debt at significantiwér blended interest rates.

Interest expense on senior secured debt and sabtedirenewable notes decreased by $4.7 milliois.Was due primarily to the
April 2013 repayment of $15.0 million in senior sezd debt and to the reduction in the interesteatthe remaining senior secured debt f
16.0% to 13.0%. In addition, we reduced the balarieair outstanding subordinated renewable noteb4bg million from $23.3 million at
December 31, 2012 to $19.1 million at December2813. The reduction in interest expense was atesudt of our decreasing the average
interest rate on our subordinated renewable notes 14.4% at December 31, 2012 to 12.5% at DeceBhe2013.

Interest expense on residual interest financingeemed $701,000 in the year ended December 31,&@®ifBared to the prior year.
The increase is due to the establishment in AdiR0of a new $20 million residual interest finarcihis was partially offset by the
September 2013 repayment of the $13.8 million débtedness outstanding under the residual faaitiginally established in 2007.

Interest expense on warehouse debt decreasedbynilion for the year ended December 31, 2013 camah to the prior year.
Although we increased our contract purchases td 37@illion for the year ended December 31, 2018gared to $551.7 million in the prior
period, recently we have relied less on warehousgitdacilities and more on unrestricted cash heds to fund receivables prior to
securitization.
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The following table presents the components of@geincome and interest expense and a net intgeddtanalysis for the years

ended December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Annualized Annualized
Average Average Average Average
Balance (1) Interest Yield/Rate Balance (1) Interest Yield/Rate
Interest Earning Assets

Finance receivables gross $ 1,01540 % 225,26¢ 222% % 662,17. $ 152,97 23.1%
Finance receivables measurt

at fair value 31,29¢ 6,06- 19.4% 103,57: 22,33% 21.6%

$ 1,046,69 231,33( 22.1%  $ 765,74« 175,31 22.9%

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Warehouse lines of crec $ 40,28¢ 5,00: 124% % 36,55¢ 6,92¢ 19.0%
Residual interest financir 24,107 3,33( 13.8% 15,71¢ 2,62¢ 16.7%
Debt secured by receivables

measured at fair valt 27,50¢ 3,87 14.1% 101,38: 15,87: 15.7%
Securitization trust del 941,59: 34,74« 3.7% 629,98’ 38,09t 6.0%
Senior secured debt, related

party 41,90¢ 8,06¢ 19.2% 53,65¢ 12,45¢ 23.2%
Subordinated renewable nott 21,76 3,161 14.5% 21,56¢ 3,43¢ 15.9%

$ 109715 58,17¢ 53 $ 858,86( 79,42 9.2%

Net interest income/spre:i $ 173,15; $ 95,89
Net interest margin (2 16.5% 12.5%
Ratio of average interest

earning assets to average

interest bearing liabilitie 95% 89%

(1) Average balances are based on month end lealaxcept for warehouse lines of credit, whichbased on daily balances.

(2) Net of deferred fees and direct costs.

(3) Annualized net interest income divided by agerinterest earning assets.

Year Ended December 31, 201
Compared to December 31, 201

Total Change Due Change Due
Change to Volume to Rate
Interest Earning Assets (In thousands)
Finance receivables gro $ 72,29 % 81,60 $ (9,319
Finance receivables measured at fair
value (16,27Y) (15,58¢) (687)
56,01¢ 66,01¢ (10,000
Interest Bearing Liabilities
Warehouse lines of crec (2,929 70€ (2,637
Residual interest financir 701 1,404 (703)
Debt secured by receivables measure
fair value (22,000 (11,569 (437
Securitization trust del (3,35)) 18,84: (22,199
Senior secured debt, related pe (4,390 (2,727%) (1,667
Subordinated renewable notes (279 32 (310
(21,249 6,68¢ (27,93)
Net interest income/spre:i $ 77,25¢ $ 59,321 $ 17,93:
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Provision for credit losses was $76.9 million foe tyear ended December 31, 2013, an increase of $#dlion, or 129.5%
compared to the prior year and represented 36.5%taifoperating expenses. The provision for criedises maintains the allowance for
finance credit losses at levels that we feel aszjadte for probable incurred credit losses thateareasonably estimated. Our approach for
establishing the allowance requires greater amafrsovision for credit losses early in the terofi®ur finance receivables. Consequently,
the increase in provision expense is the resuh®increase in contract purchases during theyé&estand the larger portfolio owned by our
consolidated subsidiaries compared to the prior.yea

Marketing expenses consist primarily of commisdiased compensation paid to our employee marketimgsentatives. Our
marketing representatives earn a salary plus cosinis based on volume of contract purchases aad sahncillary products and services
that we offer our dealers, such as training progranternet lead sales, and direct mail productrkigting expenses increased by $2.7
million, or 25.3%, to $13.4 million during the yeemded December 31, 2013, compared to $10.7 mitidine prior year, and represented
6.3% of total operating expenses. For the yearc&eBdeember 31, 2013, we purchased 48,995 contgmtssenting $764.1 million in
receivables compared to 36,030 contracts repregpfifi51.7 million in receivables in the prior year.

Occupancy expenses decreased by $286,000 or ©%2.& million compared to $2.9 million in the pi@ys year and represented
1.2% of total operating expenses.

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreas&d®y,000 or 19.5%, to $437,000 compared to $5430¢he previous year and
represented 0.2% of total operating expenses.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we recombednie tax expense of $16.2 million, representid8.8% effective income tax
rate. In the prior year, we recorded $2.6 millidmet tax expense and reduced our valuation allo@dor our deferred tax assets by $62.8
million, which resulted in a net tax benefit of $80nillion. At December 31, 2012, we had reportgd tonsecutive quarters of increasing
profitability, observed improvement in credit mesg;i and produced reliable internal financial profets. Furthermore, we had demonstrated
an ability to increase our new contract purchagesy our managed portfolio and obtain cost effecstort- and long-term financing for our
finance receivables. As a result of these and dtutors, we determined at December 31, 2012 llased on the weight of the available
objective evidence, it was more likely than not tlva would generate sufficient future taxable ineaim utilize our deferred tax assets.
Accordingly, we reversed the related valuationvallace. However, if future events change our expleaalization of our deferred tax assets,
we may be required to reestablish the related vialuallowance in the future.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Our business requires substantial cash to suppachpses of automobile contracts and other opgratitivities. Our primary sourc
of cash have been cash flow from operating actizjtincluding proceeds from term securitizationgections and other sales of automobile
contracts, amounts borrowed under warehouse deadlities, servicing fees on portfolios of autonilelzontracts previously sold in
securitization transactions or serviced for thiadtigs, customer payments of principal and intavadinance receivables, fees for origination
of automobile contracts, and releases of cash feenritized portfolios of automobile contracts inigh we have retained a residual
ownership interest and the related spread accoDutsprimary uses of cash have been the purchdsegamobile contracts, repayment of
securitization trust debt, repayment of amountsdveed under warehouse credit facilities, operatingenses such as employee, interest,
occupancy expenses and other general and admiivistexpenses, the establishment of spread accandtmitial overcollateralization, if
any, and the increase of credit enhancement tareshlevels in securitization transactions, anadme taxes. There can be no assurance that
internally generated cash will be sufficient to ine&r cash demands. The sufficiency of internaéiperated cash will depend on the
performance of securitized pools (which determtheslevel of releases from those portfolios and ttetated spread accounts), the rate of
expansion or contraction in our managed portfa@ia the terms upon which we are able to purchafieaad borrow against automobile
contracts.

Net cash provided by operating activities for teans ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was8&hidbon, $99.4 million
and $35.0 million, respectively. Net cash from @peg activities is generally provided by net in@from operations adjusted for significant
non-cash items such as our provision for credgdssprovision for contingent liabilities, accretiof deferred acquisition fees, the $10.9
million gain on cancellation of debt in 2013 and 20012, the net change in our deferred tax as§&828 million.
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Net cash used in investing activities for the yearded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $5#li@n, $409.6 million and
$91.5 million, respectively. Cash provided by inims activities primarily results from principal yments and other proceeds received on
finance receivables held for investment. Cash us@t/esting activities generally relates to pusésof finance receivables. Purchases of
finance receivables held for investment were $944lBon, $764.1 million and $551.7 million in 20,012013 and 2012, respectively.

Net cash provided by financing activities for theays ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 wasl$#dlion, $319.3 million
and $59.4 million, respectively. Cash used or glegliby financing activities is primarily attributalio the repayment or issuance of debt,
in particular, securitization trust debt and pditf@cquisition financing. We issued $923.0 millimnnew securitization trust debt in 2014
compared t0$778.0 million in 2013 and $558.5 millio 2012. Repayments of securitization debt w&@28& million, $382.6 million and
$351.0 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

We purchase automobile contracts from dealers @@sh price approximating their principal amoudijuated for an acquisition fee
which may either increase or decrease the automobiltract purchase price. Those automobile castgemerate cash flow, however, over a
period of years. As a result, we have been depemaewarehouse credit facilities to purchase autnfaaontracts, and on the availability of
cash from outside sources in order to finance outicuing operations, as well as to fund the portd automobile contract purchase prices
not financed under revolving warehouse credit fiéged.

The acquisition of automobile contracts for subsegdinancing in securitization transactions, dmelneed to fund spread accounts
and initial overcollateralization, if any, and irase credit enhancement levels when those tramsattike place, results in a continuing need
for capital. The amount of capital required is muesavily dependent on the rate of our automobitéreat purchases, the required level of
initial credit enhancement in securitizations, #mg extent to which the previously establishedttrasd their related spread accounts either
release cash to us or capture cash from collectinreecuritized automobile contracts. Of thosefdlaor most subject to our control is the
rate at which we purchase automobile contracts.

We are and may in the future be limited in ourigbtb purchase automobile contracts due to limitsour capital. As of December
31, 2014, we had unrestricted cash of $17.9 millde had $76.4 million available under one warekatredit facility and $66.7 million
available under our second warehouse credit fagaidvances from both facilities are subject tolatée eligible collateral). During 2014 we
completed four securitizations aggregating $92310om of receivables, and we intend to continuengeting securitizations regularly duri
2015, although there can be no assurance that Weenable to do so. Our plans to manage our ligpidclude maintaining our rate of
automobile contract purchases at a level that neatolr available capital, and, as appropriate,miging our operating costs. If we are
unable to complete such securitizations, we mayriadle to increase our rate of automobile confranthases, in which case our interest
income and other portfolio related income couldrease.

Our liquidity will also be affected by releasescagh from the trusts established with our secatitns. While the specific terms and
mechanics of each spread account vary among tramssoour securitization agreements generally idethat we will receive excess cash
flows, if any, only if the amount of credit enhament has reached specified levels and the delirayyeiefaults or net losses related to the
automobile contracts in the pool are below cenpagdetermined levels. In the event delinquenciefaudts or net losses on the automobile
contracts exceed such levels, the terms of theriigation: (i) may require increased credit enhament to be accumulated for the particular
pool; or (ii) in certain circumstances, may perthé transfer of servicing on some or all of theoautbile contracts to another servicer. There
can be no assurance that collections from thee@fatists will continue to generate sufficient cddbreover, some of our spread account
balances are pledged as collateral to our residteakest financing and, under certain circumstanesases from our spread account balance:
could be diverted to repay such residual interiesinting.

One of our securitization transactions, our warskarredit facilities, our residual interest finargcand our financing for the Fireside
portfolio contain various financial covenants remg certain minimum financial ratios and resuisich covenants include maintaining
minimum levels of liquidity and net worth and neteeding maximum leverage levels. In addition, sagreements contain cross-default
provisions that would allow certain creditors teldee a default if a default occurred under a déffe facility. As of December 31, 2014, we
were in compliance with all such covenants.

We have and will continue to have a substantialiarhof indebtedness. At December 31, 2014, we padaimately
$1,684.1million of debt outstanding. Such debt ¢sied primarily of $1,598.5 million of securitizati trust debt, and also included $1.3
million in debt for the acquisition of the Firesidertfolio, $56.8 million of warehouse lines of die $12.3 million of residual interest
financing and $15.2 million in subordinated reneleaintes. We are also currently offering the subaigd notes to the public on a
continuous basis, and such notes have maturiti#sahge from three months to 10 years.
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Our recent operating results include pre-tax egsof $52.2 million, $37.2 million and $9.2 milliam 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, preceded by pre-tax losses of $14ll®mand $16.2 million in 2011 and 2010, respeely. We believe that our 2011 and 2010
results were materially and adversely affectechigydisruption in the capital markets that begathénfourth quarter of 2007, by the recession
that began in December 2007, and by related higkldeof unemployment.

Although we believe we are able to service andyepa debt, there is no assurance that we willldde & do so. If our plans for
future operations do not generate sufficient cémlis and earnings, our ability to make requiredrpegts on our debt would be impaired.
Failure to pay our indebtedness when due could havaterial adverse effect and may require ussteeigdditional debt or equity securities.
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our material corttratobligations as of December 31, 2014 (dollahousands):

Payment Due by Period (1

Less than 2to3 4t05 More than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long Term Debt (2  $ 27,56( % 10,35¢ 9,607 6,16¢ 1,42¢
Operating Lease $ 11,38: $ 3,69t 5,06 2,62¢ -

(1) Securitization trust debt, in the aggregate amtof $1,598.5 million as of December 31, 2014nistted from this table because it
becomes due as and when the related receivablasdmis reduced by payments and charge-offs. BEegpgetyments, which will depend
on the performance of such receivables, as to wihiere can be no assurance, are $636.5 million0h52 $468.3 million in 2016, $28&
million in 2017, $143.2 million in 2018, $56.8 riwh in 2019, and $7.9 million in 2020. The $1.3limvl in debt associated with the
Fireside receivables acquisition was repaid in falDanuary 2015.

(2) Longterm debt includes residual interest debt, senemused debt and subordinated renewable n¢

For debt that is due in 2015, we anticipate regaitivith a combination of cash flows from operascand the potential issuance of new debt.
Warehouse Credit Facilities

The terms on which credit has been available tmupurchase of automobile contracts have variggdent years, as shown in the
following summary of our warehouse credit faciktie

Facility Established in December 2010.December 2010 we entered into a $100 million-jwear warehouse credit line with
affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Fortresefiment Group. The facility is structured to allesvto fund a portion of the purchase price
of automobile contracts by borrowing from a creddiility to our consolidated subsidiary Page Sixéing LLC. The facility provides for
advances up to 88% of eligible finance receivablesthe loans under it accrue interest at a rabeefmonth LIBOR plus 5.73% per annum,
with a minimum rate of 6.73% per annum. In March2this facility was amended to extend the reva@wperiod to March 2015 and to
include an amortization period through March 20dr7ainy receivables pledged to the facility at thd ef the revolving period. There was
$23.6 million outstanding under this facility atd@enber 31, 2014.

Facility Established in May 2012n May 11, 2012, we entered into an additional $hillon one-year warehouse credit line with
Citibank, N.A. The facility is structured to allows to fund a portion of the purchase price of awatioite contracts by borrowing from a credit
facility to our consolidated subsidiary Page Eighhding, LLC. The facility provides for effectivel\eances up to 88.0% of eligible finance
receivables. The loans under the facility accrierest at one-month LIBOR plus 5.50% per annunt) @iminimum rate of 6.25% per
annum. In August 2014, this facility was amendedxtend the revolving period to August 2016 anthtdude an amortization period throu
August 2017 for any receivables pledged to thdifacit the end of the revolving period. At DecemBé&, 2014 there was $33.3 million
outstanding under this facility.

51




Capital Resources

Securitization trust debt is repaid from collecian the related receivables, and becomes dueardance with its terms as the
principal amount of the related receivables is cedu Although the securitization trust debt alss &léernative final maturity dates, those
dates are significantly later than the dates atiwhepayment of the related receivables is antieghaand at no time in our history have any of
our sponsored asset-backed securities reachedatiesmative final maturities.

The acquisition of automobile contracts for subseddransfer in securitization transactions, amdrtéed to fund spread accounts
initial overcollateralization, if any, when thosarnsactions take place, results in a continuing fieecapital. The amount of capital require
most heavily dependent on the rate of our autoraatmhtract purchases, the required level of indiatlit enhancement in securitizations, and
the extent to which the trusts and related spreadumts either release cash to us or capture oashcollections on securitized automobile
contracts. We plan to adjust our levels of autoreot@ntract purchases and the related capital repeints to match anticipated releases of
cash from the trusts and related spread accounts.

Capitalization

Over the period from January 1, 2012 through Deear8l, 2014 we have managed our capitalizatiors§yimg and refinancing de
as summarized in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands

RESIDUAL INTEREST FINANCING:

Beginning balanc $ 19,09¢ $ 13,77 $ 21,88
Issuance: - 20,00( -
Payment: (6,769 (14,677 (8,117

Ending balance $ 12327  $ 19,09¢ $ 13,77:

SECURITIZATION TRUST DEBT:

Beginning balanc $ 1,177,55 $ 792,490 % 583,06!
Issuance: 923,00( 778,00( 558,50(
Payment: (502,19) (382,59) (350,98)
Amortization of discoun 13C 60C 1,91
Cancellation of debt - (10,94) -

Ending balance $ 1,598,491 $ 1,177,55¢ $ 792,49°

SENIOR SECURED DEBT, RELATED PARTY:

Beginning balanc $ 38,55¢ $ 50,13t $ 58,34«
Issuance: - 5,28¢ -
Paymentt (39,187 (18,857) (11,200
Debt discount net of amortization 623 1,99: 2,991

Ending balance $ - $ 38,55¢ $ 50,13¢

SUBORDINATED RENEWABLE NOTES:

Beginning balanc $ 19,14: % 23,28. % 20,75(
Issuance: 57¢ 1,27¢ 4,95
Payments (4,489 (5,415 (2,426

Ending balance $ 15,237 $ 19,14  $ 23,28:

DEBT SECURED BY RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE:

Beginning balanc $ 13,117 $ 57,107 $ 166,82¢
Paymentt (12,456) (45,969 (121,41
Accretion of premiun 712 2,72¢ 4,57¢
Mark to fair value (123) (747) 7,118

Ending balance $ 1,25C $ 13,117  $ 57,10"
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Residual Interest Financing

In July 2007, we established a combination termrandlving residual credit facility and have usdidible residual interests in
securitizations as collateral for floating raterosrings. The amount that we were able to borrow ezasputed using an agreed valuation
methodology of the residuals, subject to an ovenatkimum principal amount of $120 million, repretehby (i) a $60 million Class A-1
variable funding note (the “revolving note”), ani & $60 million Class A-2 term note (the “termte. The term note was fully drawn in
July 2007 and was originally due in July 2009. Aswdy 2008, we had drawn $26.8 million on the dgirgy note. The facility’s revolving
feature expired in July 2008. On July 10, 2008 weaded the terms of the combination term and révglkesidual credit facility, (i)
eliminating the revolving feature and increasing ithterest rate, (ii) consolidating the amountsitb@ing on the Class A-1 note with the
Class A-2 note, (iii) establishing an amortizatsmiedule for principal reductions on the Clasg Aete, and (iv) providing for an extension
our option if certain conditions were met, of thasd A2 note maturity from June 2009 to June 2010. IreRG09 we met all such conditic
and extended the maturity. In conjunction with &meendment, we reduced the principal amount outstgrid $70 million by delivering to
the lender (i) warrants valued as being equivaie2500,000 common shares, or $4,071,429, anda@h of $12,765,244. The warrants
represent the right to purchase 2,500,000 CPS cansimares at a nominal exercise price, at any tiee  July 10, 2018. In May 2010, we
extended the maturity date from June 2010 to Mayi2h May 2011, we extended the maturity datéeffacility from May 2011 to May
2012. In February 2012, we exchanged certain pusiygpledged residual interests with new, previpusipledged, residual interests and
extended the maturity date to February 2013. Ine®eper 2012, the maturity date was again extena&dptember 2013 and the requirement
for monthly principal repayments was eliminatedeaftain pool performance measures are met. Thiliyagas repaid in full in September
2013.

In April 2013, we established a five-year $20 mifliterm residual facility. The facility is securey eligible residual interests in two
previously securitized pools of automobile recelgabThe facility provides for effective advancesta 70.0% of the related borrowing base.
Notes issued under the facility accrue interesing-month LIBOR plus 11.75% per annum. At December2R1L4, there was $12.3 million
outstanding under this facility.

Securitization Trust Debt.From July 2003 through April 2008, we treated altwitizations of automobile contracts as secured
financings for financial accounting purposes, draldsset-backed securities issued in such seatiotiz remain on our consolidated balance
sheet as securitization trust debt. Our Septen@8 and the resecuritization of the remaining receivables frorarstransaction in Septem|
2010 were each structured as a sale for financ@dumnting purposes and the asset-backed secustigsd in those transactions have not been
and are not on our consolidated balance sheete Qb1 all 15 of our securitizations have beertékas secured financings and make up
$1,598.5 million of our securitization trust debDecember 31, 2014.

Senior Secured DebtFrom 1998 to 2005, we entered into a series offiimg transactions with Levine Leichtman CapitaftRers
I, L.P. In July 2007 we repaid the final amountedinder these financing transactions. On Jun2@®IB, we entered into a series of
agreements pursuant to which an affiliate of Leir&htman Capital Partners purchased a $10 miflisatyear, fixed rate, senior secured
note from us. The indebtedness is secured by sulzdha all of our assets, though not by the aseétsur special-purpose financing
subsidiaries. In July 2008, in conjunction with #traendment of the residual interest financing asutised above, the lender purchased an
additional $15 million note with substantially teeme terms as the $10 million note. Pursuant tduhe 30, 2008 securities purchase
agreement, we issued to the lender 1,225,000 sbhoegnmon stock. In addition, we issued the lenderwarrants: (i) warrants that we re
to as the FMV Warrants, which are exercisable {661,114 shares of our common stock, at an exepcise of $1.39818 per share, and (ii)
warrants that we refer to as the N Warrants, whighexercisable for 285,781 shares of our comnmoksat a nominal exercise price. Both
the FMV Warrants and the N Warrants are exercisablenole or in part and at any time up to andudahg June 30, 2018. We valued the
warrants using the Black-Scholes valuation moddlragorded their value as a liability on our coitatkd balance sheet because the terms o
the warrants also included a provision wherebylghder could require us to purchase the warramtsash. That provision was eliminated by
mutual agreement in September 2008. The FMV Wasnaste initially exercisable to purchase 1,500,80@res for $2.573 per share, were
adjusted in connection with the July 2008 issuarfagther warrants to become exercisable to purch#&®4,324 shares at $2.4672 per share,
and were further adjusted in connection with a 2099 amendment of our option plan to become esahte at $1.44 per share. Upon
issuance in September 2009 of the Fortress WatrenEMV Warrant was further adjusted to becomeasable to purchase 1,600,991
shares at an exercise price of $1.407 per shamn $guance in March 2010 of the Page Five Warthat-MV Warrant was further adjusted
to become exercisable to purchase 1,611,114 shhessexercise price of $1.39818 per share. AthefFMV Warrants and N Warrants were
exercised in November 2013 and are no longer oudstg.
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In November 2009 we entered into an additional @gent with this lender whereby they purchased ditiadal $5 million note.
The note accrued interest at 15.0% and was repd&¢ember 2010 at which time the lender purchaseelv $27.8 million note under
substantially the same terms as the $10 million&k& million notes already outstanding. The $27ilion note accrued interest at 16.0% |
matured in December 2013. Concurrent with the issei@f the $27.8 million note, the term $10 milliamd $15 million notes were amended
to change their maturity dates to December 2018oimjunction with the issuance of the $27.8 millrmte, we issued to the lender 880,000
shares of common stock and 1,870 shares of Seres&rtible preferred stock. Each share of théeSé& convertible preferred stock was
exchanged for 1,000 shares of our common stockioe 15, 2011, upon shareholder approval of suchasge. At the time of issuance, the
value of the common stock and Series B preferrecksivas $753,000 and $1.6 million, respectively.Narch 31, 2011, we sold an
additional $5 million note due February 29, 2012k&P. In April 2011 we purchased from LLCP a portiof an outstanding subordinated
note issued by our CPS Cayman Residual Trust 2QG8é financed that purchase by issuing to LLCRwa $3 million note which was fully
repaid in June 2012. In November 2011, we solddalitianal $5 million note which was fully repaid @ctober 2012. In February 2012, we
extended the maturity of the $5 million note thatsveriginally due in February 2012 to March 2012wit was repaid in full. In April 2013
we repaid the $15 million note, reduced the inter@®s on the remaining notes from 14.0% to 13p@¥@nnum and extended the maturity of
the remaining notes to June 30, 2014. In Januaty 2@ repaid the $10 million note and in March 2@&drepaid the remaining notes
aggregating $28.9 million.

Subordinated Renewable Notes Del. June 2005, we began issuing registered subdetimenewable notes in an ongoing offel
to the public. Upon maturity, the notes are autically renewed for the same term as the maturirtggjaunless we repay the notes or the
investor notifies us within 15 days after the miggutlate of his note that he wants it repaid. Rezgtwotes bear interest at the rate we are
offering at that time to other investors with sianihote maturities. Based on the terms of the iddad notes, interest payments may be
required monthly, quarterly, annually or upon miguAt December 31, 2014 there were $15.2 millidrsuch notes outstanding.

We must comply with certain affirmative and negatdovenants related to debt facilities, which regjuramong other things, that we
maintain certain financial ratios related to ligtydnet worth, capitalization, investments, acdigss, restricted payments and certain
dividend restrictions. In addition, certain sedaétion and non-securitization related debt contagss-default provisions that would allow
certain creditors to declare default if a defagltwred under a different facility. As of DecemBér 2014, we were in compliance with all
such covenants.

Forward-looking Statements

This report on Form 10-K includes certain " forwdmdking statements ". Forwatdeking statements may be identified by the us
words such as " anticipates, " " expects, " " pldnisstimates, " or words of like meaning. Agtie specifically identified forward-looking
statements, factors that could affect charge-aftsracovery rates include changes in the geneoalaguic climate, which could affect the
willingness or ability of obligors to pay pursudatthe terms of contracts, changes in laws respgctnsumer finance, which could affect
ability to enforce rights under contracts, and ¢feanin the market for used vehicles, which couldcafthe levels of recoveries upon sale of
repossessed vehicles. Factors that could affeate@enues in the current year include the levelsash releases from existing pools of
contracts, which would affect our ability to purskacontracts, the terms on which we are able tmiia such purchases, the willingness of
dealers to sell contracts to us on the terms tiudtdrs, and the terms on which we are able topdeta term securitizations once contracts are
acquired. Factors that could affect our expensésdaiturrent year include competitive conditionshie market for qualified personnel,
investor demand for asset-backed securities apdasitrates (which affect the rates that we pagsset-backed securities issued in our
securitizations). The statements concerning striungfisecuritization transactions as secured finegeecand the effects of such structures on
financial items and on future profitability alsedprward-looking statements. Any change to thecstire of our securitization transaction
could cause such forwatdeking statements not to be accurate. Both theuatnaf the effect of the change in structure onpofitability anc
the duration of the period in which our profitatyilivould be affected by the change in securitizattyucture are estimates. The accuracy of
such estimates will be affected by the rate at twiae purchase and sell contracts, any changesinate, the credit performance of such
contracts, the financial terms of future securitas, any changes in such terms over time, aner déittors that generally affect our
profitability.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

From July 2003 through April 2008 all of our setizeations were structured as secured financingfifancial accounting purposes.
In September 2008, we securitized $198.7 millionwf automobile contracts in a structure thatéatied as a sale of the receivables for
financial accounting purposes. The terms of thee3eper 2008 securitization provided for us (1)aatmue servicing the sold portfolio, (2)
to retain a 5.0% interest in the bonds issued bytrilst to which we sold the automobile contraotd ) to earn additional compensation
contingent upon (a) the return to the holders ef¢énior bonds issued by the trust reaching cedagets or (b) “lifetime” cumulative net
charge-offs on the automobile contracts being belgwe-determined level. In September 2010 we cargzed the remaining receivables
from the September 2008 transaction in a similféfrbalance sheet" structure. The September 2018action is treated as a sale of the
receivables for financial accounting purposes. "&giical Accounting Policies" for a detailed dission of our securitization structure.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to interest rate risk during théogelbetween when contracts are purchased from ideatel when such contracts
become part of a term securitization. Specificaltg, interest rate due on our warehouse crediitfasiare adjustable while the interest rates
on the contracts are fixed. Therefore, if interagts increase, the interest we must pay to odelsnunder warehouse credit facilities is likely
to increase while the interest we receive from Wwaused automobile contracts remains the same.rdsudt, excess spread cash flow would
likely decrease during the warehousing period. Addally, automobile contracts warehoused and #emritized during a rising interest rate
environment may result in less excess spread tawhd us. Historically, our securitization fadiéis have paid fixed rate interest to security
holders set at prevailing interest rates at the trinthe closing of the securitization, which may take place until several months after we
purchased those contracts. Our customers, on liee band, pay fixed rates of interest on the autbl@@ontracts, set at the time they
purchase the underlying vehicles. A decrease irssxspread cash flow could adversely affect ouriegs and cash flow.

To mitigate, but not eliminate, the short-term niglating to interest rates payable under the warsé facilities, we have historically
held automobile contracts in the warehouse creditifies for less than four months. To mitigatet hot eliminate, the long-term risk relating
to interest rates payable by us in securitizatisreshave structured our term securitization tratsas to include pre-funding structures,
whereby the amount of notes issued exceeds therdraboontracts initially sold to the trusts. Wepekt to continue to use pre-funding
structures in our securitizations. In pre-funditigg proceeds from the pre-funded portion are helhiescrow account until we sell the
additional contracts to the trust. In pre-fundecusiizations, we lock in the borrowing costs wifspect to the contracts we subsequently
deliver to the securitization trust. However, weuinan expense in pre-funded securitizations eguile difference between the money
market yields earned on the proceeds held in esprmrto subsequent delivery of contracts andnkerest rate paid on the notes
outstanding. The amount of such expense may vagpiie these mitigation strategies, an increapeewailing interest rates would cause us
to receive less excess spread cash flows on autlEnwaimtracts, and thus could adversely affectearnings and cash flows.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

This report includes Consolidated Financial Stat@sienotes thereto and an Independent AuditorsbRegt the pages indicated
below, in the " Index to Financial Statements. "

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedurefinder the supervision and with the participatidthe Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, management of the Comphay evaluated the effectiveness of the design pacthtion of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e) under the Securities ExchangeAt934 (the " Exchange Act ") as of
December 31, 2014 (the " Evaluation Date " ). Bagsuh that evaluation, the Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer concluded
that, as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’sloésce controls and procedures are effective (@rtsure that information required to be
disclosed by us in reports that the Company fitesubbmits under the Exchange Act is recorded, msemt, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the rules and forfthe Securities and Exchange Commission; ando(i@nsure that information required to be
disclosed in the reports that the Company filesutimits under the Exchange Act is accumulated anthwnicated to our management,
including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer abldief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisionsgarding required disclosures. The
certifications of our chief executive officer anltief financial officer required under Section 3G2he Sarbanes-Oxley Act have been filed as
Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this report.

Internal Control.Management’s Report on Internal Control over FigrRReporting is included in this Annual Report niradiately
below. During the fiscal quarter ended December2814, there were no changes in our internal cbaotrer financial reporting that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting. We are responsible for establishing and maiimgiadequate
internal control over financial reporting as defirie Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchangeoh 1934. Our internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasdé@alssurance to our management and Board of Diretgarding the preparation and fair
presentation of published financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can aolyige reasonable assurance with respect to finhatatement preparation and
presentation.

Management, with the participation of the chief@xese and chief financial officers, assessed ffecBveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December3114. In making this assessment, we used theiargtet forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis&DSO) in the 2013 Internal Control — Integratedrirework. Based on this
assessment, management, with the participationeofhief executive and chief financial officerslidees that, as of December 31, 2014, our
internal control over financial reporting is effivet based on those criteria.

Our internal control over financial reporting asDdcember 31, 2014, has been audited by Crowe HibiiaP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated inrtheport which is included herein.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not Applicable.
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PART I

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

Information regarding directors of the registraniricorporated by reference to the registrant’sdefe proxy statement for its
annual meeting of shareholders to be held in 26#5"(2015 Proxy Statement " ). The 2015 Proxyestant will be filed not later than April
30, 2015. Information regarding executive officefshe registrant appears in Part | of this repamg is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference to the 2015 Proxy Stat¢éme
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Incorporated by reference to the 2015 Proxy Stat¢éme
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Incorporated by reference to the 2015 Proxy Statéme

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference to the 2015 Proxy Stat¢éme
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statements listed below under thdicap Index to Financial Statements " are filedagzart of this report. No financial
statement schedules are filed as the requiredn#tion is inapplicable or the information is presehnin the Consolidated Financial
Statements or the related notes. Separate finastat@iments of the Company have been omitted a&Sdhwpany is primarily an operating
company and its subsidiaries are wholly owned andat have minority equity interests held by angspa other than the Company in
amounts that together exceed 5% of the total catedeld assets as shown by the most recent yeaG@msblidated Balance Sheet.

The exhibits listed below are filed as part of tle@port, whether filed herewith or incorporatedrbference to an exhibit filed with t
report identified in the parentheses following tlescription of such exhibit. Unless otherwise iatkd, each such identified report was filed
by or with respect to the registrant.

Exhibit

Number Description “**” indicates compensatory plan or agreeme

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Noverh®e2001, by and among the Registrant, CPS Mergehsa. and MFN
Financial Corporation. (Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-Kefil on November 19, 2001 by MFN Financial Corporgtio

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation (Exhibit 3.1Rorm 10-K filed March 31, 2009)

3.1.1 Certificate of Designation re Series B Preferrexh(git 3.1.1 to Form 8-K filed by the registrant Brecember 30, 2010)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (Exhibit 3.3 to Forkfed July 20, 2009)

4, Instruments defining the rights of holders of lalegm debt of certain consolidated subsidiarieshefregistrant are omitted
pursuant to the exclusion set forth in subdivisi@msiv)(iii)(A) and (b)(v) of Item 601 of Regulath S-K (17 CFR 229.601). The
registrant agrees to provide copies of such inggntmto the United States Securities and Exchaogen@ission upon request.

4.1 Form of Indenture re Renewable Unsecured Subosetindbtes (“RUS Notes”). (Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8, 833-121913)

421 Form of RUS Notes (Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-2, no.-323913)

4.3 Form of Indenture re additional Renewable Unsec@wéobrdinated Notes (“ARUS Notes”) (Exhibit 4.1Rorm S-1, no. 333-
168976)

4.3.1 Form of ARUS Notes (Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-1, no3313%8976)

4.4 Supplement dated December 7, 2010 to IndenturdrigRANotes (Exhibit 4.3 to Form S-1, no. 333-168976)

4.4 Supplement dated January 22, 2014 to IndenturdrtdRNotes (Exhibit 4.4 to Form S-1, no. 333-190766)

4.29 Revolving Credit Agreement dated December 23, Z&¥ibit 4.29 to Form 10-K filed March 31, 2011)

4.45 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst P013-A (exhibit 4.43 to Form 10-Q/A filed byetregistrant on August
14, 2013)

4.46 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Marcl®d132related to notes issued by CPS Auto Receigsdhiest 2013-A (exhibit
4.44 to Form 10-Q/A filed by the registrant on Asgli4, 2013)

4.47 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst P013-B (exhibit 4.45 to Form 10-Q/A filed yetregistrant on August
14, 2013)
4.48 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Junel3,28lated to notes issued by CPS Auto Receivablest 2013-B (exhibit
: 4.46 to Form 10-Q/A filed by the registrant on Asgli4, 2013)
4.49 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst P013-C (exhibit 4.47 to Form 8-K/A filed byethegistrant on October
30, 2013)

4.50 Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Septeint#13, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rebkgs Trust 2013-C
(exhibit 4.48 to Form 8-K/A filed by the registram October 30, 2013)

451 Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahiest P013-D (exhibit 4.49 Form 8-K/A filed by thegistrant on January 22,
2014)
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Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Decemi281B, related to notes issued by CPS Auto ReblEsarust 2013-D
(exhibit 4.50 Form 8-K/A filed by the registrant danuary 22, 2014)

Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst P014-A (exhibit 4.53 to Form 8-K filed by thegistrant on March 19,
2014)

Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Marcld14 2related to notes issued by CPS Auto Receisdhiest 2014-A (exhibit
4.54 to Form 8-K filed by the registrant on Mar¢h 2014)

Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst P014-B (exhibit 4.55 to Form 8-K filed by tregistrant on June 24,
2014)

Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Junel¥,28lated to notes issued by CPS Auto Receivablest 2014-B (exhibit
4.56 to Form 8-K filed by the registrant on June 28114)

Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst 2014-C (exhibit 4.47 to Form 8-K/A filed byethegistrant on October
28, 2014)

Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of Septeint#14, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rebkgs Trust 2014-C
(exhibit 4.58 to Form 8-K/A filed by the registrao October 28, 2014)

Indenture re Notes issued by CPS Auto Receivahigst 2014-D (to be filed by amendment )

Sale and Servicing Agreement dated as of DecemI®2014, related to notes issued by CPS Auto Rebkiga rust 2014-D (to be
filed by amendment )

1997 Long-Term Incentive Stock Plan ("1997 PlaiEjHibit 10.20 to Form S-2, no. 333-121913) **
Form of Option Agreement under 1997 Plan (ExhiBi11 to Form 10-K filed March 13, 2006) **

2006 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan as amendedIAg; 2013 (Incorporated by reference to pagestArdugh A-10 of the
definitive proxy statement filed by the registrantMarch 20, 2013)**

Form of Option Agreement under the 2006 Long-Teguity Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.14.1 to registrarform 10-K filed
March 9, 2007)**

Form of Option Agreement under the 2006 Long-Temmify Incentive Plan (Exhibit 99.(D)(2) to registtas Schedule TO filed
November 12, 2009)*

Form of Option Agreement under the 2006 Long-Temuify Incentive Plan (Exhibit 99.(D)(3) to registis Schedule TO filed
November 12, 2009)*

Warrant dated July 10, 2008, issued to Citigroupb@l Markets Inc. (Exhibit 10.23 to registrant'siadL0-Q filed August 11,
2008)

Revolving Credit Agreement dated September 25, 2008ng the registrant, its subsidiary Page Foudifgn LLC, and Fortress
Credit Corp. ("Fortress") (Exhibit 10.1 to registta Form 8-K filed October 1, 2009)

Registrant’s Code of Ethics for Senior Financidii€gfrs (Exhibit 14 to Form 10-K filed March 13, 280
List of subsidiaries of the registrant (Exhibit @1Form 10-K filed March 10, 2014)

Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP (filed herewith)

Rule 13a-14(a) certification by chief executiveiadf (filed herewith)

Rule 13a-14(a) certification by chief financialio#r (filed herewith)

Section 1350 certification (filed herewith)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duth@nzed.

CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. (registrant)

February 25, 2015 By: /sl CHARLES E. BRADLEY, JR
Charles E. Bradley, JiPresident

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

February 25, 2015 /sl CHARLES E. BRADLEY, JR
Charles E. Bradley, JDirector,
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

February 25, 2015 /s/ CHRIS A. ADAMS
Chris A. Adamspirector

February 25, 2015 /s/ BRIAN J. RAYHILL
Brian J. Rayhill Director

February 25, 2015 /s/ WILLIAM B. ROBERTS
William B. RobertsDirector

February 25, 2015 /sl GREGORY S. WASHEI
Gregory S. WasheBirector

February 25, 2015 /s/ DANIEL S. WOOD
Daniel S. WoodDirector

February 25, 2015 /sl JEFFREY P. FRIT.
Jeffrey P. Fritz, Executiv€ice President and Chief
Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc.
Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheets of Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. santsidiaries (the Company) as
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related cdasetl statements of operations, comprehensive iecshareholders' equity and ¢
flows for each of the years in the three-year meeoded December 31, 2014. We also have audite@dngpanys internal control ovi
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, basedriteria established in the 2013 Internal Cdntrintegrated Framework issued by
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd®@ommission (COSO). The Compamyhanagement is responsible for these fina
statements, for maintaining effective internal cohover financial reporting, and for its assesshudrihe effectiveness of internal control c
financial reporting, included in the accompanyingridgemeng Report on Internal Control over Financial RepaytiOur responsibility is
express an opinion on these financial statememt@aropinion on the Company's internal control direncial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thetstmliobtain reasonable assurance about whethéintirecial statements are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal cordx@r financial reporting was maintained in all eval respects. Our audits of the finan
statements included examining, on a test basisleaee supporting the amounts and disclosures ifitaacial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estimatede by management, and evaluating the ovenalhfial statement presentation.

audit of internal control over financial reportimgluded obtaining an understanding of internaltadrover financial reporting, assessing
risk that a material weakness exists, and testimljevaluating the design and operating effectiveimésnternal control based on the asse
risk. Our audits also included performing such oihicedures as we considered necessary in thentstences. We believe that our at
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableasssuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidar external purposes in accordance with gelyeeaicepted accounting principles
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (dtaimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseo€dimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgemparation of financial statements in accor@amdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshefdompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalssurance regarding prevention or timely deteaifounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtyver financial reporting may not prevent or deteisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods argject to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaaeferred to above present fairly, in all matergpects, the financial position of Consu
Portfolio Services, Inc. and subsidiaries as ofddaloer 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of thparations and their cash flows for eac
the years in the thregear period ended December 31, 2014 in conformitly accounting principles generally accepted inWimited States
America. Also in our opinion, Consumer Portfolior@ees, Inc. maintained, in all material respeef$ective internal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on therieriestablished in the 2013 Internal Contrdintegrated Framework issued by
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred@ommission.

/sl CROWE HORWATH LLI

Costa Mesa, California
February 25, 2015
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

December 31,

2014 2013
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 17,85¢ % 22,11
Restricted cash and equivale 175,38: 132,28«
Finance receivable 1,595,95! 1,155,06.
Less: Allowance for finance credit losses (61,460 (39,626
Finance receivables, n 1,534,49 1,115,43
Finance receivables measured at fair vi 1,664 14,47¢
Residual interest in securitizatio 68 854
Furniture and equipment, n 1,161 76€
Deferred financing cos 12,36: 11,07
Deferred tax assets, r 42,84% 59,21t
Accrued interest receivab 23,37 18,67(
Other assets 23,84% 21,48:
$ 1,833,05 % 1,396,36!
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 2166 $ 24,83¢
Warehouse lines of crec 56,83¢ 9,45
Residual interest financir 12,327 19,09¢
Debt secured by receivables measured at fair \ 1,25(C 13,117
Securitization trust del 1,598,49 1,177,55!
Senior secured debt, related pe - 38,55¢
Subordinated renewable notes 15,23: 19,14:
1,705,80! 1,301,76.
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholders' Equity
Preferred stock, $1 par value; authorized 4,998sI0es; none issu - -
Series A preferred stock, $1 par value; author&,680,000 shares; none isst - -
Series B preferred stock, $1 par value; authoriz8@0 shares; none issu - -
Common stock, no par value; authorized 75,000,0@0es; 25,540,640 and 24,015,585 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2014 argl 28dpectivel) 80,51 73,42
Retained earning 51,79: 22,27"
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,057 (1,09%)
127,25: 94,60:
$ 1,833,05 $ 1,396,36!

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financéé®tents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Revenues:
Interest incom: $ 286,73:  $ 231,33 $ 175,31
Servicing fee: 1,37¢ 3,09: 2,30¢
Other income 12,14¢ 10,40¢ 9,58¢
Gain on cancellation of debt — 10,947 —
300,25t 255,77! 187,20¢
Expenses:
Employee cost 50,12¢ 42,96( 35,57
General and administrati 19,25« 16,34¢ 15,42¢
Interest 50,39t 58,17¢ 79,42
Provision for credit losse 108,22¢ 76,86¢ 33,49t
Provision for contingent liabilitie - 7,841 -
Marketing 16,11¢ 13,36: 10,66"
Occupancy 3,464 2,60¢ 2,89
Depreciation and amortization 42¢ 437 543
248,01 218,60: 178,02:

Income before income tax exper 52,24: 37,17: 9,18
Income tax expense (benefit) 22,72¢ 16,16¢ (60,227
Net income $ 29,51t $ 21,000 $ 69,40¢
Earnings per shan

Basic $ 118 $ 09 $ 3.5¢€

Diluted 0.9z 0.67 2.7z
Number of shares used in computing earnings pees

Basic 25,04( 21,53¢ 19,47

Diluted 32,03: 31,57« 25,47¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financéé®tents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 29,51¢ $ 21,008 % 69,40¢
Other comprehensive income (loss); change in fuistidis of pension plan
net of ($2,654), $3,044 and ($150) in tax for 20413 and 2012,
respectively (3,956 4,54 2,89¢
Comprehensive income $ 2556( $ 25547 $ 72,30¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancééBtents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands)

Balance at January 1, 20

Common stock issued upon
exercise of options and warrar

Purchase of common stock

Pension benefit obligation

Stock-based compensation

Reclassification of warrants from
debt

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2012

Common stock issued upon
exercise of options and warrar

Pension benefit obligation

Stock-based compensation

Reclassification of warrants from
debt

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2013

Common stock issued upon
exercise of options and warrar

Pension benefit obligation

Stock-based compensation

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2014

Retained Accumulated
Earnings/ Other
Common Stocl (Accumulatec Comprehensivi
Shares Amount Deficit) Loss Total

19,527 $ 62,46¢ $ (68,139 $ (8,53%) (14,207
632 1,20¢ - - 1,20¢
(320 (43%) - - (435)

- - - 2,89¢ 2,89¢

- 1,13¢ - - 1,13¢

- 1,307 - - 1,307

— — 69,40¢ — 69,40¢
19,83¢ $ 65,67¢ $ 127  $ (5,637) 61,31’
4,177 3,291 - - 3,291
- - - 4,54: 4,54;

- 3,86¢ - - 3,86¢

- 588 - - 588

— — 21,00¢ — 21,00¢
2401¢ $ 73,42: $ 2227 $ (1,09 94,60:
1,52t 3,25¢ - - 3,25¢
- - - (3,95¢6) (3,95¢6)

- 3,83t - - 3,83t

— — 29,51¢ — 29,51¢
25,54  $ 80,51: $ 51,790  $ (5,05)) 127,25:

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancééBtents.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 29,51¢ % 21,008 % 69,40¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Accretion of deferred acquisition fe (16,217 (20,56%) (15,957
Accretion of purchase discount on receivables mreasat fair value (289 (1,427 (4,149
Amortization of discount on securitization trusbd 13C 60C 1,91
Amortization of discount on senior secured debgteel party 623 1,992 2,29¢
Accretion of premium on debt secured by receivableasured at fair valt 712 2,72¢ 4,57¢
Mark to fair value on debt secured by receivabtdaiavalue (129 (747) 7,11z
Mark to fair value of receivables at fair val 27 59t (6,639
Depreciation and amortizatic 42¢ 437 543
Amortization of deferred financing cos 6,76 6,80: 5,95¢
Provision for credit losse 108,22¢ 76,86¢ 33,49
Provision for contingent liabilitie - 7,841 -
Stocl-based compensation expel 3,83t 3,86¢ 1,13¢
Interest income on residual ass (372) - (410
Gain on cancellation of de - (10,949 -
Change in fair value of warrar - - 69t
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accrued interest receivab (4,702 (8,259 (3,979
Other asset (1,925 (2,189 5,62¢
Deferred tax assets, r 16,36¢ 16,42¢ (60,640
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (7,135 4,33 (6,002)
Net cash provided by operating activities 135,82 99,37: 34,98¢
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of finance receivables held for invest (944,94 (764,08) (551,749
Payments received on finance receivables helchf@stmen 433,87( 337,09! 295,73:
Payments on receivables portfolio at fair ve 13,12: 46,01¢ 111,36:
Proceeds received on residual interest in secatitias 1,15¢ 3,97( -
Change in repossessions held in inven (447) (4,24¢) (1,237
Decreases (increases) in restricted cash and gashatents, ne (43,099 (27,839 54,78
Purchase of furniture and equipment (823) (477) (394
Net cash used in investing activities (541,151 (409,56¢) (91,499
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of securitization trust 923,00( 778,00( 558,50(
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated renewalys 57¢ 1,27¢ 4,957
Proceeds from issuance of senior secured debtedaberty - 5,28¢ -
Payments on subordinated renewable n (4,489 (5,415 (2,426
Net proceeds from (repayments of) warehouse lifiesealit 47,38 (12,279 (3,662
Net proceeds from (repayments of) residual intefieahcing deb (6,769 5,32: (8,117
Repayment of securitization trust di (502,199 (382,59) (350,98)
Repayment of debt secured by receivables measufenl gwalue (12,45¢) (45,969 (121,419
Repayment of senior secured debt, related | (39,187 (18,857 (12,200
Payment of financing cos (8,05¢) (8,739 (7,059
Repurchase of common sta - - (43%)
Exercise of options and warrants 3,25¢ 3,291 1,20¢
Net cash provided by financing activities 401,07¢ 319,34( 59,37¢
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivz (4,259 9,14¢ 2,87
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 22,11: 12,96¢ 10,09/
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 17,85¢ $ 22,11:  $ 12,96¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financéé®tents.






CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati

Cash paid during the period ft

Interest $ 4591: $ 50,66 $ 75,65¢

Income taxe: 6,52( 2,271 1,13¢
Non-cash financing activities

Pension benefit obligation, n 3,95¢ (4,542 (2,899

Derivative warrants reclassified from liabilities¢ommon stock upon

amendmen - 583 1,307

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancaéBients .
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Busines

Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. (" CPS ") wasorporated in California on March 8, 1991. CPS iemdubsidiaries (collectively,
the " Company ") specialize in purchasing andisarg retail automobile installment sale contrgctsontracts ") originated by licensed
motor vehicle dealers (" Dealers ") located tigtoaut the United States. Dealers located in TeRabfornia, Ohio, New Jersey, Florida and
Pennsylvania represented 10.0%, 8.7%, 5.7%, 5.0% &nd 4.8%, respectively, of contracts purchaseihg 2014 compared with 10.0%,
10.6%, 4.8%, 5.1%, 4.6% and 6.0% respectively i320lo other state had a concentration in exceds86b in 2014. We specialize in
contracts with borrowers who generally would noelpected to qualify for traditional financing prded by commercial banks or automol
manufacturers’ captive finance companies.

We are subject to various regulations and lawseg telate to the extension of credit in consumedit transactions. Failure to
comply with such laws and regulations could haweaterial adverse effect on the Company.

Principles of Consolidatio

The Consolidated Financial Statements include tceunts of Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. asavitolly-owned subsidiaries,
certain of which are special purpose subsidiarleSRS "), formed to accommodate the structures under whizlpurchase and securitize «
contracts. The Consolidated Financial Statemestsiatlude the accounts of CPS Leasing, Inc., & 8@ned subsidiary. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, wsider all highly liquid debt instruments with drigl maturities of three months
less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalentsstafstash on hand and due from banks and moneketnaccounts. Substantially all of our
cash is deposited at three financial institutidiie. maintain cash due from banks in excess of theédbénsured deposit limits. We do not
believe we are exposed to any significant credit an these deposits. As part of certain finaremaknants related to debt facilities, we are
required to maintain a minimum unrestricted cadhra®. As of December 31, 2014, our unrestrictesth d@lance was $17.9 million, which
exceeded the minimum amounts required by our fimhsovenants.

Finance Receivable

Finance receivables, which we have the intent &ilidyato hold for the foreseeable future or umtiaturity or payoff, are presentec
cost. All finance receivable contracts are heldifioeestment. Interest income is accrued on the idrgréncipal balance. Origination fees, net
of certain direct origination costs, are deferrad eecognized in interest income using the interesthod without anticipating prepayments.
Generally, payments received on finance receivadlesestricted to certain securitized pools, &edrélated contracts cannot be resold.
Finance receivables are charged off pursuant tadgh@rolling documents of certain securitized pogenerally as described below under
Charge Off Policy. Management may authorize anresxéa of payment terms if collection appears likédlying the next calendar month.

Our portfolio of finance receivables consists ob#ifbalance homogeneous contracts that are caldgtevaluated for impairment
on a portfolio basis. We report delinquency on atiaetual basis. Once a Contract becomes greaterdh days delinquent, we do not
recognize additional interest income until the gbtiunder the Contract makes sufficient paymentsettess than 90 days delinquent. Any
payments received on a Contract that is greater30adays delinquent are first applied to accriéerést and then to principal reduction.

Allowance for Finance Credit Loss

In order to estimate an appropriate allowancedssés likely incurred on finance receivables, weaikss allowance methodology
commonly referred to as " static poolingyhich stratifies the finance receivable portfoliba separately identified pools based on theirqak
of origination, then uses historical performanceedsoned pools to estimate future losses on ¢yroeis. Historical loss experience is
adjusted as necessary for current economic condit/e consider our portfolio of finance receivalile be relatively homogenous and
consequently we analyze credit performance primarithe aggregate rather than stratification by particular credit quality indicator. Usi
analytical and formula driven techniques, we estiinzen allowance for finance credit losses, whichbeieve is adequate for probable
incurred credit losses that can be reasonably atgiiin our portfolio of finance receivable contsaé-or each monthly pool of contracts that
we purchase, we begin establishing the allowantieedmonth of acquisition and increase it overdiesequent 11 months, through a
provision for credit losses charged to our Constéid Statement of Operations. Net losses incumefthance receivables are charged to the
allowance. We evaluate the adequacy of the alloedycexamining current delinquencies, the charisties of the portfolio, the value of the
underlying collateral and historical loss trends.o®nditions change, our level of provisioning an@dllowance may change.






CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Finance Receivables and Related Debt Measured iat\fadue

In September 2011, we acquired $217.8 million mdfice receivables from Fireside Bank for a purchpase of $201.3 million. The
receivables were acquired by our wholly-owned sgiqmirpose subsidiary, CPS Fender Receivables, Whih issued a note for $197.3
million, with a fair value of $196.5 million.

The receivables we acquired are pledged as cdlldt@rdebt that was structured specifically foe scquisition of this portfolio.
Since the Fireside receivables were originatedrnmgteer entity with its own underwriting guidelinasd procedures, we elected to account for
the Fireside receivables and the related debt sdduwyr those receivables at their estimated fairesbo that changes in fair value will be
reflected in our results of operations as they nddle use our own assumptions about the factotsstbdelieve market participants would
use in pricing similar receivables and debt, ardb@sed on the best information available in theuoistances. The valuation method used to
estimate fair value may produce a fair value mesmant that may not be indicative of ultimate redlie value. Furthermore, while we
believe our valuation methods are appropriate amgdistent with those used by other market partitgahe use of different methods or
assumptions to estimate the fair value of certaiaricial instruments could result in different esttes of fair value. Those estimated values
may differ significantly from the values that wouldve been used had a readily available markesufcin receivables or debt existed, or had
such receivables or debt been liquidated, and tHidfezences could be material to the financiatestzents. Interest income from the
receivables and interest expense on the debt elrgld in interest income and interest expenseevely. Changes to the fair value of the
receivables and debt are also to be included @rest income and interest expense, respectively.

Charge Off Policy

Delinquent contracts for which the related finaneeticle has been repossessed are generally chaffggtdthe earliest of (1) the
month in which the proceeds from the sale of tharfced vehicle are received, (2) the month in wBilklays have passed from the date of
repossession or (3) the month in which the Contracbmes seven scheduled payments past due (sessReged and Other Assets below).
The amount charged off is the remaining princigdabce of the Contract, after the application efriet proceeds from the liquidation of the
financed vehicle. With respect to delinquent castsdor which the related financed vehicle hashe#n repossessed, the remaining principal
balance is generally charged off no later thareti of the month that the Contract becomes fivedaled payments past due.

Contract Acquisition Fees and Origination Costs

Upon purchase of a Contract from a Dealer, we @gdiyezither charge or advance the Dealer an aduridiee. Dealer acquisition
fees and deferred origination costs are appligdgaarrying value of finance receivables and aceeded into earnings as an adjustment t
yield over the estimated life of the Contract uding interest methou

Repossessed and Other As:

If a Contract obligor fails to make or keep promiger payments, or if the obligor is uncooperativeattempts to evade contact or
hide the vehicle, a supervisor will review the eotlon activity relating to the account to deterenihrepossession of the vehicle is warranted.
Generally, such a decision is made between the&utb0th day past the obligor's payment due datecould occur sooner or later,
depending on the specific circumstances. At the tine vehicle is repossessed we stop accruingestten the Contract, and reclassify the
remaining Contract balance to the line item "Othssets" on our Consolidated Balance Sheet attitha®d fair value less costs to sell.
Included in other assets in the accompanying Cateteld Balance Sheets are repossessed vehiclemgeadie of $10.4 million and $10.0
million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
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Treatment of Securitizations
Our term securitization structure has generallynkeefollows:

We sell contracts we acquire to a wholly-owned sdgrurpose subsidiary (" SPS "), which has bestablished for the limited
purpose of buying and reselling our contracts. $B& then transfers the same contracts to anottis, ¢ypically a statutory trust (" Trust
"). The Trust issues interest-bearing asset-baskedrities (" Notes "), in a principal amountiabto or less than the aggregate principal
balance of the contracts. We typically sell themtiacts to the Trust at face value and withoubuese, except representations and warranties
that we make to the Trust that are similar to thmewided to us by the Dealer. One or more investairchase the Notes issued by the Trust
(the " Noteholders " ); the proceeds from the séline Notes are then used to purchase the costfirach us. We may retain or sell
subordinated Notes issued by the Trust. In additienhave provided " Credit Enhancemefdr'the benefit of the Noteholders in three for
(1) an initial cash deposit to a bank account$ptead Account ) held by the Trust, (2) overcollateralization bétNotes, where the princiy
balance of the Notes issued is less than the pahbalance of the contracts, and (3) in the fofrsubordinated Notes. The agreements
governing the securitization transactions (colledti referred to as the " Securitization Agreeméntgequire that the initial level of Credit
Enhancement be supplemented by a portion of ca@lexfrom the contracts until the level of Credittancement reaches specified levels,
which are then maintained. The specified levelgareerally computed as a percentage of the prihaipaunt remaining unpaid under the
related contracts. The specified levels at whiehGhedit Enhancement is to be maintained will \dgpending on the performance of the
portfolios of contracts held by the Trusts and treoconditions. Such levels have increased ancedsed from time to time based on
performance of the various portfolios, and have alried from one Trust to another.

Our warehouse securitization structures are sirtoléine above, except that (i) the SPS that pusshtt®e contracts pledges the
contracts to secure promissory notes or loansttissues, and (ii) no increase in the required amof Credit Enhancement is contemplated.
Upon each sale of contracts in a securitizatiamcsitired as a secured financing, we retain as agseatar Consolidated Balance Sheet the
securitized contracts and record as indebtednegsdles issued in the transaction.

For all of the securitizations that we have congaletince July 2003 (other than the September 20@&aptember 2010
securitizations), we have the power to direct tlestnsignificant activities of the SPS. In additiare have the obligation to absorb losses and
the rights to receive benefits from the SPS, bétlitach could be potentially significant to the SABese types of securitization structures
are treated as secured financings, in which theivables remain on our Consolidated Balance Shedtthe debt issued by the SPS is shown
as a securitization trust debt on our Consolid8alénce Sheet.

Under the September 2008 and September 2010 seatioits and other term securitizations completéal po July 2003 (which
were structured as sales for financial accountinggses), we removed from our Consolidated Bal&imet the contracts sold and added to
our Consolidated Balance Sheet (i) the cash redeif’any, and (ii) the estimated fair value of thenership interest that we retained in
contracts sold in the securitization. That retaioedesidual interest (the " Residual ") consistéa) the cash held in the Spread Account, if
any, (b) overcollateralization, if any, (c) Notesained, if any, and (d) receivables from the Trwstich include the net interest receivables ("
NIRs" ). NIRs represent the estimated discounted dassfto be received from the Trust in the futuret, of principal and interest payable
with respect to the Notes, any premiums paid testr@or Note insurer (a “Note Insurer”), if anydatertain other expenses.

We recognize gains or losses attributable to ampgés in the estimated fair value of the Resid@déns in fair value are recogniz
as Other Income and losses are recorded as anrimgudiloss in the Consolidated Statement of OpmratiWe are not aware of an active
market for the purchase or sale of interests sadheResiduals; accordingly, we determine thenadéd fair value of the Residuals by
discounting the amount of anticipated cash floved the estimate will be released to us in the fuftive cash out method), using a discount
rate that we believe is appropriate for the risk®ived. The anticipated cash flows may includéemtions from both current and charged off
receivables. We have used an effective pre-taxodigcrate of 20% per annum.

We receive periodic base servicing fees for theisieg and collection of the contracts. In additiere are entitled to the cash flows
from the Trusts that represent collections on thr@racts in excess of the amounts required to pagipal and interest on the Notes, the base
servicing fees, and the premium paid to the Noseier, if any, and certain other fees (such asaeusnd custodial fees). Required principal
payments on the Notes are generally defined agapments sufficient to keep the principal balanfcéae Notes equal to the aggregate
principal balance of the related contracts (exelgdhose contracts that have been charged off) poe-determined percentage of such
balance. Where that percentage is less than 10@elated Securitization Agreements require acatdd payment of principal until the
principal balance of the Notes is reduced to threxiied percentage. Such accelerated principal payms said to createdvercollateralizatio
" of the Notes.
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If the amount of cash required for payment of fésigrest and principal on the senior Notes excéeelsmount collected during the
collection period, the shortfall is generally withd/n from the Spread Account, if any. If the casllected during the period exceeds the
amount necessary for the above allocations plusined) principal payments on the subordinated Natesyy, and there is no shortfall in the
related Spread Account or other form of Credit Erdement, the excess is released to us. If the@v&lit Enhancement amount is not at the
required level, then the excess cash collecteetagmed in the Trust until the specified leveléhiaved. Cash in the Spread Accounts is
restricted from our use. Cash held in the varique&d Accounts is invested in high quality, ligindestment securities, as specified in the
Securitization Agreements. In determining the valfithe Residuals, we have estimated the futuesrat prepayments, delinquencies,
defaults, default loss severity, and recovery raesll of these factors affect the amount anchgnof the estimated cash flows. Our estim
are based on historical performance of comparainiéracts.

Following a securitization that is structured aste for financial accounting purposes, we recaginierest income on the balance
the Residuals. In addition, we will recognize aiddial revenue in other income if the actual perfance of the contracts related to the
Residuals is better than our estimate of the vafuke Residual. If the actual performance of thetracts is worse than our estimate, then a
reduction to the carrying value of the Residual$ amelated impairment charge would be require@. $ecuritization structured as a secured
financing for financial accounting purposes, ingtiacome is recognized when accrued under thestefrthe related contracts and, therefore,
presents less potential for fluctuations in perfanee when compared to the approach used in a ttéorsatructured as a sale for financial
accounting purposes.

In all of our term securitizations, whether treaésdsecured financings or as sales, we have treegfine receivables (through a
subsidiary) to the securitization Trust. The diéfiece between the two structures is that in seeatitins that are treated as secured financings
we report the assets and liabilities of the sei@atibn Trust on our Consolidated Balance Sheetlddiboth structures the Noteholders’ and
the related securitization Trusts’ recourse agaiagor failure of the contract obligors to makgmants on a timely basis is limited, in
general, to our Finance Receivables, Spread Acs@mt Residuals.

Servicing

We consider the contractual servicing fee recetmedur managed portfolio held by non-consolidatgus&liaries to be equal to
adequate compensation. Additionally, we considat tirese fees would fairly compensate a subssnecer, should one be required. As a
result, no servicing asset or liability has beasogmized. Servicing fees received on the managgtbpo held by non-consolidated
subsidiaries are reported as income when earnedciBg fees received on the managed portfolio lgidonsolidated subsidiaries are
included in interest income when earned. Servicgts are charged to expense as incurred. Serfasgeceivable, which are included in
Other Assets in the accompanying Consolidated Bel&heets, represent fees earned but not yet ednhittus by the trustee.

Furniture and Equipmer

Furniture and equipment are stated at cost net@fraulated depreciation. We calculate depreciaiging the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, wiaage from three to five years. Assets held undpital leases and leasehold improvements
are amortized over the lesser of the estimatedilibeds of the assets or the related lease teAmmrtization expense on assets acquired
under capital lease is included with depreciatigpemse on owned assets.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disp@$ed

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intateglare reviewed for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset nudyoa recoverable. Recoverability of assets todde &nd used is measured by a comparison
of the carrying amount of an asset to future nehdbbws expected to be generated by the assmicH assets are considered to be impaired,
the impairment to be recognized is measured bamh@unt by which the carrying amount of the asseteeds the fair value of the assets.
Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lofvesirrying amount or fair value less costs to.sell
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Other Income
The following table presents the primary componehSther Income:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Direct mail revenue $ 797 % 7,000 % 5,94¢
Convenience fees reven 3,30( 2,96¢ 2,907
Recoveries on previously char¢-off contracts 142 177 392
Sales tax refund 50C 197 227
Other 22¢ 62 114
$ 12,14¢ % 10,40 % 9,58¢

Earnings Per Shar
The following table illustrates the computationbafsic and diluted earnings per share:

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands, except per share date

Numerator:
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per s $ 29,51¢ $ 21,008 % 69,40¢

Denominator
Denominator for basic earnings per share

- weighted average number of common shares outsigualdiring the yee 25,04( 21,53¢ 19,47:
Incremental common shares attributable to exedfieeitstanding options ai

warrants 6,992 10,03¢ 6,00
Denominator for diluted earnings per share 32,03. 31,57¢ 25,47¢
Basic earnings per share $ 1.1 $ 09 $ 3.5¢
Diluted earnings per share $ 09z $ 067 $ 2.7z

Incremental shares of 4.5 million, 2.1 million &i,000 related to stock options and warrants baea excluded from the diluted
earnings per share calculation for the years efam@mber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivelgusecthe effect is anti-dilutive.

Deferral and Amortization of Debt Issuance Cc

Costs related to the issuance of debt are defamddamortized using the interest method over théractual or expected term of the
related debt.

Income Taxe

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolaiédéeleral income tax return and combined or stpde state franchise tax retu
for certain states. We utilize the asset and lighihethod of accounting for income taxes, undercWiideferred income taxes are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable talifierences between the financial statement vatliexisting assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets antitiexbare measured using enacted tax rates exparegpply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expectece teebovered or settled. The effect on deferredstaka change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactmetd. d&e estimate a valuation allowance againstgbeton of the deferred tax asset whose
utilization in future periods is not more than like

Purchases of Company Stc
We record purchases of our own common stock atazabtreat the shares as retired.
Stock Option Plan

We recognize compensation costs in the financééstents for all share-based payments granted queasieto January 1, 2006
based on the grant date fair value estimated inrdacce with the provisions of ASC 7 Stock Compensatic’. Compensation cost



recognized over the required service period, gélyatafined as the vesting period.

F-13




CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires us to make estimates and assumptionaffeat the reported amounts of assets and liaslitis of the date of the financial statem:
as well as the reported amounts of income and esgsetiuring the reported periods. Specifically, mlper of estimates were made in
connection with determining an appropriate alloveafor finance credit losses, determining appropriaserves for contingent liabilities,
valuing finance receivables measured at fair vahakthe related debt, accreting net acquisitios, famortizing deferred costs, and recording
deferred tax assets and reserves for uncertaipasiions. These are material estimates that doeilslisceptible to changes in the near term
and, accordingly, actual results could differ frémse estimates.

Reclassificatior

Certain amounts for the prior year have been rsifiad to conform to the current year’s presentatioth no effect on previously
reported earnings or shareholders’ equity.

Derivative Financial Instrument

We do not use derivative financial instrumentseédde exposures to cash flow or market risks. Howéram 2008 to 2010, we
issued warrants to purchase our common stock ijunotion with various debt financing transactioAsthe time of issuance, five of these
warrants issued contained "down round," or pricetefeatures that are subject to classificatiolimhadities for financial statement purposes.
These liabilities were measured at fair value, \hin changes in fair value at the end of each gegflected as current period income or loss.
Accordingly, changes to the market price per sba@r common stock underlying these warrants Wdtthwn round" features directly
affected the fair value computations for thesewd@ive financial instruments. The effect was that ancrease in the market price per share of
our common stock would also increase the relatdaliiy, which in turn would result in a currentrja loss. Conversely, any decrease in the
market price per share of our common stock woldd decrease the related liability, which in turrilgoresult in a current period gain. We
used a binomial pricing model to compute the faiue of the liabilities associated with the outdiag warrants. In computing the fair value
of the warrant liabilities at the end of each péyiwe used significant judgments with respect eortbk free interest rate, the volatility of our
stock price, and the estimated life of the warrafite warrant liabilities were included in AccouRayable and Accrued Expenses on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. On March 29, 2012gnexd with the holders to amend three of the fiagrants that contained the “down
round” features, removing those specific price résens. On the date of the amendment, we valuekl efthe three warrants using a
binomial pricing model as described above. The egape value of the three amended warrants of $illibnmmwas then reclassified from
Accounts Payable to Common Stock. On June 25, 2@&lagreed with the holder to amend one other whthah contained the “down round”
features, removing those specific price reset tefithe $250,000 aggregate value of this amendedhwiawas reclassified from Accounts
Payable to Common Stock on the date of the amentdfike fifth warrant with the “down round&ature was exercised on February 22, 2
The $583,000 intrinsic value of this warrant wadassified from Accounts Payable to Common Stockhendate of the exercise. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, all five of the wag@gued that previously contained price resetifeathave either been amended or
exercised and are no longer subject to quartetlyatians.

Financial Covenant

Certain of our securitization transactions, ourdeal interest financing and our warehouse creditlities contain various financial
covenants requiring certain minimum financial ratémd results. Such covenants include maintainimgnmm levels of liquidity and net
worth and not exceeding maximum leverage levelgduiition, certain securitization and non-secuatiom related debt contain cross-default
provisions that would allow certain creditors teldee a default if a default occurred under a déife facility. As of December 31, 2014 we
were in compliance with all such financial coversant

Gain on Cancellation of Debt

In April 2013, we repurchased the outstanding Clasmtes from our first 2008 securitization forash payment of $6.1 million and
a new 5% note for $5.3 million due in June 2014e Tass D notes were held by the same related tretyeld our senior secured debt. On
the date we repurchased the Class D notes, the Dlaste holder owned 10.5% of our outstanding comstock and warrants to purchas
additional 1.9 million shares of common stock. Wbsequently exercised our “clean-up call” optiod agpurchased the remaining collateral
from the related securitization trust. The aggregatue of our consideration for the Class D natas $10.9 million less than our carrying
value of the Class D notes at the time of the remase. As a result of the repurchase of the Classt& and the termination of the
securitization trust, we realized a gain of $10iBion for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Provision for Contingent Liabilitie

We are routinely involved in various legal procewysi resulting from our consumer finance actividad practices, both continuing
and discontinued. Our legal counsel has adviserhwsich matters where, based on information aveiktthe time of this report, there is an
indication that it is both probable that a lialyilitas been incurred and the amount of the losdearasonably determined.

In 2013, we recognized $7.8 million in contingdabllity expenses to either record or increaseatimeunts we believed represented
our best estimate of probable incurred lossesaglit various matters. The amount was allocatgadiihto a long running case (“Pardee”) in
which we were sued for indemnity, and also to meoent matters. In September 2014 we reachedlarsetit of the Pardee case, pursuant to
which we paid $5.99 million and all claims againstwere fully and finally discharged.

The more recent matters included two Californigglaction suits where we are the defendant, alderigmental inquiry, in which
the United States Federal Trade Commission (“FTHa§ informally proposed that we refrain from cartallegedly unfair trade practices, ¢
make restitutionary payments into a consumer réliedl. In May 2014, the FTC announced its agreenweséttle the matter by filing a
lawsuit against us, and requesting, with our cofdkat the court enter an agreed judgment agamsthe lawsuit arose out of the FTC's
inquiry into our business practices. Under the egsettiement, we made approximately $1.9 millibrestitutionary payments and $1.6
million of account adjustments to our customerSéptember 2014, and paid a $2 million penalty éof¢fderal government in June 2014, and
implemented procedural changes, all pursuant mnaent decree which was entered by the court ia 20t4.

We have recorded a liability as of December 31428hich represents our best estimate of probalsieried losses for legal
contingencies. The amount of losses that may uléimde incurred cannot be estimated with certainty

(2) Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash and cash equivadeaunts relating to our outstanding securitimatiusts and credit facilities. The
amount of restricted cash on our Consolidated Bal@heets was $175.4 million and $132.3 millioofa@ecember 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Our securitization transactions and one of our hvause credit facilities require that we establiabhcreserves, or spread account
additional credit enhancement. These cash resemnsh are included in restricted cash, were $3dilRon and $23.3 million as of Decemt
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(3) Finance Receivables

Our portfolio of finance receivables consists oh#ifbalance homogeneous contracts comprising desgagment and class that is
collectively evaluated for impairment on a portbotiasis according to delinquency status. Our conparchase guidelines are designed to
produce a homogenous portfolio. We report delingyem a contractual basis. Once a contract becgneader than 90 days delinquent, we
do not recognize additional interest income uhgl obligor under the contract makes sufficient pawyts to be less than 90 days delinquent.
Any payments received on a contract that is grahtar 90 days delinquent are first applied to aedrinterest and then to principal reduction.

The following table presents the components ofrfaeareceivables, net of unearned interest:

December 31
2014 2013
(In thousands)

Finance receivable

Automobile finance receivables, net of unearneeret $ 1,612,24 $ 1,182,95I
Less: Unearned acquisition fees and discounts (16,29() (27,88))
Finance receivables $ 1,595,951 $ 1,155,06:
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We consider an automobile contract delinquent warenbligor fails to make at least 90% of a contralty due payment by the
following due date, which date may have been exdmvdthin limits specified in the servicing agreentse The period of delinquency is ba:
on the number of days payments are contractuallygaze, as extended where applicable. Automobitéracts less than 31 days delinquent
are not included. In certain circumstances we gvéint obligors one-month payment extensions tesasgsm with temporary cash flow
problems. The only modification of terms is to agls&the obligos next due date by one month and extend the matiate of the receivab
by one month. In certain limited cases, a two-maxtfension may be granted. There are no other ssimres such as a reduction in interest
rate, forgiveness of principal or of accrued inserédccordingly, we consider such extensions tinbggnificant delays in payments rather t
troubled debt restructurings. The following tahlensnarizes the delinquency status of finance rebégaas of December 31, 2014 and 2013:

December 31
2014 2013
(In thousands)

Delinquency Statu

Current $ 1,523,020 $ 1,125,92i
31- 60 days 42,73( 21,42
61- 90 days 23,30( 24,66!
91 + days 23,19¢ 10,94(

$ 1,612,241  $ 1,182,95I

Finance receivables totaling $23.2 million and $1fillion at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respelgtivewve been placed on non-
accrual status as a result of their delinquenaysta

The following table presents a summary of the #gtfor the allowance for finance credit losses, thee years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012:

December 31

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of ye $ 39,62¢ $ 19,594 $ 10,35
Provision for credit losse 108,22¢ 76,86¢ 33,49t
Chargeoffs (109,919 (69,455 (37,639)
Recoveries 23,52( 12,61¢ 13,38¢
Balance at end of year $ 61,46( $ 39,62¢ $ 19,59/

Excluded from finance receivables are contractswieae previously classified as finance receivabletswere reclassified as other
assets because we have repossessed the vehigieg#oe Contract. The following table presentsimsary of such repossessed inventory
together with the allowance for losses on reposskissentory:

December 31

2014 2013
(In thousands)
Gross balance of repossessions in inver $ 28,23: % 24,74
Allowance for losses on repossessed inventory (17,829 (14,779
Net repossessed inventory included in other a: $ 10,40t $ 9,96¢

(4) Finance Receivables Measured at Fair Value

In September 2011 we purchased approximately $2mifli®n of finance receivables from Fireside Baitkese receivables are
recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheets atdhie.

F- 16




CONSUMER PORTFOLIO SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table presents the components ofrfagareceivables measured at fair value and inclfiiig&l9 and $120,000 in
repossessed inventory at December 31, 2014 andhibere31, 2013, respectively:

December 31,
2014 2013
(In thousands)

Finance receivables measured at fair vi

Finance receivables and accrued interest, netedmed

interest $ 1662 $ 14,78¢
Less: Fair value adjustme - (310
Finance receivables measured at fair vi $ 1,66¢ $ 14,47¢

The following table summarizes the delinquencyustalf finance receivables measured at fair value &ecember 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013:

December 31
2014 2013
(In thousands)

Delinquency Statu

Current $ 1,266 $ 13,42:
31- 60 days 26z 87¢
61- 90 days 74 252
91 + days 62 234

$ 1,66 $ 14,78¢

(5) Furniture and Equipment
The following table presents the components ofifura and equipment:

December 31

2014 2013

(In thousands)
Furniture and fixture $ 1,39%¢  $ 1,141
Computer and telephone equipm 4,42¢ 4,09¢
Leasehold improvements 871 633
6,691 5,86¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (5,530 (5,109
$ 1,161 $ 76€

Depreciation expense totaled $428,000, $437,0006548,000 for the years ended December 31, 20148 20d 2012, respectively.
(6) Securitization Trust Debt
We have completed numerous term securitizatiorsérations that are structured as secured borroviimdmancial accounting

purposes. The debt issued in these transacti@toign on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as “Sization trust debt,and the componen
of such debt are summarized in the following table:
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Weighted
Average
Receivables Outstanding Outstanding Interest Rate
Final Scheduled Pledged at Principal at Principal at at Decembel
Payment December 31, Initial December 31, December 31, 31,
Series Date (1) 2014 (2) Principal 2014 2013 2014
(Dollars in thousands)
Page Five
Funding January 201 - 46,05¢ - 9,35¢ -
CPS 201-A April 2018 12,61: 100,36 8,457 24,52¢ 2.84%
CPS 201-B September 20: 23,56¢ 109,93t 22,98t 44,43 4.5/
CPS 201-C March 201! 30,66: 119,40( 30,60 56,27: 4.95%
CPS 201-A June 201 36,757 155,00( 35,92 65,05! 3.41%
CPS 201-B September 20: 51,16¢ 141,50( 50,12¢ 86,25« 3.11%
CPS 201-C December 201 56,711 147,00( 55,61¢ 93,00¢ 2.45%
CPS 201-D March 202! 68,70: 160,00( 67,83: 108,81! 2.12%
CPS 201-A June 202 98,60 185,00( 97,77¢ 142,84 1.9%%
CPS 201-B September 20: 119,53 205,00( 118,69: 172,49¢ 2.4%
CPS 201-C December 20z 135,98 205,00( 133,62¢ 191,50: 2.7%%
CPS 201-D March 202 134,49t 183,00( 132,15( 183,00( 2.4%
CPS 201-A June 202 146,78« 180,00( 143,45t - 2.05%
CPS 201-B September 20: 180,71 202,50( 177,60: - 1.87%
CPS 201-C December 202 259,89¢ 273,00( 256,15: - 2.1(%
CPS 2014-D (3) March 202. 180,44¢ 267,50( 267,50( 2.34%

$ 1,536,65 $ 2,680,25 $ 159849 $ 1,177,55

(1) The Final Scheduled Payment Date represents fagalimaturity of the securitization trust debt. @@tzation trust debt is expected
to become due and to be paid prior to those ddi@sed on amortization of the finance receivablesiged to the Trusts. Expected
payments, which will depend on the performanceici seceivables, as to which there can be no asmaraare $636.5 million i
2015, $468.3 million in 2016, $285.8 million in Z0%$143.2 million in 2018, $56.8 million in 201%ca$7.9 million in 202C

(2) Includes repossessed assets that are includedhar@tssets on our Consolidated Balance Sh

(3) An additional $85.3 million of receivables weredgded to CPS 20:-D in January 2015

All of the securitization trust debt was issuegbiivate placement transactions to qualified infitinal investors. The debt was isst
by our wholly-owned, bankruptcy remote subsidiagrd is secured by the assets of such subsidianesot by any of our other assets.

The terms of the various securitization agreemeaiéded to the issuance of the securitization tlestt require that certain

delinquency and credit loss criteria be met witpezt to the collateral pool, and require that vaeéntain minimum levels of liquidity and net
worth and not exceed maximum leverage levels. We iwwecompliance with all such covenants as of Demer 31, 2014.

We are responsible for the administration and ctithe of the contracts. The securitization agreesalso require certain funds be
held in restricted cash accounts to provide adufilicredit enhancement for the Notes or to be agpb make payments on the securitization
trust debt. As of December 31, 2014, restrictedh casler the various agreements totaled approxign&fiel5.4 million. This amount includes
$85.3 million in pre-funding proceeds related taSCI14-D. Interest expense on the securitizatigst tebt is composed of the stated rate of
interest plus amortization of additional costs ofrbwing. Additional costs of borrowing include fity fees, insurance premiums,
amortization of transaction costs, and amortizatibdiscounts required on the notes at the timssafance. Deferred financing costs relate
the securitization trust debt are amortized udirginterest method. Accordingly, the effective aafdborrowing of the securitization trust d
is greater than the stated rate of interest.

Our wholly-owned, bankruptcy remote subsidiarieserfermed to facilitate the above asset-backedhfiimay transactions. Similar
bankruptcy remote subsidiaries issue the debtandgig under our warehouse line of credit. Banlaypémote refers to a legal structure in
which it is expected that the applicable entity Wdowot be included in any bankruptcy filing by jtarent or affiliates. All of the assets of th
subsidiaries have been pledged as collateral éordlated debt. All such transactions, treatedeasred financings for accounting and tax
purposes, are treated as sales for all other pesposluding legal and bankruptcy purposes. Ndribeassets of these subsidiaries are
available to pay any of our other creditors.
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(7) Debt
The terms of our debt outstanding at December @14 2nd 2013 are summarized below:
Amount Outstanding at
December 31 December 31

2014 2013
(In thousands)

Description Interest Ratt Maturity

5.73% over one month

Warehouse lines of crec Libor (Minimum 6.73%) March 2017 $ 23,58, $ 9,45
5.50% over one month
Libor (Minimum 6.25%) August 2017 33,25¢ -
11.75% over one month
Residual interest financir Libor April 2018 12,327 19,09¢
Debt secured by receivables n/a Repayment is based on payme 1,25(C 13,117
measured at fair value from underlying receivables. Fir

payment of the 8.00% loan wa
made in September 2013. Fine
residual payment was made ir

January 201t
Senior secured debt, related pe 13.00% n/a - 37,12¢
5.00% n/a - 1,431
Subordinated renewable notes Weighted average rate ¢ =~ Weighted average maturity of 15,23 19,14:

10.7% and 12.5% at October 2016 and July 2015 a
December 31, 2014 anc  December 31, 2014 and 2013
2013, respectivel respectively

$ 85,64¢ $ 99,36¢

In March 2013 we renewed our $100 million warehoereelit line with affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & .Gmd Fortress Investment Group.
The facility is structured to allow us to fund arfian of the purchase price of automobile contrégtdorrowing from a credit facility to our
consolidated subsidiary Page Six Funding LLC. Tawdlity provides for advances up to 88% of eligibitence receivables and the loans
under it accrue interest at a rate of one-monthQRBplus 5.73% per annum, with a minimum rate o8%7per annum. There was $23.6
million outstanding under this facility at Deceml3dr, 2014. This facility has a revolving periodahgh March 2015 and an amortization
period through March 2017 for any receivables péetig the facility at the end of the revolving peli
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In August 2014, we renewed our $100 million waredearedit line with Citibank, N.A. The facility &ructured to allow us to func
portion of the purchase price of automobile contréy borrowing from a credit facility to our cotlis@ated subsidiary Page Eight Funding,
LLC. The facility provides for effective advances to 88.0% of eligible finance receivables. Thenander the facility accrue interest at
one-month LIBOR plus 5.50% per annum, with a minimure raf 6.25% per annum. There was $33.3 milliontaniding under this facility
December 31, 2014. This facility has a revolvingqutthrough August 2016 and an amortization petioddugh August 2017 for any
receivables pledged at the end of the revolvingpper

The total outstanding debt on our warehouse lifiesadlit was $56.8 million as of December 31, 2Qdempared to $9.5 million
outstanding as of December 31, 2013.

The costs incurred in conjunction with the abovketdee recorded as deferred financing costs oa¢bempanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets and are more fully described in Mote

We must comply with certain affirmative and negatoovenants related to debt facilities, which regjtamong other things, that we
maintain certain financial ratios related to ligtydnet worth and capitalization. Further covesantlude matters relating to investments,
acquisitions, restricted payments and certain divitirestrictions. See the discussion of finan@akaants in Note 1.

The following table summarizes the contractual exylected maturity amounts of long term debt asexfdnber 31, 2014:

Residual Subordinated
interest renewable
Contractual maturity date financing (1) notes Total
(In thousands)
2015 $ 2,18¢ % 8,171 % 10,35¢
2016 1,47: 3,83 5,30¢
2017 3,15¢ 1,142 4,301
2018 5,507 61C 6,117
2019 - 49 49
Thereafter - 1,42¢ 1,42¢
Total $ 12,327 % 15,237 $ 27,56(

(1) The residual interest financing debt has a contrattaturity date in April 2018. This debt is exjgelcto become due and payable
prior to that date, based on the decreasing vatratf the underlying collatera

(2) Debt secured by receivables measured at fair vaifuthe amount of $1.3 million as of December 3,4 is omitted from this tab
because it becomes due as and when the relatetvabtes balance is reduced by payments and cl-offs.

(8) Shareholders’ Equity
Common Stock

Holders of common stock are entitled to such dindteas our Board of Directors, in its discretiomyndeclare out of funds availak
subject to the terms of any outstanding shareseaféped stock and other restrictions. In the ewétijuidation of the Company, holders of
common stock are entitled to receipeg rata, all of the assets of the Company available fetritiution, after payment of any liquidation
preference to the holders of outstanding shargseférred stock. Holders of the shares of commocksthave no conversion or preemptive or
other subscription rights and there are no redemgir sinking fund provisions applicable to the coom stock.

We are required to comply with various operatind financial covenants defined in the agreementegong the warehouse lines of

credit, senior debt, residual interest financing anbordinated debt. The covenants for the semiot, desidual interest financing and
subordinated debt restrict the payment of cert@tridutions, including dividends (See Note 7).
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Stock Purchases

At five different times between 2000 and 2011, Baard of Directors has authorized the repurchasgdd $34.5 million of our
securities. As of December 31, 2014, we had pusth#5.0 million principal amount of debt securitiesd $28.4 million of our common
stock, representing 9,800,720 shares. There i®appately $1.0 million remaining under such plambkjch have no expiration date.

Options and Warrants

In 2006, the Company adopted and its shareholggnoaed the CPS 2006 Long-Term Equity IncentivenRtae “2006 Plan”)
pursuant to which our Board of Directors, or a dalithorized committee thereof, may grant stockamsj restricted stock, restricted stock
units and stock appreciation rights to our emplsyaeemployees of our subsidiaries, to directothefCompany, and to individuals acting as
consultants to the Company or its subsidiarieguime 2008, May 2012 and again in April 2013, treraholders of the Company approved an
amendment to the 2006 Plan to increase the maximumber of shares that may be subject to awards the 006 Plan to 5,000,000,
7,200,000 and 12,200,000, respectively, in each phas shares authorized under prior plans anisoed. Options that have been granted
under the 2006 Plan and a previous plan approv&89@ have been granted at an exercise price &m(@l greater than) the stock’s fair
market value at the date of the grant, with terersegally of 7-10 years and vesting generally ovBrygars.

The per share weighted-average fair value of sbtions granted during the years ended Decembet4, 2013 and 2012 was
$2.73, $4.79 and $1.15, respectively. That faingalas estimated using the Black-Scholes optiaingrimodel using the weighted average
assumptions noted in the following table. We ustohical data to estimate the expected term of eatibn. The volatility estimate is based
on the historical and implied volatility of our stoover the period that equals the expected liftnefoption. Volatility assumptions ranged
from 52% to 55% for 2014, 50% to 85% for 2013 aAl50 82% for 2012. The risk-free interest ratbased on the yield on a U.S. Treasury
bond with a maturity comparable to the expectaddifthe option. The dividend yield is estimatedhéozero based on our intention not to
issue dividends for the foreseeable future.

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Expected life (years 4.2z 5.41 5.6:
Risk-free interest rat 1.4%% 0.72% 1.32%
Volatility 55% 8C% 79%

Expected dividend yiel - - -

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ar®] @@lrecorded stock-based compensation costg iarttount of $3.8 million,
$3.9 million and $1.1 million, respectively. AsBécember 31, 2014, the unrecognized stock-basegeusation costs to be recognized over
future periods was equal to $13.9 million. This amtowill be recognized as expense over a weightedage period of 3.0 years.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the options outstgrehd exercisable had intrinsic values of $36illlan and $61.6 million,
respectively. The total intrinsic value of optieeercised was $9.1 million and $8.1 million for frears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. New shares were issued for all ogtExercised during the year ended December 2014asidof $2.5 million was received. A
tax benefit of $1.0 million was recorded for theiops exercised in 2014. At December 31, 2014 etheare a total of 2.1 million additional
shares available for grant under the 2006 Plan.
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Stock option activity for the year ended Decemlder2®14 for stock options under the 2006 and 198@sais as follows:

Weighted
Average
Number of Weighted Remaining
Shares (in Average Contractual
thousands) Exercise Price Term
Options outstanding at the beginning of pel 10,12¢ $ 3.3C N/A
Grantec 2,03(C 6.5¢ N/A
Exercisec (1,22%) 2.0z N/A
Forfeited/Expirec (103) 4.5¢ N/A
Options outstanding at the end of period 10,82¢ $ 4.05 6.01 year:
Options exercisable at the end of period 5761 $ 2.52 4.89 year:

The per share weighted average exercise pric@ok siptions granted whose exercise price was aqubk market price of the sto
on the grant date during the years ended Decenih@034, 2013 and 2012, was $6.59, $7.43 and $feZpectively. We did not issue any
stock options with an exercise price above or bdtwvmarket price of the stock on the grant datéHfe years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012.

On June 30, 2008, we entered into a series of agnes pursuant to which a lender purchased a $lliomfive-year, fixed rate,
senior secured note from us. In July 2008, in cacion with the amendment of the residual intefiesincing as discussed above, the lender
purchased an additional $15 million note with sabsally the same terms as the $10 million notes&ant to the June 30, 2008 securities
purchase agreement, we issued to the lender 1(A2Sltares of common stock. In addition, we issheddnder two warrants: (i) warrants
that we refer to as the FMV Warrants, which werereisable for 1,611,114 shares of our common staickn exercise price of $1.39818 per
share, and (ii) warrants that we refer to as th&¥/@irants, which were exercisable for 285,781 shafresir common stock, at a nominal
exercise price. Both the FMV Warrants and the Nnafats were exercised in November 2013.

In connection with the amendment to and partiahyepent of our residual interest financing in Ju2, we issued warrants
exercisable for 2,500,000 common shares for $44@B1,The warrants represent the right to purchgs802000 CPS common shares at a
nominal exercise price, at any time prior to JWy 2018. In March 2010 we repurchased warrant§®0;000 of these shares for $1.0 milli
Warrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares remain ndistpas of December 31, 2014.

A warrant to purchase 1,162,270 shares of our camshares at an exercise price of $0.876 per sihieh was issued in
connection with our $50 million revolving creditcfity established in September 2009, was exerdisethe lender in April 2013.

Warrants to purchase 500,000 of our common shaias exercise price of $1.41 per share were istuedrtain note purchasers in
our March 2010 $50 million term funding facility. Akfants to purchase 409,390 shares were exeraisgdj®014 and none remain
outstanding as of December 31, 2014.

(9) Interest Income and Interest Expense

The following table presents the components ofr@gincome:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Interest on finance receivabl $ 286,36 $ 231,32( $ 174,01¢
Residual interest incormr 37z - 45€
Other interest income 1 10 837
Interest income $ 286,73: $ 231,33 $ 175,31«
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The following table presents the components of@seexpense:

Year Ended December 31

Securitization trust del $

Warehouse lines of crec

Senior secured debt, related pe

Debt secured by receivables at fair ve
Residual interest financir
Subordinated renewable notes

Interest expense $

(10) Income Taxes

Income taxes consist of the following:

Current federal tax expen $

Current state tax expen

Deferred federal tax expen
Deferred state tax expense (bene
Change in valuation allowance

Income tax expense (benefit) $

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
38,55¢ $ 34,74 $ 38,28¢
5,21 5,00: 6,87¢
1,651 8,06¢ 12,31«
772 3,871 15,877
1,98¢ 3,33( 2,62¢
2,20¢ 3,161 3,43¢
50,39" $ 58,17¢ $ 79,42.
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
1,34¢ 3 977 % 36¢
1,31¢ 36E 49
18,33¢ 13,30¢ 2,82¢
1,72¢ 1,52( (654)
— — (62,81))
22,72t  $ 16,16¢ $ (60,22))

Income tax expense/(benefit) for the years endemeidber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 differs from thewarhdetermined by applying

the statutory federal rate of 35% to income befoceme taxes as follows:

Year Ended December 31

Expense at federal tax re $

State taxes, net of federal income tax ef
Other adjustments to tax rese

Effect of change in state tax re

Change in valuation allowan
Stoclk-based compensatic
Non-deductible expenst¢

Other

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
18,28¢ $ 13,01  $ 3,21¢
2,651 2,07¢ 1,19(
(54) (419 (1,159
144 (239) (1,105
- - (62,81))
1,182 911 321
11€ 61¢ 63
40z 20€ 59
$ 22,72¢  $ 16,16¢ $ (60,22)
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The tax effected cumulative temporary differendes give rise to deferred tax assets and lialslitie of December 31, 2014 and
2013 are as follows:

December 31,
2014 2013
(In thousands)

Deferred Tax Assets:

Finance receivable $ 19,04¢ $ 17,25¢
Accrued liabilities 2,551 5,07¢
Furniture and equipme 16 19¢
NOL carryforwards 6,927 23,81
Built in losses 11,69¢ 13,07
Pension accru 1,09( -
AMT credit carryforwarc 2,89¢ 1,99:
Other 941 83¢

Total deferred tax assets 45,16: 62,25(

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
FAS 91 deferred cos (2,31¢) (1,555

Pension accrus (1,136
Investment residual - (349
Total deferred tax liabilities (2,316 (3,035
Net deferred tax asset $ 4284, $ 59,21¢

We acquired certain net operating losses and buitiss assets as part of our acquisitions of Mkhkcial Corp. (“MFN”) in 2002
and TFC Enterprises, Inc. (“TFC”) in 2003. Moreguaoth MFN and TFC have undergone an ownershipgdhéor purposes of Internal
Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 382. In general, IREZt®n 382 imposes an annual limitation on theitghilf a loss corporation (that is, a
corporation with a net operating loss (“NOL") cdogward, credit carryforward, or certain built-imsises (“BILs")) to utilize its pre-change
NOL carryforwards or BILs to offset taxable incommgsing after an ownership chan

In determining the possible future realization efadred tax assets, we have considered future lmkatome from the following
sources: (a) reversal of taxable temporary diffeesnand (b) tax planning strategies that, if neegs would be implemented to accelerate
taxable income into years in which net operatirggés might otherwise expire.

Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to neamagts judgment that realization is more likely than.@ovaluation allowance |
recognized for a deferred tax asset if, based enviight of the available evidence, it is moreliikhan not that some portion of the deferred
tax asset will not be realized. In making such prdgnts, significant weight is given to evidencd ttzm be objectively verified. As a result of
the unprecedented adverse changes in the markstdaritizations, the recession and the resultigh kevels of unemployment that occurred
in 2008 and 2009, we incurred substantial operdtisges from 2009 through 2011 which led us tobdistaa valuation allowance against a
substantial portion of our deferred tax assets.détermined at December 31, 2012 that, based ondlght of the available objective
evidence, it was more likely than not that we woggdherate sufficient future taxable income to zailour net deferred tax assets. Accordir
we reversed the related valuation allowance of&#6illion in the fourth quarter of 2012.

Although realization is not assured, we believe tha realization of the recognized net deferredasset of $42.8 million as of
December 31, 2014 is more likely than not basefbmtasted future net earnings. Our net defernedgaet of $42.8 million consists of
approximately $32.7 million of net U.S. federal eleéd tax assets and $10.1 million of net staterded tax assets. The major components of
the deferred tax asset are $18.6 million in netafigg loss carryforwards and built in losses aRd.$ million in net deductions which have
not yet been taken on a tax return.

As of December 31, 2014, we had net operatingdasyforwards for federal and state income tax pses of $3.5 million and
$108.5 million, respectively. The federal net opiagalosses begin to expire in 2022. The stateopetating losses begin to expire in 2015.
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The following is a tabular reconciliation of theégdbamounts of unrecognized tax benefits includirigrest and penalties for the ye

2014 2013
(In thousands)
Unrecognized tax bene- opening balanc $ - $ 1,331
Gross increase- tax positions in prior perio - -
Gross decreast- tax positions in current peric - -
Gross increase- tax positions in current peric - -
Settlement: - (68€)
Lapse of statute of limitations — (64E)

Unrecognized tax benefit - ending balance $ - 3

We recognize a tax position as a benefit onlyig Itmore likely than not” that the tax position wld be sustained in a tax
examination, with a tax examination being presumoeatccur. The amount recognized is the largest atnofutax benefit that is greater than
50% likely of being realized on examination. Fot pesitions not meeting the “more likely than nt&st, no tax benefit is recorded. We
recognize potential interest and penalties reldadrecognized tax benefits as income tax expéktseecember 31, 2014, we had no
unrecognized tax benefits for uncertain tax posgio

We are subject to taxation in the US and varioategtrisdictions. With few exceptions, we are onger subject to U.S. federal,
state, or local examinations by tax authoritiesykears before 2011.

(11) Related Party Transactions

In December 2007, one of our directors purchaskl@ million subordinated renewable note pursuauoiir ongoing program of
issuing such notes to the public. The note washas®d through the registered agent and under the tsms and conditions, including the
interest rate, that were offered to other purctgatthe time the note was issued. As of Decembe2®L4, $4.0 million remains outstanding
on this note.
(12) Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company leases its facilities and certain campequipment under non-cancelable operating leagash expire through 2018.
Future minimum lease payments at December 31, 201dkr these leases are due during the years &wtmanber 31 as follows:

Amount

(In thousands)
2015 $ 3,69¢
2016 3,18t
2017 1,87¢
2018 1,53¢
2019 1,08¢
Thereafter —
Total minimum lease payments $ 11,38!

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2018,and 2012, was $3.5 million, $2.6 million &9 million, respectively.

Our facility leases contain certain rental conaassiand escalating rental payments, which are rézed as adjustments to rental
expense and are amortized on a straight-line loasisthe terms of the leases.

Litigation

Consumer LitigationWe are routinely involved in various legal procewi resulting from our consumer finance activiiad
practices, both continuing and discontinued. Coressrnan and do initiate lawsuits against us altpgiolations of law applicable to
collection of receivables, and such lawsuits somesi allege that resolution as a class action ieogpipte. We are currently defending two
such purported class actions, one of which has bettled by agreement with the plaintiffs (suchileatent remains subject to approval by the
court). For the most part, we have legal and fdcatenses to such claims, which we routinely csinte settle (for immaterial amounts)
depending on the particular circumstances of easb.dNe have recorded a liability as of Decembe314 with respect to such matters, in
the aggregate
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FTC Action. In July 2013, the staff of the U.S. Federal Tr&denmission (“FTC”") advised us that they were pregdao recommend
that the FTC initiate a lawsuit against us relatm@llegedly unfair trade practices, and simultarsdy advised that settlement of such issues
by consent decree might be achieved. On May 2%,20& FTC announced its agreement to settle thenigy filing a lawsuit against us,
and requesting, with our consent, that the coudrean agreed judgment against us. The lawsuieavasof the FTC's inquiry into our
business practices. Under the agreed settlemenhasie approximately $1.9 million of restitutionggyments and $1.6 million of account
adjustments to our customers in September 201d,gp&2 million penalty to the federal governmeniume 2014, and implemented
procedural changes, all pursuant to a consent el¢lcat was entered by the court in June 2014.

Department of Justice SubpoefaJanuary 2015, we were served with a subpoertbebly).S. Department of Justice directing us to
produce certain documents relating to our and ohsidiaries’ and affiliates’ origination and set¢ization of sub-prime automobile contracts
since 2005 in connection with an investigation iy t).S. Department of Justice in contemplation cif/& proceeding for potential violations
of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, &rdorcement Act of 1989. Among other matters,ghlepoena requests information rela
to the underwriting criteria used to originate thasitomobile contracts and the representationsvangnties relating to those underwriting
criteria that were made in connection with the siéization of the automobile contracts. We are stigating these matters internally and are
cooperating with the request. Such investigatiandm the future result in the imposition of dareagfines or civil or criminal claims and/or
penalties. No assurance can be given as to theaiéiioutcome of the investigation or any resulpimceeding(s), which might materially and
adversely affect us.

In General. There can be no assurance as to the outcomks ofdtters referenced above. We have recordedikityias of
December 31, 2014, which represents our best dstinfigrobable incurred losses for legal contingegidncluding all of the matters
described or referenced above. The amount of Idhs¢snay ultimately be incurred cannot be estichatgh certainty. However, based on
such information as is available to us, we beligad the range of reasonably possible losses &lethal proceedings and contingencies we
face, including those described or referenced akasvef December 31, 2014, and in excess of théitiawe have recorded, is from $0 to
$1.5 million.

Accordingly, we believe that the ultimate resoluataf such legal proceedings and contingencies; t&fkéing into account our current
litigation reserves, should not have a materiakasty effect on our consolidated financial conditMfe note, however, that in light of the
uncertainties inherent in contested proceedingsetban be no assurance that the ultimate resolatithese matters will not significantly
exceed the reserves we have accrued; as a résuttutcome of a particular matter may be matesialr operating results for a particular
period, depending on, among other factors, thedfitiee loss or liability imposed and the leveloofr income for that period. See Note 1 for a
discussion of legal contingent liabilities.

(13) Employee Benefits

We sponsor a pretax savings and profit sharing fren“401(k) Plan”) qualified under Section 401@)the Internal Revenue Code.
Under the 401(k) Plan, eligible employees are @blntribute up to 15% of their compensation (sabjo stricter limitation in the case of
highly compensated employees). We may, at our@liscr, match 100% of employees’ contributions uftgb00 per employee per calendar
year. Our contributions to the 401(k) Plan wereZ6a0 and $471,000 for the year ended Decembe&t@®¥ and 2013. We did not make ¢
matching contributions in 2012.

We also sponsor a defined benefit plan, the MFNuk@al Corporation Pension Plan (the “Plan”). Thenenefits were frozen on
June 30, 2001.
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The following tables represents a reconciliatiothef change in the plan’s benefit obligations, failue of plan assets, and funded
status at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

December 31,
2014 2013
(In thousands)

Change in Projected Benefit Obligatior

Projected benefit obligation, beginning of y: $ 18,84 % 21,79
Service cos - -
Interest cos 88¢ 82¢
Assumption change 3,57( (2,420
Actuarial (gain) los: 211 (119
Settlement: - -
Benefits paid (951) (1,247
Projected benefit obligation, end of ye $ 22,55¢ % 18,84
Change in Plan Asset:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of y $ 21,66 $ 16,61:
Return on asse (2,009 6,00¢
Employer contributior 237 38¢
Expense:! (93 (10%)
Settlement: - -
Benefits paid (957) (1,247
Fair value of plan assets, end of y $ 19,84¢ % 21,66
Funded Status at end of yea $ (2,711  $ 2,82%

Additional Information
Weighted average assumptions used to determinditelbiégations and cost at December 31, 2014 &i32vere as follows:

December, 31

2014 2013
Weighted average assumptions used to determine bédh@bligations
Discount rate 3.8(% 4.7%%
Weighted average assumptions used to determine n@triodic benefit cost
Discount rate 4.7%% 3.91%
Expected return on plan ass 8.0(% 8.25%

Our overall expected long-term rate of return agetsis 8.00% per annum as of December 31, 20BleXhected long-term rate of
return is based on the weighted average of histbréturns on individual asset categories, whiehdascribed in more detail below.
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December 31

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Amounts recognized on Consolidated Balance She
Other asset $ - $ 2,82 % -
Other liabilities (2,71)) - (5,180
Net amount recognized $ (2,710 $ 282: % (5,180
Amounts recognized in accumulated other compreheng loss consists of
Net loss $ 7971 $ 1361 $ 8,95:
Unrecognized transition asset - - -
Net amount recognized $ 7971 % 1,367 $ 8,95:
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Interest cos $ 88¢ % 82: $ 87t
Expected return on asst (1,729 (1,339 (92¢)
Amortization of transition ass - - -
Amortization of net loss — 484 68C
Net periodic benefit cot (839) (28) 627
Settlement (gain)/loss - - -
Total $ (839 $ 289 3 627
Benefit Obligation Recognized in Other Comprehensig Loss (Income’
Net loss (gain $ 6,61C $ (7,580 $ (2,74%)
Prior service cost (credi - - -
Amortization of prior service cost - - -
Net amount recognized in other comprehensive ogssifie) $ 6,61C $ (7,586 $ (2,749

The estimated net loss that will be amortized femoumulated other comprehensive income into nébgierbenefit cost in 2015 is

$350,000.

The weighted average asset allocation of our parsmefits at December 31, 2014 and 2013 werellasvio

Weighted Average Asset Allocation at YeeEnd
Asset Category

Equity securitie:

Debt securitie!

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

December 31

2014 2013
84% 87%

15% 13%

1% 0%

10¢% 10¢%

Our investment policies and strategies for the jpensenefits plan utilize a target allocation of#®quity securities and 25% fixed
income securities (excluding Company stock). Ouestment goals are to maximize returns subjegbégific risk management policies. We
address risk management and diversification byifeeof a professional investment advisor and sesebaadvisors which invest in domestic
and international equity securities and domestiediincome securities. Each satlvisor focuses its investments within a spec#ictar of the
equity or fixed income market. For the sub-advigocsised on the equity markets, the sectors aferdiftiated by the market capitalization,
the relative valuation and the location of the utyileg issuer. For the sub-advisors focused orfittezl income markets, the sectors are

differentiated by the credit quality and the matudf the underlying fixed income investment. Thedstments made by the sub-advisors are
readily marketable and can be sold to fund bepeaffment obligations as they become payable.
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Cash Flows

Estimated Future Benefit Payments (In thousands

2015 $ 771
2016 78E
2017 822
2018 85€
2019 90z
Years 202(- 2023 5,12¢
Anticipated Contributions in 201 $ -

The fair value of plan assets at December 31, 2042013, by asset category, is as follows:

December 31, 201.

Level 1 (1) Level 2 (2) Level 3 (3) Total

Investment Name: (in thousands)
Company Common Stoc $ 6,54z $ - $ - $ 6,542
Large Cap Valu - 2,37¢ - 2,37¢
Mid Cap Index - 682 - 682
Small Cap Growtt - 691 - 691
Small Cap Value - 673 - 673
Focus Value - 70C 70C
Growth - 2,38 - 2,38
International Growtt - 2,64¢ - 2,64¢
Core Bonc - 1,96¢ - 1,96¢
High Yield - 382 - 382
Inflation Protected Bon - 51¢ - 51¢
Money Market — 281 — 281

Total $ 6,54 $ 13,30¢ $ - $ 19,84¢

December 31, 201
Level 1 (1) Level 2 (2) Level 3 (3) Total

Investment Name: (in thousands)
Company Common Stoc $ 8,31¢ $ - $ - $ 8,31¢
Fundamental Valu - 2,38¢ - 2,38¢
Mid Cap Growth - 70¢ - 70¢
Focus Value - 692 - 692
Small Co. Value - 692 - 692
Growth - 3,231 - 3,231
International Growtt - 2,85¢ - 2,85¢
Core Bonc - 1,87( - 1,87(
High Yield - 387 - 387
Inflation Protected Bon - 487 - 487
Money Market — 31 — 31

Total $ 8,31¢ $ 13,348  $ - $ 21,66

(1) Company common stock is classified as level 1 ahdeed using quoted prices in active markets fontial assets
(2) All other plan assets in stock, bond and money atdtlnds are classified as level 2 and valued usiggificant observable input
(3) There are no plan assets classified as level &arfair value hierarchy as a result of having sfgr@int unobservable input
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(14) Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements" clarifies thiagiple that fair value should be based on theraggions market participants
would use when pricing an asset or liability anheshes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes information used to develop those
assumptions. Under the standard, fair value meammes would be separately disclosed by level withafair value hierarchy.

ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a frameViamrkneasuring fair value, establishes a threetteateiation hierarchy for
disclosure of fair value measurement and enhariselsgure requirements for fair value measuremdrits.three levels are defined as
follows: level 1 - inputs to the valuation methoalgy are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identicagessor liabilities in active markets; level 2
— inputs to the valuation methodology include qugiddes for similar assets and liabilities in aetimarkets, and inputs that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or imectly, for substantially the full term of the fimeial instrument; and level 3 — inputs to the
valuation methodology are unobservable and sigmitito the fair value measurement.

In September 2008 we sold automobile contractssiacarritization that was structured as a saleifi@ntial accounting purposes. In
that sale, we retained both securities and a rakidterest in the transaction that are measuréairatalue. In September 2010 we took
advantage of improvement in the market for assekdd securities by re-securitizing the underlyiageivables from our unrated September
2008 securitization. We also sold the securitiésimed from the September 2008 transaction. No gaiass was recorded as a result of the
re-securitization transaction described above. Werdesbelow the valuation methodologies we uselierdgecurities retained and the resi
interest in the cash flows of the transaction, el as the general classification of such instrurm@ursuant to the valuation hierarchy. The
residual interest in such securitization is $68,88®f December 31, 2014 and $854,000 as of Deaedih@013 and is classified as level .
the fair value hierarchy. We determine the valuthaf residual interest using a discounted cash flandel that includes estimates for
prepayments and losses. We used a discount rat@@efper annum and a cumulative net loss rate of d6Becember 31, 2014 and 2013.
assumptions we used are based on historical peafarenof automobile contracts we have originatedsandced in the past, adjusted for
current market conditions.

In September 2011, we acquired $217.8 million mdfice receivables from Fireside Bank for a purchpase of $199.6 million. The
receivables were acquired by our wholly-owned sgiqmirpose subsidiary, CPS Fender Receivables, whih issued a note for $197.3
million, with a fair value of $196.5 million. Sindbe Fireside receivables were originated by amahgty with its own underwriting
guidelines and procedures, we have elected to atéouthe Fireside receivables and the related setured by those receivables at their
estimated fair values so that changes in fair valiliebe reflected in our results of operationslasy occur. Interest income from the
receivables and interest expense on the note ereldad in interest income and interest expenseemively. Changes to the fair value of the
receivables and debt are included in other incabe.level 3, unobservable inputs reflect our owsuasptions about the factors that market
participants use in pricing similar receivables debt, and are based on the best information dlaila the circumstances. They include s
inputs as estimated net charge-offs and timindnefamortization of the portfolio of finance recdiles. Our estimate of the fair value of the
Fireside receivables is performed on a pool baaiker than separately on each individual receeabl
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The table below presents a reconciliation of treuaed finance receivables and related debt medsirfair value on a recurring
basis using significant unobservable inputs:

December 31,
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Finance Receivables Measured at Fair Value

Balance at beginning of ye $ 14,47¢ % 59,66¢
Payments on finance receivables at fair vi (22,27¢) (43,127
Chargeoffs on finance receivables at fair va (84¢€) (2,89¢)
Discount accretiol 28¢ 1,421
Mark to fair value 27 (595)
Balance at end of year $ 1,66¢ $ 14,47¢
Debt Secured by Finance Receivables Measured at Faalue:

Balance at beginning of ye $ 13,117 $ 57,10%
Principal payments on debt at fair va (12,456 (45,969
Premium accretio 712 2,72¢
Mark to fair value (129) (747)
Balance at end of ye: 1,25C 13,117
Reduction for payments collected and payable - (1,659
Adjusted balance at end of year $ 125 $ 11,46:

The table below compares the fair values of thedkdie receivables and the related secured delhtitocbntractual balances for the
periods shown:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201:
Contractual Fair Contractual Fair
Balance Value Balance Value

(In thousands)
Fireside receivables portfol $ 1,66¢ $ 1,66¢ $ 14,78¢ % 14,47¢
Debt secured by Fireside receivables portf - 1,25(C - 13,117

The fair value of the debt secured by the Firestdeivables portfolio represents the discountedevaf future cash flows that we
estimate will become due to the lender in accordarith the terms of our financing for the Firesp@tfolio. The terms of the debt provide
for the lenders to receive a share of residual fiagls from the underlying receivables after thatcactual balance of the debt is repaid and
the Company'’s investment in the Fireside portfedioeturned.

Repossessed vehicle inventory, which is include@timer Assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheete&sured at fair value using
level 2 assumptions based on our actual loss expegion sale of repossessed vehicles. At Decemb@034, the finance receivables related
to the repossessed vehicles in inventory total@l2biillion. We have applied a valuation adjustmentoss allowance, of $17.8 million,
which is based on a recovery rate of approxima&&Bp, resulting in an estimated fair value and ¢agyamount of $10.4 million. The fair
value and carrying amount of the repossessed iaseat December 31, 2013 was $10.0 million aftgrl@pg a valuation adjustment of $1.
million.

There were no transfers in or out of level 1 oeledassets and liabilities for 2014 and 2013. \B&&emo level 3 assets that are

measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis.t&hle below presents a reconciliation for levak8ets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using significant unobservable ispu
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December 31
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Residual Interest in Securitizations:

Balance at beginning of ye $ 854 % 4,82¢
Cash received during ye (1,159 (3,970
Included in earnings 372 —
Balance at end of year $ 68 $ 854

The following table provides certain qualitativédrmation about our level 3 fair value measuremémtsissets and liabilities carried
at fair value:

Financial Instrument Fair Values as of Inputs as of
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 Valuation Techniques Unobservable Inputs 2014 2013
(In thousands)
Assets:
Discount rate 15.2% 15.4%
Finance receivables $ 1,66¢ $ 14,47¢ Discounted cash flows Cumulative net losses 5.C% 5.C%
measured at fair valt
Monthly average 0.5% 0.5%
prepayment
Discount rate 20.% 20.(%
Residual interest in 68 854 Discounted cash flows Cumulative net losses 15.% 15.(%
securitization:
Monthly average 0.5% 0.5%
prepayment
Liabilities:
Debt secured by receivabl 1,25( 13,117 Discounted cash flows Discount rate 12.2% 12.2%

measured at fair valt
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The estimated fair values of financial assets atillities at December 31, 2014 and 2013, werebsvs:

As of December 31, 201

Financial Instrument

(In thousands)

Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using:
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivale! $ 17,85¢ 3 17,85¢ 3 - $ - 8 17,85¢
Restricted cash and equivale 175,38: 175,38 - - 175,38
Finance receivables, n 1,534,49 - - 1,512,56 1,512,56
Finance receivables measured a

fair value 1,664 - - 1,664 1,664
Residual interest in securitizatio 68 - - 68 68
Accrued interest receivab 23,37: - - 23,37: 23,37:
Liabilities:
Warehouse lines of crec $ 56,83¢ $ - % - % 56,83¢ $ 56,83¢
Accrued interest payab 2,61 - - 2,61 2,61
Residual interest financir 12,327 - - 12,327 12,327
Debt secured by receivables

measured at fair valt 1,25( - - 1,25( 1,25(
Securitization trust del 1,598,49! - - 1,619,74. 1,619,74.
Subordinated renewable no 15,23: - - 15,23: 15,23:

As of December 31, 201
Financial Instrument (In thousands)
Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using:
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 22,11: % 22,11: % - $ - $ 22,11:
Restricted cash and equivale 132,28 132,28 - - 132,28
Finance receivables, n 1,115,43 - - 1,100,15: 1,100,15:
Finance receivables measured a

fair value 14,47¢ - - 14,47¢ 14,47¢
Residual interest in securitizatio 854 - - 854 854
Accrued interest receivab 18,67( - - 18,67( 18,67(
Liabilities:
Warehouse lines of crec $ 945 $ - 3 - % 945 $ 9,452
Accrued interest payab 2,90¢ - - 2,90¢ 2,90¢
Residual interest financir 19,09¢ - - 19,09¢ 19,09¢
Debt secured by receivables

measured at fair valt 13,117 - - 13,117 13,117
Securitization trust del 1,177,55! = - 1,189,08! 1,189,08!
Senior secured debt, related pe 38,55¢ - - 38,55¢ 38,55¢
Subordinated renewable no 19,14: - - 19,14: 19,14:
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The following summary presents a description ofrttethodologies and assumptions used to estimafaithealue of our financial
instruments. Much of the information used to detaenfair value is highly subjective. When applieglieadily available market information
has been utilized. However, for a significant pmrtof our financial instruments, active marketsdb exist. Therefore, significant element:
judgment were required in estimating fair valuedertain items. The subjective factors include, agmother things, the estimated timing ¢
amount of cash flows, risk characteristics, crgdality and interest rates, all of which are subjechange. Since the fair value is estimated
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amountsvitia@ctually be realized or paid at settlementraturity of the instruments could be
significantly different.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash andviabgarits

The carrying value equals fair value.

Finance Receivables, n

The fair value of finance receivables is estimdtediscounting future cash flows expected to béectdd using current rates at
which similar receivables could be originated.

Finance Receivables Measured at Fair Value and 3autured by Receivables Measured at Fair V
The carrying value equals fair value.
Residual Interest in Securitizatio

The fair value is estimated by discounting futuasttflows using credit and discount rates that @liebe reflect the estimated crec
interest rate and prepayment risks associatedswithar types of instruments.

Accrued Interest Receivable and Paye

The carrying value approximates fair value becdliseelated interest rates are estimated to refl@cent market conditions for
similar types of instruments.

Warehouse Lines of Credit, Residual Interest FimagncSenior Secured Debt, Related Party and Subatdd Renewable Notes

The carrying value approximates fair value becdluiseelated interest rates are estimated to reflecent market conditions for
similar types of secured instruments.

Securitization Trust Debt

The fair value is estimated by discounting futuasttflows using interest rates that we believeectthe current market rates.
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(15) Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

2014
Revenue:
Income before income tax exper
Net income
Earnings per shar
Basic
Diluted

2013
Revenue:
Income before income tax exper
Net income
Earnings per shar
Basic
Diluted

2012
Revenue:
Income before income tax exper
Net income
Earnings per shar
Basic
Diluted

Quarter Ended
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March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
(In thousands, except per share date

68,14¢ $ 71,59 % 77,05 $ 83,467
11,76« 12,32¢ 13,80« 14,34¢
6,70¢ 7,02¢ 7,77¢ 8,01(
028 $ 028 % 031 % 0.31
0.21 0.22 0.24 0.2t
5459: $ 70,48: $ 64,066 $ 66,63¢
6,52¢ 8,54¢ 10,55¢ 11,54(
3,78¢ 4,82t 5,87: 6,522
01¢ $ 02: $ 027 $ 0.2¢
0.12 0.1t 0.1¢ 0.21
4451t 3 44,15, 3 47,92 3 50,62(
512 1,341 2,72¢ 4,607
51z 1,341 2,72¢ 64,82¢
00: % 007 $ 014 % 3.3C
0.0z 0.0t 0.11 2.2C




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statements Nos. 333-190766 and 333-168%7/Borm S-1, No. 33352969 o
Form S-3 and Nos. 333-58199, 333-35758, 333-75393,1 15622, 333-135907, 333-161448, 333-166892,383-193926 on Form &-of
Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. of our reportedafebruary 25, 2015 relating to the consolidateatial statements and effectivenes
internal control over financial reporting of ConsemfPortfolio Services, Inc. appearing in this AnrRaport on Form 10-K.

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Costa Mesa, California
February 25, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OF THE SERITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANEBXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Charles E. Bradley, Jr., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 of Gures Portfolio Services,
Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notagoriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentec
this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

@) Designed such disclosure controls and procegorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@ase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttulsi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesggnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorslahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardiodctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

€)) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#gethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 25, 2015

/sl Charles E. Bradley, .
Charles E. Bradley, J
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OF THE SERITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANEBXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey P. Fritz, Jr., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 of Gures Portfolio Services,
Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notagoriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentec
this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

@) Designed such disclosure controls and procegorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiairmédion relating to the registrant, including itmsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@ase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttulsi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesggnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorslahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardiodctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

€)) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes#gethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 25, 2015

/sl Jeffrey P. Frit
Jeffrey P. Fritz
ExecutiveVice President and Chief Financial Offic




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANEBXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Consumertf®tio Services, Inc. (“Registrant”) on Form 10f&r the fiscal year ended December
31, 2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchabgemission on February 25, 2015 (the “Report”)adlds E. Bradley, Jr., chairman,
president and chief executive officer, and Jefffe¥ritz , chief financial officer and executive®ipresident, each hereby certifies, pursue
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBe@®6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, thahitoknowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations as
December 31, 201

February 25, 2015

/sl Charles E. Bradley, .
Charles E. Bradley, J
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off

February 25, 2015

/sl Jeffrey P. Frit.

Jeffrey P. Fritz
Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice Presid




